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1. Executive Mayor’s Foreword 

 

I would like to take this golden opportunity to extend greetings to all the residence of 

Alfred Nzo District Municipality and also express my sincere gratitude for their 

continued determination and commitment under 2020 onslaught of Covid 19 

pandemic. Indeed, our community stakeholders through Traditional leadership, 

Religious leaders, Politicians, Officials, particularly nurses and police, deserve round 

of applause for selflessness, commitment and sacrifice during these trying times. 

On behalf of Alfred Nzo District Municipal Council and Officials, I hereby present this 

Annual Report for 2019/2020 financial year, in line with the mandate of Alfred Nzo 

District Municipality as drawn from IDP roadshows, which is not unique from the 

broader mandate of Local Government as enshrined in the Constitution of the 

Republic of South Africa. This current Annual Report outlines successes and 

shortcomings in relation to our political mandate as derived from the key focus areas 

of local Government which can be summarised as follows:  

 Building a municipality that is efficient. 

 Effective and responsive 

 Strengthen Accountability and promote clean ANDM Operations 

Indeed, we are deeply humbled by the level of commitment displayed by ANDM 

Councillors, and Officials  on the achievement of unqualified audit opinion  of 2019/20 

financial year, and rolling out of massive water infrastructure projects, in line with 

resolve to prioritise our citizens in addressing water scarcity in our District which 

characterised 2019/20 financial Year. 

The year has not been without its challenges as we present this Annual Report, we 

are mindful of the immense socio-economic challenges that we are facing today and 

the volatile global context in which we find ourselves in the context of Covid 19 

Pandemic.  



 

We find ourselves at the crossroads as a District, noting that the decisions that we 

take either individually or collectively determine the trajectory we are facing. Although, 

we agree that this pandemic was devastating, however it presented us with golden 

opportunities of intensifying transparency, accountability, unity, decisiveness and 

practically exposed level of socio-economic disparities still facing citizens of South 

Africa. This devastation has been mitigated by our strategic pathway which is central 

to the vision of Alfred Nzo District which focus on the improving the forecasted 

economic performance that translates into a well-functioning service delivery of our 

municipality through decisive governance and adequate resources.  

 

Cllr S. Mehlomakhulu 

Executive Mayor: Alfred Nzo District Municipality 

 

2. Municipal Managers Overview  

 

Alfred Nzo District Municipality during the financial year 2019/.2020 embarked on 

numerous programs that seek to change its landscape.  Chief amongst these were at 

the strategic level.  The introduction of vision 2022 expressed in the five year IDP 

ushered an opportunity wherein our architects (Councillors) crafted a vision which in 

its form presented a season of home to its communities.  Together this vision and the 

new mission enable the municipality to respond to the clarion call of heighted service 

delivery whilst ensuring that the basics are mastered through good governance.  

Importantly, good governance leads to good administration, good management, good 

performance management, and good people behaviours and ultimately yield to good 

outcomes. 

 It is an honour and privilege that comes with a huge responsibility, not only to turn the 

situation around, but also set the municipality on the right path, towards a clean 

administration. To the management and staff, I know that change of leadership brings 

anxiety and uncertainty, but this time around we must be optimistic about the future, 

no matter how difficult the situation might be.  The role MPAC has played in ensuring 

that irregular expenditure is cleared and an eclectic approach developed to resolve all, 

demonstrate the level of good governance our councillors seek to marshal the 

organisation towards a positive destination. 

The development of the District Growth Development Plan vision 2030 has also 

allowed a focused allocation of resources and also gave three important areas the 

municipality must deal with and these inter alia include focus, attention and time.  This 

new way of orientation is results driven and as such, the concomitant results of a 

clean administration may be realised within a few years.  The municipality has made 

major improvement in the audit outcome, from a Qualified Audit in the previous 3 



financial years to an Unqualified Audit in 2017-18 and 2018-19. The management 

letter contained qualification matters that were reduced drastically from 203 in 2015-16 

to 109 in 2016-17 to 23 in 2017-18 and 16 in 2018-19 FY. We are still yet to see how 

far the district has performed with regards to 2019-2020 Financial Year as the Office 

of the Auditor General has resumed with the audit. With the clear strategy and 

monitoring mechanism on the implementation of the Audit Action plan, we remain 

optimistic that the district can receive a clean report from the Auditor General.  

We have ensured that service delivery is heighted albeit the shrinking financial 

envelop.  Also, the introduction of cost containment measures which rewarded the 

municipality with greater financial returns cannot be underestimated.  The partnership 

between councillors, administration and the unions was in achieving the latter need to 

be applauded and the contribution by all made us to subscribe to the old adage 

“United we stand, divided we fall “.  Indeed, Alfred Nzo District Municipality is rising to 

its calling. 

On the Alfred Nzo Development Agency, the Council has engaged in a business re-

engineering process with the assistance of new CEO who assumed office in July 

2019. We remain optimistic that the continued existence of the agency is able to yield 

fruits for the municipality and the people of the district.  

Implementation of effective risk management within the municipality is regulated and 

guided by Section 62(1) © (i) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, which 

stipulate that the accounting officer of the municipality is responsible for managing the 

financial administration of the municipality and must for this purpose take all 

reasonable steps to ensure that the municipality has and maintains effective, efficient 

and transparent systems of financial and risk management and internal control. 

The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework provided a structured, dynamic 

and consistent approach to risk management. It is an integrated approach and 

recognizes that effective risk management is critical to the achievement of strategic 

objectives and the long-term sustainable growth of the municipality. The process was 

continuous and risks were updated throughout the year. The framework is in line with 

relevant standards, including ISO 31000, the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations 

(COSO) of the Treadway Commission Framework and the King IV Report. 

During the year under review, the Council reviewed the effectiveness of the systems 

of risk management and internal control and conducted a robust assessment of the 

strategic risks affecting the municipality’s strategic goals in line with its risk appetite. 

These activities met the Council’s responsibilities in connection with risk management 

and internal control. 

The aim of the risk appetite remained to highlight the risks that the municipality was 

willing to take, as well as those that were unacceptable. The risk appetite included a 

series of risks that were aligned to the municipality’s strategy, together with the risk 

parameters within which the employees were expected to work. Compliance with the 

risk appetite was monitored through the municipality’s functional and frontline controls, 

including oversight and reporting mechanisms. The municipality recognized that not all 



risks were controllable or foreseeable, and the response to such risks was having 

controls to lessen the impact to the business should they occur. 

The Council conducted an assessment of the strategic risks, alongside the risk 

appetite, meeting the Council’s responsibilities as a governing body in connection with 

risk management and internal control detailed in King IV. Each of the strategic risks 

was assigned an owner, and a summary of principal risks and the mitigating controls 

was presented at every Audit and Risk Committee meeting. 

The Council confirms that the municipality’s risk management, mitigation and 

monitoring processes were effective in limiting the potential impact of risks on the 

business during the year under review. 

Approach to risk management 

The management of risks was at the core of the municipality’s internal control 

environment. There was a risk management policy and strategy that defined how risks 

were expected to be identified, assessed and managed throughout the municipality. 

Risks were assessed and quantified in terms of their impact and likelihood of 

occurrence, both before and after control mitigation. 

Assessing the inherent risk before control mitigation allowed the municipality to review 

the relative impact of the existing controls by comparing the gross and net risk 

assessment. This also allowed the municipality to avoid wasting resources on 

mitigating controls and actions, which have a negligible impact on risk assessment. 

The impact of the risks was quantified across a range of factors, including financial, 

strategy, reputation, people, and ability to perform services, regulation, safety, health 

and environment. The risk management policy includes defined criteria for each risk 

impact factor, supporting a consistent measurement approach. Risk management took 

place at all levels, providing an integrated bottom-up and top-down approach. 

Ultimately, the Council was responsible for the entity’s risk and internal control 

framework. It set out the decisions, and hence the level of risk that can be delegated 

to the executive, senior management, departmental and operational management 

without requiring escalation. This was articulated in a series of the municipality’s 

policies and delegated authority matrices, as well as the parameters within the 

approved risk appetite. 

The Council was accountable to ensure that risks were effectively managed, and 

delegated the oversight of risk management to the Audit and Risk Committee in terms 

of two combined mandates: the Committee reviews significant risks and their related 

mitigations and reports back to the Council quarterly. The Committee also focuses on 

the financial risks and reviews the effectiveness of the risk process. The Audit and 

Risk Committee monitored quarterly risk dashboard reports from the strategic, and 

operational risk assessments. In addition, it had oversight of the risk dashboard, along 

with a routine review of key controls identified to manage each risk and the sources of 

control assurance, providing an update to the Council.  The Council obtained 

assurance over risks and risk management through the internal control framework. 



Annual risk workshops were held across the municipality and identified risks were 

documented in a risk register and assessed on the basis of likelihood of occurrence 

and potential impact on the risk exposure of the municipality. Mitigations were 

identified against each risk and the remaining residual risk was assessed based on 

defined criteria. The risks with the highest exposure attribution were presented to the 

senior management to be reviewed, ahead of being submitted to the Audit and Risk 

Committee, and ultimately the Mayoral Committee for review. 

Six Strategic risks  

 Unsustainable water sources; 

 Inadequate coordination between ANDM LED and ANDA  which may lead to 

misalignment of service delivery activities and programs; 

 Inadequate collection  and maximization of revenue; 

 Illegal / unauthorized water and sewer connections; 

 Failure to recover data in the event of a disruption; 

 Failure to effectively implement indigent policy.   

 

Risk 

Index 

Risk 

Magnitude 

20 - 25 Extreme 

15 - 19 High 

10 - 14 Medium 

5 - 9 Low 

1 - 4 Insignificant 

 

Strategic Risks plotted on the dashboard 

    

  
  

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 

5     1 

4    2, 3, 

4, 6 

 

3    5  

2      

1      



 1 2 3 4 5 

Impact 

 

 

The following table illustrates the entity’s risk, likelihood of occurrence and 

impact at inherent stage and current mitigations: 

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigation 

Unsustainable water 

sources 

Almost 

certain 

Critical Complete water feasibility study in all 

wards 

Include budget to develop ground water 

management plan on 2020/2021. 

Conduct water saving awareness 

campaigns 

Conduct borehole monitoring 

system(WSL RR) 

Borehole monitoring personnel 

trainings(WSP)" 

Inadequate 

coordination 

between ANDM 

LED and ANDA  

which may lead to 

misalignment of 

service delivery 

activities and 

programs 

 

Likely Critical Review ANDA Turnaround Action Plan 

and Corporate Plan to be in line with the 

mandate given by the district. 

Enhance integrated planning and 

coordination, 

 

 

Inadequate 

collection  and 

maximization of 

revenue 

Almost 

certain 

Critical Review and implement Revenue 

Enhancement Strategy 

Implement Credit and debt collection 

policy and by laws 

Conduct Revenue Management and 

Data cleansing 

Improve quality of water  

Establishment of Revenue Collection 



Committee 

Review Indigent register during budget 

related policy 

 

 

Illegal / 

unauthorized water 

and sewer 

connections 

 

Likely 

 

Major 

 

Strengthens  enforcement of by-laws 

with WSA, 

Conduct awareness campaigns on 

community about bylaws and 

implications of illegal water connections. 

Failure to recover 

data in the event of 

a disruption. 

Likely Critical Establishment of Disaster Recovery site; 

Implement and monitor Disaster 

Recovery and Business Continuity 

Plans. 

Failure to effectively 

implement indigent 

policy 

Almost 

certain 

Major Implement indigent verification system 

and updating indigent register; 

Review  the indigent policy; 

Continuous collaboration with traditional 

and community leaders; 

 

 

 

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND FRAUD 

Fraud and Anti- corruption plan was developed and adopted by the Council for the 

year under review. Fraud risk assessments were also conducted to identify high risk 

areas that are prone to fraud risks along with mitigating strategies which gives effect to 

the plan.  Workshops and awareness campaigns will be conducted throughout the 

district on the initiatives, plans and strategies that have been developed to address the 

municipal exposures to fraud and corruption which is part of implementation of fraud 

prevention plan. The municipality has also developed and implemented an Ethics 

Commitment document for suppliers, contractors that are dealing with the municipality 

to make a pledge and commitment that in their dealings with the municipality, they 

shall uphold high standards of ethics, honesty and in good faith. 

 

Lastly, the integrity of Alfred Nzo District Municipality is being restored and this is 

observable in simplified work processes that are being presented each day.  The 



commitment of leadership in good governance cannot be emphasized there by 

allowing the municipality to eliminate all unwarranted matters that deter it to its 

purpose. 

This is but a testimony of an institution in action.  The task assigned is achieved. 

 

I thank you.  

Mr Z. H. Sikhundla 

Municipal Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Introduction 

The annual report provides an authoritative record of the activities and performance of 

the municipality for each financial year. In time it will serve as a key historical record 

on each municipality, revealing the progress, growth and development of municipal 

services and performance. 

 



4. Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to present the draft Annual Report for the 2019/2020 

financial year for noting and consideration.  

 

5. LEGISLATIVE PROVISIONS 

Section 46 of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act 2000 (Act 32 of 2000) 

(MSA)  

Section 121 of the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) 

2003 (Act 56 of 2003)  

Circular 63 

 

6. BACKGROUND 

In terms of the above legislation a Municipality must prepare an annual report for each 

financial year. Some of the key purposes of the annual report are:  

To provide a record of the activities of the municipality or entity  

To provide a report on performance in service delivery and budget implementation  

To provide information that supports the revenue and expenditure decisions made  

To promote accountability to the local community for decisions made. 

 

In preparations for the Annual Report for 2019/2020 the following process will be 

followed: 

Item  Date due 

Submission of the APR to the Office of the Municipal 

Manager  

14 August 2020 

Consultations with Departments 

 

Ongoing 

Submission – APR to Internal Audit 17 September 2020 

Due date for submission of the Annual Report (draft) to 

Office of the MM 

15  October 2020 

Submission of the draft Annual Report to the Internal 

Audit and Audit Committee 

21 October 2020 

Report from IA on the Annual Report to Management 

and Audit Committee 

26 October 2020 



Submission to Council and AG 31 October 2020 

 

 

The following is the summary of departmental performance which will be work in 

progress as the report is under scrutiny until tabling to Council by 30th October 2020: 

 

The report was submitted to AG on the 31st October 2020 and audit was concluded in 

March 2021. 

 

The MFMA Circular of the 05th August 2020 exempts municipalities for 2019-2020 FY 

from complying with provisions of MFMA S126, 127, 129 and 133. However, 

municipalities are expected to comply within 2 months after the deadline in the 

applicable provisions.  

 

The Annual Report was presented to Council at the end of Apri 2021 after the Auditor 

General issued the report on the 31st March 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. COMPARISON OF PERFORMANCE BETWEEN 2018-19 AND 2019-20 FY 

 

2018/2019 FY 2019/2020 FY 

Department 

Total No. 

of targets 

Percentage 

Achieved 

Percentag

e Not 

Achieved 

Total No. of 

targets 
Percentage 

Achieved 

Percentage 

Not 

Achieved 

 Office of 

Municipal 

Manager  

80 64% 36% 52 58% 42% 

Budget & 

Treasury 

Office 

38 84% 16% 27 96% 4% 

Corporate 

Services 

47 87% 13% 28 64% 36% 

Community 

Development 

Services 

37 62% 38% 24 75% 25% 



Infrastructur

e 

Development 

and 

Municipal 

Services 

51 51% 49% 47 47% 53% 

Planning & 

Economic 

Development  

16 
 

50% 
50% 18 67% 33% 

Total 269 67% 33% 196 64% 36% 

 

Comparison of Performance Highlights between 2018-19 and 2019-20 FY 

 

Of a total of 269 targets for all departments for 2018-19 FY, the municipality had 

achieved 67%.  

Non-achieved targets constituted a 33% average for all departments. 

 

Of a total of 196 targets for all departments for the 2019-20 FY, the municipality had 

achieved an overall 64%. Non-achieved targets constituted 36% average for all 

departments. 

 

The table above depicts that the municipality has poorly performed in 2019-20 FY 

when compared to 2018-19 FY. This may be attributed to a number of reasons across 

all departments which are document thoroughly in the departmental performance 

analysis below. However, it can be understood that the circumstances under which 

departments operated were very difficult from around March 2020 due to the covid 19 

pandemic and subsequently the lockdown regulations thereof. 

 

 



8. Overall Performance per Unit     

  
8.1. OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER (OMM)     
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 N/
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Yet 

Mea
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d 

No 
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for the 

period 

under 

review 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0   0 0 0 0% 

    

 R Tar

get 

Not 

Met 

0% < 

= 

(target

/actual

) 

<75% 

2 0 7 0 0 0 0   3 1 13 25% 

 



O Tar

get 
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Met 

75% < 

= 

(target

/actual

) 

<100

% 

2 1 2 1 0 0 0   1 2 9 17% 

 G Tar

get 

Met 

(target

/actual

) = 

100% 

1 3 2 0 2 2 4   6 0 20 38% 

58% 

 G

2 

Tar

get 

Well 

Met 

100% 

< 

(target

/actual

) 

<150

% 

4 0 1 0 0 0 1   1 1 8 15% 

 B Tar

get 

Extr

eme

ly 

Well 

Met 

150% 

< = 

(target

/actual

)  

0 0 1 0 0 0 0   1 0 2 4% 

42% 

 Total  9 4 13 1 2 2 5 0 12 4 52 100% 

   



 

OMM Performance Highlights for 2019-20 FY  

 

Of a total of 52 targets for the period under review, the Office of the Municipal Manager has met 58% and 42% not met targets.  

 

Challenges/Non Achieved Targets 

 

The targets not met were 42%. This is attributed to the following: 

 

1. Communications:  

 On the procurement of 2 Audio Visuals and Equipment, only one service provider managed to bid for the tender 

and did not submit all the required documents according to bid committee so they were disqualified. When the 

Unit was about to re-advertise, the nation went on covid-19 national lockdown. 

 On 04 newsletters translation, only 02 were done. The external hard-drive where we save all the newsletter 

crushed, so it was difficult to obtain the information even the ICT department could not assist. 

 09 products procurement for branding and marketing, not done due to National Lockdown COVID-19 only covid-

19 related product were allowed to be procured. 

2. Internal Audit: 1 project- Asset management could not be implemented due to Covid 19 lockdown. 

 

3. WSA:  

 On 03 Water Safety Plan HIRA, 1. Matatiele and Belford Water Safety Plan HIRA advertise in February 2020 and 

evaluated in March but never awarded due to RSA Lockdown. 2.  Nomlacu and Ntabankulu WSP HIRA advertised I 

December 2019 but never awarded due to delays encountered with Quotations Committee. 

 On 3 Wastewater Risk Abatement Plan HIRA Reports, WWRAP for Mt Frere WWTW and Bizana Ponds advertised on 

the 8th of October 2019 and never awarded until the validity period lapsed and it was re-advertised on the 2nd of March 

2020 and never awarded. 



 No springs were rehabilitated in Matatiele. TORs for both Spring Rehabilitation and Solar Installation in EmaXesibeni 

Botanical gardens not undertaken, however, TOR were developed and approved by HOD and Bid Specification 

Committee. Both projects advertised. Spring Rehabilitation project re-advertised. 

 2 out of 3 WWTW Process Audits completed, (TORs developed and approved by HOD and Bid Specification 

Committee. 2. Matatiele and Cedarville WWTW Plant Audit and Mt Ayliff and Mbizana WWTW Plant Audit advertised, 

evaluated and awarded. 3. Matatiele and Cedarville WWTW Process Audits Completed. 4. Mt Ayliff and Mbizana 

WWTW Process Audits Completed. 5. Mt Frere and Ntabankulu WWTW Plant Audit was re-advertised in February 

2020, evaluated in March 2020 but never awarded). 

 1 Outstanding Audit for 2 WTW to be moved to 2020/21 FY (by 30 June 2021).  Ntabankulu and Nomlacu WTW Plant 

Audit was re-advertised, evaluated but never awarded. 

 Pre-engineering project for Didi Solar installation was awarded only in Quarter 3 instead of Quarter 2 and this has led to 

delays in the project to an extent that by the time RSA Lockdown commenced, the pre-engineering was halfway through 

completion. 

 On the removal of alien plants in Matatiele, a service provider to establish and monitor this project was not appointed 

since 9th of October 2019 as a result this project had to be subjected to be re-advertised, the process closed on the 

28th February 2020. The project was then evaluated in March 2020 but never awarded. 

 On the District integrated transport plan (DITP) review, the project was advertised and evaluated but no suitable 

candidate was identified. 

 Backlog Eradication Strategy not done as there was no suitable candidate identified. 

 

4. Risk Management: 4 Risk Management Meetings not met. The appointed incumbent to chair the risk committee 

declined the appointment after numerous negotiations. The main reason for the decline was the terrain of Alfred Nzo 

District.  However, risk management issues and reports were processed by other governance structures like Audit 

Committee and Mayoral Committee. 

 

5. Office of the Speaker:  

 

 The Open Council Day was not held due to covid 19 pandemic.  



 Printing of Rules & Orders was not done as the requisition was with the Supply Chain Office. 

 3 of 4 Constituency Work programmes done. The outstanding one was due to Covid 19 pandemic. 

3 of 4 Council study groups were held. The outstanding one was due to Covid 19 pandemic. 

  

6. Office of the Executive Mayor:  

 6 of 12 Mayoral Interventions were conducted. The targets for quarter 3 and 4 were not met due to Covid 19 

Pandemic.  

 2 of 4 Mayoral Imbizo was conducted due to Covid 19 Pandemic.  

 

 

Measures Taken to improve Performance 

 

1. Communications:  

 On the procurement of 2 Audio Visuals and Equipment, encourage SCM and specification committee to fast-

track the process. 

 On newsletters translation the 02 done will fall off. 

 Procurement for branding and marketing will be done in 2020-2021 FY.  

 

2. Internal Audit: 1 project- Asset Management will be done during the 2020/21 FY. 

 

3. WSA:  

 02 water safety plans outstanding will be completed in Q3 (31 March 2021) 



 On 3 Wastewater Risk Abatement Plan HIRA Reports: 02 outstanding water waste risk Abatement plan will be 

completed in Q3 (31 March 2021) 

 Spring Rehabilitation Project has been moved to 2020/21 FY and budget has been made available. EmaXesibeni 

Botanical Garden Solar Installation project has been removed from the IDP due to budgetary constraints. 

 One WWTW Plant Audit outstanding and budgeted (Mt Frere and Ntabankulu WWTW) and will be completed in 

2020/2021 FY. 

 Ntabankulu and Nomlacu WTW Plant Audit has been moved to 2020/21 financial year and budget has been 

made available.  

 Installation of PV solar energy system in Didi School will be done in 2020-2021 FY. 

 On the removal of alien plants in Matatiele, the project moved to 2020/21 financial year and a budget has been 

made available. 

 On the District integrated transport plan (DITP) review, the project will now form part of RRAMS deliverables. 

The project will be funded by RRAMS in 2020/21 financial year 

 Backlog Eradication Strategy will be prioritized in 2020-2021 FY.  

 

4. Risk Management: To restart the process of appointing the independent chairperson and to request the MM to 

approve the use of Senior MANCO as a provisional RMC whilst the process is appointing is underway. The process had 

been completed and the Chairperson was appointed and meetings have resumed in 2020-21 FY. 

 

5. Office of the Speaker:  

 The Open Council Day will be done on 2020/2021 FY if the circumstances will be favorable. 

 Printing of Rules & Orders will be done in the 2020-2021 FY.  



 The Constituency Work programme will be done in 2020-2021 FY. 

 The Council study groups will be done in 2020-2021 FY. 

 

6. Office of the Executive Mayor:   

 

 The Mayoral Interventions will be done in 2020-2021 FY.  

 Mayoral Imbizo will be conducted in 2020-2021 FY. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8.2. BUDGET AND TREASURY OFFICE (BTO)     
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BTO Performance Highlights for 2019-20 FY  

 

Of a total of 27 targets for the period under review, the Budget and Treasury Office has met 96% and only 4% of targets not 

met.  

 

Challenges/Non Achieved Targets 

 

The targets not met were on 4%. This is attributed to the following: 

 



1. FIS: 98% compliance with mSCCOA was achieved as there stores module from Munsoft did not cater for multiple 

stores.   

 

 

Measures Taken to improve Performance 

 

1. FIS: on compliance with mSCCOA, we are working closely with MUNSOFT in ensuring that the sub modules are 

working. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.3. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES     

CO

DE 

RESU

LT 

EXPLANA

TION 

THUS

ONG 

FIRE 

AND 

RESC

DISAS

TER  

CUSTO

MER 

CARE 

MUNICI

PAL 

HEALT

CREAT

IVE 

ARTS 

EVALUA

TION 

RATING 

PERCENT

AGE 

PERFORM

TOTA

L OF 

TARG

TOTA

L OF 

TARG



UE H 

SERVIC

ES  

ANCE  ETS 

MET 

ETS 

NOT 

MET 

N/A Target 

Not 

Yet 

Measu

red 

No target 

for the 

period 

under 

review 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 

  

  

R Target 

Not 

Met 

0% < = 

(target/act

ual) <75% 

2 1 0 0 1 1 5 18% 

O Target 

Almost 

Met 

75% < = 

(target/act

ual) 

<100% 

0 3 0 0 2 0 5 18% 

G Target 

Met 

(target/act

ual) = 

100% 

1 1 3 1 4 1 11 39% 

64% 

G2 Target 

Well 

Met 

100% < 

(target/act

ual) 

<150% 

0 0 1 3 1 0 5 18% 

B Target 

Extre

mely 

150% < = 

(target/act

ual)  

0 0 1 0 0 1 2 7% 

36% 



Well 

Met 

Total  3 5 5 4 8 3 28 100% 

   

 

CDS Performance Highlights for 2019-20 FY  

 

Of a total of 28 targets for the period under review, the Community Development Services Department has met 18 targets 

(64%) and not met 10 targets (36%) of the total targets.  

 

Challenges/Non Achieved Targets 

 

The targets not met were 36%. This is attributed to the following: 

 

1. Thusong Unit:  

 (Thusong Centre) Improvement of   government access to information and coordination of services, the project 

was cancelled and funds redirected to Integrated Services educational material. 

 Thusong Unit: (Thusong Centre) Improvement of   government access to information and coordination of 

services, the project was included in the midterm adjustment but could not be carried out due to lockdown 

regulations. Project cancelled and funds moved to COVID 19 budget. 

 

2. Fire and Rescue Unit:  

 (Swift water Rescue Programme) Procurement of Fire & Rescue Services Swift Equipment, The project was 

turned back to re-advertisement by Bid Adjudication committee, the project could not be re-advertised due to 

COVID-19 restrictions and the project is to be rolled over to the next Financial Year (2020/21). 



 Fire and Rescue Unit: Fire and Rescue Policy Review and Implementation, the By-law reviewed document was 

produced and the request was forwarded to SALGA for assistance in terms of gazetting and promulgation, 

however; the project could not be finalized due to COVID-19 restrictions. 

 Fire and Rescue Unit: Maintenance of the Communication center, the budgeted amount to execute this project 

was inadequate, the Fire and Rescue Unit rengaged with ICT UNIT for technical and financial support. 

 Fire and Rescue Unit: Procurement of Fire Fighting Foam and Harzmart Absorbents, Terms of Reference for 

this project were presented to bid specification committee, however; project was initially under budgeted for but 

the outstanding budget was made available after midterm review, the project could not be completed due to 

COVID-19 restrictions. 

 

3. Municipal Health Services:  

 Water Quality Monitoring; Community profiling  of 80 Villages was completed, Negotiating processes of procuring 

a laboratory services for sample analysis was undertaken, however; prioritizing areas of need for 

monitoring/sampling when there is a need not completed due to COVID – 19 Restrictions. 

 Municipal Health Services: MHS By-Laws Review Procurement of Books, Certificates, Compliance Notices; 

One MHS by-law were not reviewed and gazette due to COVID-19 Lockdown Restrictions. 

 Municipal Health Services: MHS Annual Subscription, the unit targeted to pay annual HPCSA & SAIEH 

subscription for 41 EHPs but managed to pay subscription for 36 EHPs, the unit expected to employ 5 more 

EHPs by 30 June 2021. 

 

4. CAHD: Alfred Nzo Legacy Programme, Album production Program could not be started due COVID 19 restrictions and 

that the nature of the project request physical interaction. 

 

 

Measures Taken to improve Performance 

 

1. Thusong Unit: 



 (Thusong Centre) Improvement of   government access to information and coordination of services, this project 

is was moved to the Financial Year (2020/21). 

 Thusong Unit: (Thusong Centre) Improvement of   government access to information and coordination of 

services, this project is was moved to the Financial Year (2020/21). 

 

2. Fire and Rescue Unit:  

 (Swift water Rescue Programme) Procurement of Fire & Rescue Services Swift Equipment, This project is to be 

rolled over to the next Financial Year (2020/21). 

 Fire and Rescue Unit: Fire and Rescue Policy Review and Implementation, This project is to be rolled over to 

the next Financial Year (2020/21). 

 Fire and Rescue Unit: Maintenance of the Communication center, this project is to be rolled over to the next 

Financial Year (2020/21). 

 Fire and Rescue Unit: Procurement of Fire Fighting Foam and Harzmart Absorbents, this project is to be rolled 

over to the next Financial Year (2020/21). 

 

3. Municipal Health Services:  

 Water Quality Monitoring; Facilitation of stakeholder engagement to address the identified challenges, remaining 

target to be completed by 30 June 2021 

 Municipal Health Services: MHS By-Laws Review Procurement of Books, Certificates, Compliance Notices; the 

Unit to undertake a roll over application for the target to be completed by 30 June 2021. 

 

4. CAHD: Alfred Nzo Legacy Programme, this target to be moved to the next Financial Year (202-21) and that will be 

subjected to status of the COVID-19 Pandemic.   

 

 

 

 



 

8.4. CORPORATE SERVICES DEPARTMENT    

COD

E 

RESULT EXPLANATION IC

T 

ADMIN 

SUPPORT 

HRM&

D 

EVALUATION 

RATING 

PERCENTAGE 

PERFORMANCE  

TOTAL OF 

TARGETS 

MET 

TOTAL 

OF 

TARGET

S NOT 

MET 

N/A Target Not 

Yet 

Measured 

No target for the 

period under 

review 

0 0 0 0 0% 

  

  

R Target Not 

Met 

0% < = 

(target/actual) 

<75% 

1 1 1 3 13% 

O Target 

Almost Met 

75% < = 

(target/actual) 

<100% 

1 1 1 3 13% 

G Target Met (target/actual) = 

100% 

6 1 11 18 75% 

75% 

G2 Target Well 

Met 

100% < 

(target/actual) 

<150% 

0 0 0 0 0% 

B Target 

Extremely 

150% < = 

(target/actual)  

0 0 0 0 0% 

25% 



Well Met 

Total  0 3 13 24 100% 

   

CPS Performance Highlights for 2019-20 FY  

 

Of a total of 24 targets for the period under review, the Corporate Services Department 75% and not met targets (25%) of the 

total targets.  

 

Challenges/Non Achieved Targets 

 

The targets not met were 25%. This is attributed to the following: 

 

1. Admin:  

 New cameras were not installed at ANDM head office due to the delays of SCM misplacing document containing 

terms of reference and secondly SCM indicated that the department has under-estimated budget for installation 

of new cameras.  

 Under records management, application for disposal authority was submitted & and all documents for disposal 

were verified for disposal by Provincial Archivist. Documents were scanned and archived electronically.   

 

2. HRM:  

 Review of HRM Policies was not completed as Council workshop was not held due to the Covid 19 pandemic.  

 Two formal reviews organised for both permanent and 5 year fixed term contract employees were not done due 

to postponement.  

 

3. ICT:  

 District Wide Connectivity backbone was not finalized due to some of the activities and consultations that were 

delayed due to the (National Lockdown). 



 Customer care systems installation not done due to budgetary constraints. 

 

 

Measures Taken to improve Performance 

 

1. Admin:  

 New cameras installation to be done in 2020-2021 FY. 

 Under records management, disposal of documents will be done in 2020-2021 FY. 

2. HRM:  

 Review of Policies and Council workshop to be conducted in 2020-2021 FY.  

 Formal reviews to be organized in 2020-2021 FY. 

3. ICT:  

 District Wide Connectivity backbone service provider to finalize the document in 2020-2021 FY.  

 Customer care systems installation to be done in 2020-2021 FY. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8.5. INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AND MUNICIPAL SERVICES     

CODE RESULT EXPLANATION WCD

M 

PM

U 

WS

P 

EVALUATION 

RATING 

PERCENTAGE 

PERFORMANCE  

TOTAL 

OF 

TARGET

S MET 

TOTAL 

OF 

TARGET

S NOT 

MET 

N/A Target Not 

Yet 

Measured 

No target for the 

period under 

review 

0 0 0 0 0% 

  

  

R Target Not 

Met 

0% < = 

(target/actual) 

<75% 

1 11 4 16 34% 

O Target 

Almost Met 

75% < = 

(target/actual) 

<100% 

0 9 0 9 19% 

G Target Met (target/actual) = 

100% 

2 6 10 18 38% 

47% 

G2 Target Well 

Met 

100% < 

(target/actual) 

<150% 

0 1 3 4 9% 

B Target 

Extremely 

Well Met 

150% < = 

(target/actual)  

0 0 0 0 0% 

53% 



Total  3 27 17 47 100% 

   

IDMS Performance Highlights for 2020-21 – 1st Quarter  

 

Of a total of 47 targets for the period under review, the Community Development Services Department has met 22 targets 

(47%) and not met 25 targets (53%) of the total targets.  

 

 

 

 

Challenges/Non Achieved Targets 

 

There was 16 targets not met and 9 targets almost met which totals to an average of 25 targets not met. This translates to 

53% of the targets not met. This is attributed to the following: 

 

1. WCDM: Supply and Install Bulk, Domestic and Commercial water meters, Bid Evaluation Committee did not sit for 

evaluation of the tender, hence no meters were purchased.  

 

2. PMU:  

 Construction of VIP Toilets in Matatiele LM, the Unite had target to complete 326  VIP Toilets but only 108 VIP 

Toilets were completed at the end of 2019-20FY and this due to the fact that the late appointment of contractors. 

 PMU: Fobane Water Supply; the unite targeted to construct 2x 2ml reservoirs which is at 75% completed, 

construct of 16,14 km village reticulation which is 100% completed, install of 33 standpipes which is 100% 

completed, construct 1.0 km of access roads to the reservoirs which is 100% completed, and construct of 1 

Pump station at Tshisa Village which is 35% completed.   

 PMU: Matatiele RBIG, the project was not undertaken due to shortage of funds to complete the works, Additional 

funding has been approved by DWS and Variation Order has been approved for contractor to resume work. 



 PMU: Matatiele Water Ward 15, the Unite targeted to construct 1xnew reservoirs which was100% completed, 

complete 5x half reservoirs wich was 100% completed, construct 32 km of pressure pipelines which was 100% 

completed, install 105 stand pipes which was 100% completed, and completion of outstanding work in 5 

boreholes was not completed  and 2x booster pump stations was not completed for 5x  reservoirs, construct of 

32 km of pressure pipelines which was not completed and 105 stand pipes which was also not completed, the 

shortfall was due to the COVID – 19 Restrictions.  

 PMU: Matatiele Ward 5, Contractor was not successfully appointed due to COVID -19 Restrictions. 

 PMU: Matatiele Ward 7 Water Supply, Contractor failed to execute the work, the first notice of termination was 

issued. 

 PMU: Greater Mbizana Water supply Phase 1A-Reticulation, The unite targeted to construct 26,2 km Bulkline 

which was 100% completed & 3,8km Bulkline which was  80% completed,  Construct 20,9km Reticulation which 

was 100% completed , Construct 7 Reservoirs which was 100% Completed and Construct 243 standpipes which 

was 100% completed. This short was due to delays to establish other site offices due to COVID-19 Lockdown 

restrictions. 

 PMU: Mbizana:MWIG Prov Cap Exp, the unit targeted to construct  5 interim water supply schemes completed in 

Mbizana LM, however; only  80% of work has been completed, this was due to COVID -19 Lockdown 

restrictions. 

 PMU: Upgrading of Mbizana Town Sewer, this target was not met due to Delays due to COVID - 19 lockdown 

and the approval of the Environmental Impact Assessment for construction of pump stations and bulk sewer line. 

 PMU: Construction of VIP Toilets in Ntabankulu LM, of the 500 Targeted VIP Sanitation Toilets only 490 of the 

Targeted VIP Sanitation Toilets were completed due to COVID -19 Restrictions. 

 PMU: Ntabankulu:MWIG Prov Cap Exp, the unit targeted to construct and complete 4 interim water supply 

schemes, however; 1 interim water supply is completed, 95% of 2 interim water supply scheme has been 

completed and 1 interim water supply is at 40% completion. This margin is due to COVID -19 lockdown 

restrictions. 

 PMU: Ntabankulu Sewer Upgrade Prov, this project was not achieved due to the contractual dispute among the 

contracting parties. 



 PMU: Nyokweni-Bomvini Bulk Water Supply, this target could not be completed due to COVID – 19 Lockdown 

restriction. 

 PMU: Ntabankulu Ward 12 Water Supply, this was not met due to Poor performance of the contractor and 

community disputes. 

 PMU: Ntabankulu Ward 14 Water Supply, the target was not met due to COVID-19 Lockdown restrictions. 

 PMU: Construction of VIP Toilets in Umzimvubu LM, this target was not archived due to the late appointment of 

contractors, 

 PMU: Umzimvubu: MWIG Prov Cap Exp, the target was not met due to COVID-19 Lockdown restrictions. 

 PMU: Mount Ayliff Peri-Urban, this target was not completed due to COVID-19 Lockdown restrictions 

 PMU: Ntibane Water Project Prov Cap, this target was not archived due to the late appointment of contractors. 

 PMU: KwaBhaca Regional Water - MIG PR, this target could not be completed due to COVID – 19 Lockdown 

restriction. 

 PMU: ISD COORDINATION, this target could not be completed due to COVID – 19 Lockdown restriction.  

 

3. WSP:  

 Refurbishment and Replacement of Water Infrastructure – Matatiele, this target was not met due to delays by the 

contractor to undertake refurbishment work. 

 WSP: Refurbishment and Replacement of Water Infrastructure – Mnceba water scheme, Initial section of the 

scheme refurbishment was done and completed and the next phase never commenced as the tender adverts for 

additional works never done due to COVID -19 lockdown. 

 WSP: Refurbishment and Replacement of Water Infrastructure – Mbizana Ponds, Initial tender could not be 

awarded as there was no responsive tenderer, on re-advertising the tender was awarded in June 2020. 

 WSP: Building Maintenance & Alterations, this target was not met because during the mid-term budget 

adjustment, the vote for this target was moved to CPS Unit and no further activities were undertaken by IDMS. 

 

Measures Taken to improve Performance 

 



1. WCDM: Supply and Install Bulk, Domestic and Commercial water meters, the project will be evaluated during the first 

quarter of 2020/21 FY and appointment is anticipated within the 2nd Quarter of 2020/21 FY. 

 

2. PMU:  

 

 Construction of VIP Toilets in Matatiele LM, the Unit will apply for rollover to complete (by 30 October 2020) the 

remaining targets. 

 PMU: Fobane Water Supply; the unite is to revised works program and completed the remaining work by 30 

October 2020. 

 PMU: Matatiele RBIG, the unite is to revised works program and completed the remaining work by 30 September 

2020.  

 PMU: Matatiele Water Ward 15, the unite is to revised works program and completed the remaining work by 30 

October 2020. 

 PMU: Matatiele Ward 5, Contractor to be appointed and Rollover Application, target to be completed by 30 June 

2021. 

 PMU: Matatiele Ward 7 Water Supply, Roll Over application and testing to be completed  by 30June 2021. 

 PMU: Greater Mbizana Water supply Phase 1A-Reticulation, the unite is to revised works program and 

completed the remaining work by 30 September 2020 

 PMU: Mbizana:MWIG Prov Cap Exp, the unite is to revised works program and completed the remaining work by 

30 September 2020 

 PMU: Upgrading of Mbizana Town Sewer, the project will be rolled over, construction of pump stations and bulk 

sewer line are on halt and the remaining targets to be completed by 30 June 2021. 

 PMU: Construction of VIP Toilets in Ntabankulu LM, the unite is to revised works program and completed the 

remaining work by 30 October 2020 

 PMU: Ntabankulu:MWIG Prov Cap Exp, To speed up the program, Rollover application and revised works 

programme, target to be completed by 30 September 2020. 



 PMU: Ntabankulu Sewer Upgrade Prov, Parties to find common grounds on verification of previously completed 

works by 30 August 2020. Projects to be rolled over to 2020/21 FY, remaining works to be completed by 31 

December 2020. 

 PMU: Nyokweni-Bomvini Bulk Water Supply, the unite is to revised works program and completed the remaining 

work by 31 December  2020 

 PMU: Ntabankulu Ward 12 Water Supply, the Unite to address community disputes, Projects to be rolled over to 

20/21 FY, remaining targets to be completed by 30 June 2021. 

 PMU: Ntabankulu Ward 14 Water Supply, Roll over application and the remaining works to be completed by 30 

November 2020. 

 PMU: Construction of VIP Toilets in Umzimvubu LM, Roll over application, Revise Works Program and Complete 

the Project in Quarter 1 of 2020 2021 Financial Year 

 PMU: Umzimvubu: MWIG Prov Cap Exp, Roll over application and the remaining works to be completed by 31 

October 2020. 

 PMU: Mount Ayliff Peri-Urban, Roll over application and the remaining works to be completed by 31 March 2021. 

 PMU: Ntibane Water Project Prov Cap, Roll over application and the remaining works to be completed by 30 

June 2021. 

 PMU: KwaBhaca Regional Water - MIG PR, Roll over application and the remaining works to be completed by 

31 December 2020 

 

3. WSP:  

 Refurbishment and Replacement of Water Infrastructure – Matatiele, to terminate the contract and re-advertise 

for a new service provider by 30 June 2021. 

 WSP: Refurbishment and Replacement of Water Infrastructure – Mnceba water scheme, Project advertisements 

to be made very early at the start of the financial year. Advertisement to be done by 30th September 2020 

 WSP: Refurbishment and Replacement of Water Infrastructure – Mbizana Ponds, Speed up implementation to 

complete with the 2020/21 financial year. Implementation is underway and is due for completion by December 

2020 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

8.6. PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

COD

E 

RESULT EXPLANATION Local 

Economic 

Developmen

t 

Spatial 

Plannin

g 

GI

S 

EVALUATIO

N RATING 

PERCENTAGE 

PERFORMANC

E  

TOTAL 

OF 

TARGET

S MET 

TOTAL 

OF 

TARGET

S NOT 

MET 

N/A Target Not 

Yet 

Measured 

No target for the 

period under 

review 

0 0 0 0 0% 

  

  

R Target Not 

Met 

0% < = 

(target/actual) 

<75% 

2 1 1 4 22% 

O Target 

Almost 

Met 

75% < = 

(target/actual) 

<100% 

1 1 0 2 11% 

G Target Met (target/actual) = 

100% 

6 2 4 12 67% 

67% 



G2 Target 

Well Met 

100% < 

(target/actual) 

<150% 

0 0 0 0 0% 

B Target 

Extremely 

Well Met 

150% < = 

(target/actual)  

0 0 0 0 0% 

33% 

Total  9 4 5 18 100% 

   

 

PED Performance Highlights for 2019-20 FY  

 

Of a total of 18 targets for the period under review, the Planning and Economic Development Department has met 67% and 

33% of targets not met.  

 

 

 

Challenges/Non Achieved Targets 

 

The targets not met were 33%. This is attributed to the following: 

 

1. LED:  

 Agri-Parks – (7) hectares of maize production was converted to Dry Bean Production due to unfavourable 

climatic conditions and five (5) hectares was not planted due lack of farmer readiness.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Due to the covid-19 pandemic outbreak that led to the national lockdown, the initial targeted dates for 

installation of irrigation systems were delayed, thus affecting the planting of vegetables in some areas as 



some seedlings had exceeded their storage life. Potato production was also affected, as the suitable planting 

dates had exceeded.         

 The DST Meeting was scheduled for 17th Feb and was postponed; and further scheduled for 10th March. 

Both meetings were postponed due to unavailability of stakeholders. In March, stakeholders were hesitant to 

travel and attend meeting due to the Covid-19 outbreak. 

 On recruitment of 50 Resident Fashion Designer beneficiaries, the committee for the selection of 

beneficiaries has not been appointed by ANDA, therefore beneficiaries could not be selected. 

 SMMEs allocation to Zone Centres, the closing date for the submission of bids by SMMEs was 21 June 2020. 

SMMEs have not been recommended as this exercise was to be undertaken by the Bid Evaluation 

Committee. Sitting of the committee was disrupted by the closure of Municipal offices for fumigation 

purposes. 

 

2. Spatial Planning:  

 Q4 Planners Forum could not be held due to lockdown, virtual meeting was set and quorum was not met. 

 DDP launch was planned to take place in September 2019. The Launch has since been put on hold due to 

budget limitations and Covid-19 which later sufficed in 2020. 

 

3. GIS: Disaster Mapping for 2 Local Municipalities: The procurement process for the Project had commenced, but was 

however cancelled due to time limitations resulting from the lockdown. BTO closed the system and procurement was 

no longer permitted 

 

 

Measures Taken to improve Performance 

 

1. LED:  

 Agri-Parks – The project has been budgeted for in the 2020/21 FY and the same commodities will be 

implemented. Planting dates will also be reviewed to also ensure that planting start on time. 



 DST Meetings: Hold virtual skype and zoom meetings until regulations permit physical meetings. 

 On recruitment of Resident Fashion Designer Programme beneficiaries, it is the view of the Agency that 

beneficiary selection must be undertaken when the centres are ready for the programme to take off. 

 The BEC will continue with the recommendation in the 2020/21 FY for allocation of SMMEs to Zone Centres. 

2. Spatial Planning:  

 Planners Forum meetings to resume in the next financial year. 

 The DDP launch will be web-based and also undertaken print media. 

 

3. GIS: Disaster Mapping for 2 Local Municipalities: GIS will consider the Project during the adjustment budget process 

in the 2020/21 FY. 

 

Notes on the Annual Performance Report 

AG will once again perform its audit on Basic Service Delivery indicators 

 Discrepancies noted: 

 Reporting is not aligned to Targets set - quantitative targets vs qualitative reporting, percentage target vs number reported 

 Targets not measured 

 POE Referencing - not done. Scanned documents were a mixture/combination of more than one project/not scanned in a 

sequence that is user friendly to the reviewer. 

 POE not aligned to the Annual Performance Report - figures in the report do not correspond to those in the POE. 

 Some targets not met but budget is all spent on that certain project   



 Reasons for non-achievement do not give a clear picture on what has not been achieved 

 Corrective Measures do not give any comfort/direction on how the target will be achieved in future, there are no timeframes 

indicated for some targets not achieved. 

 We have started project listings - and are assisting in tallying the POE to the report. 

 Most of the targets not met were having reasons attributed to the lockdown regulations which prohibited public gathering due to 

the Covid 19 pandemic.  



9. Assessment of the performance of External Service Provider 

 

The monitoring of the service provider performance is ensured through the signing of the Service Level Agreement. It is 

currently being done by user departments with an assigned individual to monitor the performance of a certain service provider 

in a specific project. The end user department provides quarterly reports to the SCM unit, which is consolidated and presented 

as part of the Quarterly Performance Report. Service providers who fail to perform are reported to SCM and the necessary 

action is taken including the termination of the contract and or cancellation of an order. 

The table below depicts the performance of service providers for the period under review: 2019-2020 FY. 

 

BTO Department 

END 

USER  

NAME OF SERVICE 

PROVIDER 

TYPE OF 

SERVICE 

DURATIO

N 

ASSESS

MENT OF 

SERVICE 

PROVIDE

R 

CHALLEN

GES 

CORRECT

IVE 

MAESURE

S 

COMME

NTS 

 

 

 

K. 

SIBUTA 

FNB BANK ACCOUNT 

SERVICES 

 

5 YEARS 

 

Doing well 

 

None 

 

None 

 none  

CFO LATERAL UNISON 

INSURANCE BROKERS 

(PTY) LTD 

PROVISIONING 

OF SHORT TERM 

INSURANCE  

1 YEAR Doing 

Well 

None None none  

T 

MAZWAN

E 

MAFULO 

INVESTMENTS 6 (PTY) 

LTD 

PROPERTY 

LEASE 

AGREEMENT 

10 

YEARS 

 

Doing 

 

None 

 

None 

 

none 

 



END 

USER  

NAME OF SERVICE 

PROVIDER 

TYPE OF 

SERVICE 

DURATIO

N 

ASSESS

MENT OF 

SERVICE 

PROVIDE

R 

CHALLEN

GES 

CORRECT

IVE 

MAESURE

S 

COMME

NTS 

 

 

 

Well 

T 

MAZWAN

E 

BLACK STONE 

PROPERTIES 55 CC 

PROPERTY 

LEASE 

AGREEMENT 

5 YEARS  

 

Doing 

Well 

 

 

None 

 

 

None 

 

 

none 

 

CFO GADALANI TRADING 

ENTERPRISE CC 

SUPPLY AND 

DELIVERY OF 

STATIONERY 

2 YEARS Done very 

well 

None None  

 

None 

 

CFO HEED SA(PTY) LTD SUPPLY AND 

DELIVERY OF 

STATIONERY 

2 YEARS Done  

well 

None  none  

 

none 

 

 

 

K. 

SIBUTA 

ZENZO TRADING AND 

PROJECTS (PTY) LTD 

VAT 

REVIEW,ASSESS

MENT, 

COMPLIANCE 

AND RECOVERY 

FOR ANDM 

2 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None  

 

 

 

 



END 

USER  

NAME OF SERVICE 

PROVIDER 

TYPE OF 

SERVICE 

DURATIO

N 

ASSESS

MENT OF 

SERVICE 

PROVIDE

R 

CHALLEN

GES 

CORRECT

IVE 

MAESURE

S 

COMME

NTS 

 

 

 

None 

T 

MAZWAN

E 

UTILITIES WORLD 

(PTY)LTD 

PREPAID WATER 

VENDING 

SYSTEM 

 2 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None  

None 

 

S Khuzo THEKWINI TOYOTA REPAIRS & 

MAINTENANCE 

OF ANDM 

VEHICLES 

3 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None None  

S Khuzo DERICKS 

ENGENEERING 

REPAIRS & 

MAINTENANCE 

OF ANDM 

VEHICLES 

3 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None None  

S Khuzo TYRES & MORE 

KOKSTAD 

REPAIRS & 

MAINTENANCE 

OF ANDM 

VEHICLES 

3 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None None  



END 

USER  

NAME OF SERVICE 

PROVIDER 

TYPE OF 

SERVICE 

DURATIO

N 

ASSESS

MENT OF 

SERVICE 

PROVIDE

R 

CHALLEN

GES 

CORRECT

IVE 

MAESURE

S 

COMME

NTS 

 

 

 

S Khuzo CAPITAL PANEL 

BEATERS 

REPAIRS & 

MAINTENANCE 

OF ANDM 

VEHICLES 

3 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None None  

S Khuzo JOHNSON DELTA REPAIRS & 

MAINTENANCE 

OF ANDM 

VEHICLES 

3 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None None  

S Khuzo ISUZU TRUCKS PORT 

SHEPSTONE 

REPAIRS & 

MAINTENANCE 

OF ANDM 

VEHICLES 

3 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None None  

S Khuzo IAN DICKIE & CO (PTY) 

LTD 

REPAIRS & 

MAINTENANCE 

OF ANDM 

VEHICLES 

3 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None None  

S Khuzo THOMPSON MOTORS REPAIRS & 

MAINTENANCE 

OF ANDM 

VEHICLES 

3 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None None  



END 

USER  

NAME OF SERVICE 

PROVIDER 

TYPE OF 

SERVICE 

DURATIO

N 

ASSESS

MENT OF 

SERVICE 

PROVIDE

R 

CHALLEN

GES 

CORRECT

IVE 

MAESURE

S 

COMME

NTS 

 

 

 

S Khuzo IVECO REPAIRS & 

MAINTENANCE 

OF ANDM 

VEHICLES 

3 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None None  

S Khuzo MORTIMERS TOYOTA REPAIRS & 

MAINTENANCE 

OF ANDM 

VEHICLES 

3 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None None  

S Khuzo TFM REPAIRS & 

MAINTENANCE 

OF ANDM 

VEHICLES 

3 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None None  

CFO BONAKUDE 

CONSULTING (PTY) 

LTD 

REVENUE 

ENHANCEMENT 

PHASE1 

24 Months Doing 

Well 

None None None  

S Khuzo BONAKUDE 

CONSULTING (PTY) 

LTD 

UPDATE OF THE 

INFRASTRUCTUR

E FIXED ASSETS 

REGISTER 

3 YEARS Doing 

Well 

None None None  



END 

USER  

NAME OF SERVICE 

PROVIDER 

TYPE OF 

SERVICE 

DURATIO

N 

ASSESS

MENT OF 

SERVICE 

PROVIDE

R 

CHALLEN

GES 

CORRECT

IVE 

MAESURE

S 

COMME

NTS 

 

 

 

A. 

NQAKWA

NA 

QHOLO CIVILS CONSTRUCTION 

OF MOUNT 

FRERE STORES 

8 

MONTHS 

Doing 

Well 

None None None  

 

CPS Department 

END USER NAME OF 

SERVICE 

PROVIDER 

TYPE OF 

SERVICE 

DURATION  ASSESSMEN

T OF 

SERVICE 

CHALLENGE

S 

CORRECTIV

E 

MEASURES 

COMMENT

S 

ICT/ MS 

LUVALO 

ITNA SOFTWARE 

LICENSING & 

MAINTENACN

E (DISASTER 

RECOVERY) 

3 YEARS, 

RENEWABL

E  

Doing  well None None None 

MR L 

MATIWAN

E 

DLS 

SECURITY 

SERVICES 

SECURITY 

SERVICES 

(NTABANKULU

) 

24 MONTHS Doing well None  None None 



END USER NAME OF 

SERVICE 

PROVIDER 

TYPE OF 

SERVICE 

DURATION  ASSESSMEN

T OF 

SERVICE 

CHALLENGE

S 

CORRECTIV

E 

MEASURES 

COMMENT

S 

MR L 

MATIWAN

E 

DODOP 

SECURITY 

SERVICES 

SECURITY 

SERVICES 

(MOUNT 

FRERE SITES) 

24 MONTHS Doing very 

well 

None  None None 

MR L 

MATIWAN

E 

UYABONWA 

SECURITY 

SERVICES 

SECURITY 

SERVICES 

(MBIZANA 

SITES) 

24 MONTHS Doing very 

well 

None  None None 

MR L 

MATIWAN

E 

PHIKO 

SECURITY 

SERVICES 

SECURITY 

SERVICES 

(MOUNT 

AYLIFF SITES) 

24 MONTHS Doing very 

well 

None  None None 

ICT/ MS 

LUVALO 

ITNA VMWARE  

(DISASTER 

RECOVERY) 

3 YEARS, 

RENEWABL

E  

Doing very 

well 

None None None 

ICT/ MS 

LUVALO 

ITNA MIMECAST 

MANAGEMEN

T SERVICE 

(DISASTER 

RECOVERY) 

3 YEARS, 

RENEWABL

E  

Doing very 

well 

None  None None 



END USER NAME OF 

SERVICE 

PROVIDER 

TYPE OF 

SERVICE 

DURATION  ASSESSMEN

T OF 

SERVICE 

CHALLENGE

S 

CORRECTIV

E 

MEASURES 

COMMENT

S 

ICT/ MS 

LUVALO 

ITNA BACKUP 

SOLUTION 

(DISASTER 

RECOVERY) 

3 YEARS, 

RENEWABL

E  

Doing very 

well 

None None None 

ICT/ MS 

LUVALO 

ITNA ELECTRONIC 

EMAIL 

MANAGEMEN

T (DISASTER 

RECOVERY) 

3 YEARS, 

RENEWABL

E  

Doing very 

well  

None None None 

T.GAGELA 

KC AND SC 

SON 

TRADING 

ENTERPRIS

E 

ICT 

HARDWARE 

EQUIPMENT 12 MONTHS 

Doing very 

well NONE None None 

        LED Department 

END USER  NAME OF 

SERVICE 

PROVIDE  

TYPE OF 

SERVICE 

DURATIO

N 

ASSESSMEN

T OF 

SERVICE 

CHALLENGE

S 

CORRECTIV

E 

MEASURES 

COMMENT

S 

S.NTSIKILAN

A 

MBALI 

RURAL 

DEVELOPER

AGRI-PARK 

DEVELOPMENT 

PROGRAMME 

3 YEARS GOOD NONE NONE NONE 



END USER  NAME OF 

SERVICE 

PROVIDE  

TYPE OF 

SERVICE 

DURATIO

N 

ASSESSMEN

T OF 

SERVICE 

CHALLENGE

S 

CORRECTIV

E 

MEASURES 

COMMENT

S 

S JV KAAZI 

INVESTMENT

S 

FOR ANDM 

S.NTSIKILAN

A 

OCEANECON 

CONSULTING 

(PTY) LTD 

ANDM 

COASTALL 

ECONOMY 

SECTOR PLAN 

6 

MONTHS 

GOOD NONE NONE NONE 

S.NTSIKILAN

A 

MVIMBELI 

GIS 

MAPPING 

SERVICE 

GIS 

AGRICULTURAL 

ACTIVITIES 

DATA 

CAPTURER:AG

RI-PARK 

MAPPING 

4 

MONTHS 

GOOD NONE NONE NONE 

 

 

 

       IDMS Department 

END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

WSA/Mr Mdutyana MBSA  CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS 

DISTRICT 

INTEGRATED 

TRANSPORT PLAN 

(DITP) 

7 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

WSA/MR 

Mdutyana  

ENGINEERING ADVICE 

AND SERVICES (PTY) 

RURAL ROAD GRANT 

(PRAMS) 

ONGOING Doing very 

well 

None None 

WSA/Mr Mdutyana  Gibb PTY Ltd Water safety plan 08 Months  Doing very 

well 

None None 

WSA/MR E DZIDE MAISHA DEVELOPMENT 

ENGINEERS 

DETAILED 

FEASIBILITY FOR 

UMZIMVUBU WARD 3 

AND 17 

ON 

GOING 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

WSA/MR E DZIDE KAGO CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS 

DETAILED 

FEASIBILITY FOR 

NTABANKULU WARD 3 

AND 4 (STAGE TWO) 

ON 

GOING 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

WSA/MR 

Mdutyana 

REFLECTIVE THINKING 

(PTY) LTD 

DETAILED 

FEASIBILITY FOR 

MBIZANA WARD 11,14 

AND 16 (STAGE TWO) 

12 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

WSA/MR 

Mdutyana 

MBSA  CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS 

DETAILED 

FEASIBILITY FOR 

UMZIMVUBU WARDS 

20 AND 21 (STAGE 

TWO) 

12 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None  None 

WSA/MR 

Mdutyana  

DEEDSCON 

CONSULTANTS CC 

DETAILED 

FEASIBILITY FOR 

NTABANKULU WARD 

12 AND 14 (STAGE 

TWO) 

ON 

GOING 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

WSA/MR 

Mdutyana 

UMPISI CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS 

DETAILED 

FEASIBILITY FOR 

MBIZANA WARD 

10,12,13 AND 15 

(STAGE TWO) 

ON 

GOING  

Doing very 

well 

None None 

WSA/MR E DZIDE IQHAWE CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS 

DETAILED 

FEASIBILITY FOR 

MATATIELE WARD 4 

(STAGE TWO) 

ON 

GOING 

Doing very 

well 

None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

WSA/MR 

MDUTYANA 

SOKHANI 

DEVELOPMENT AND 

CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS 

DETAILED 

FEASIBILITY FOR 

MBIZANA WARDS 

21,23 AND 24 (STAGE 

TWO) 

ON 

GOING 

Doing very 

well 

None  None  

WSA/MR 

MDUTYANA 

GABA CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS 

DETAILED 

FEASIBILITY FOR 

NTABANKULU WARD 

1,5 AND 6 (STAGE 

TWO) 

ON 

GOING 

Doing very 

well 

None  None  

WSA/MR 

MDUTYANA  

GABA CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS 

DETAILED 

FEASIBILITY FOR 

NTABANKULU WARD 

1,5 AND 6 (STAGE 

TWO) 

12 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None  None  

WSA/MR 

MDUTYANA  

IMBUMBA 

CONSULTANTS 

DETAILED 

FEASIBILITY FOR 

NTABANKULU WARD 

17 AND 18 (STAGE 

TWO) 

ON 

GOING 

Doing very 

well 

None  None  



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

WSA/MR 

MDUTYANA 

ZINZAME ENGINEERS DETAILED 

FEASIBILITY FOR 

WATER TRATMENT  

ON 

GOING  

Doing very 

well 

None  None  

Mr DLOKWENI UHAMBISO 

CONSULTANT 

BOMVININ NYOKWENI 

W/S (Source 

development) 

ONGOING Doing very 

well 

None None 

N. BHUNGE UMSO CONSTRUCTION 

(PTY) LTD 

BOMVININ NYOKWENI 

W/S (Source 

development) 

ONGOING Doing very 

well 

None None 

A 

MPHEPHANDUKU 

CAMDEKON ENGINEERS GREATER MBIZANA 

WATER SUPPLY: BULK 

LINE, RESERVOIRS 

AND RETICULATION 

ON 

GOING  

Doing very 

well 

None None 

A 

MPHEPHANDUKU 

PHUMELELA JV KARA GREATER MBIZANA 

WATER SUPPLY 

PROJECT -PH1A 

CONTRACT 1A 

12 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

A 

MPHEPHANDUKU 

NAGENI CIVILS GREATER MBIZANA 

WATER SUPPLY 

PROJECT -PH1A 

CONTRACT 1B 

2 YEARS Doing very 

well 

None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

A MPHENDUKU NAGENI CIVILS GREATER MBIZANA 

WATER SUPPLY 

PROJECT -PH1A 

CONTRACT 1C 

2 YEARS Doing very 

well 

None None 

MR DLOKWENI  S ZONKO CONSULTINF 

CC 

GREATER MBIZANA 

WATER SUPPLY 

PROJECT -PH1A 

CONTRACT 1C 

12 

MONTH 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MR DLOKWENI UBUHLE BEMPISI 

CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS 

GREATER MBIZANA 

WATER SUPPLY 

PROJECT -WARD 13-

DESIGN 

DEVELOPMENT 

12 

MONTH 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

F. MPISANE  UMSO CONSTRUCTION 

(PTY) LTD 

MT.AYLIFF WATER 

WASTE TREATMENT 

WORKS DESIGN, 

BULD AND OPERATE 

36 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

F. MPISANE  NOVUMBU/IVIWE JV MT.AYLIFF PERI -

URBAN 

16 

MONTH 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

F. MPISANE  PHUMELELA JV KARA MT.AYLIFF PERI -

URBAN 

16 

MONTH 

Doing very 

well 

None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

F. MPISANE  BITLINE MT.AYLIFF PERI -

URBAN 

16 

MONTH 

Doing very 

well 

    

F. MPISANE  MABONA CIVILS AND 

PLANT HIRE 

MT.AYLIFF PERI -

URBAN 

16 

MONTH 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

F. MPISANE  LG CONSTRUCTION UMZIMVUBU WATER 

SUPPLY WARD 14 

6 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

F. MPISANE  LNP CONSTRUCTION UMZIMVUBU WATER 

SUPPLY WARD 14 

10 

MONTHS 

Poor Contractor 

is very slow 

Terminate 

contract. 

F. MPISANE  MABONA CIVILS AND 

PLANT HIRE 

UMZIMVUBU WATER 

SUPPLY WARD 14 

5 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

F. MPISANE  XESIBE CONSTRUCTION UMZIMVUBU WARD 13 

WATER SUPPLY 

11 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

F. MPISANE  IMBUMBA 

CONSULTANTS 

UMZIMVUBU WARD 13 

WATER SUPPLY 

10 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

N. GULE NCI CONSORTIUM MATATIELE WARD 5 

WATER SUPPLY 

PROJECT: EXTENSION 

OF SCOPE 

60 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

N. GULE SISONKE JV WHITE 

HAZY 

MATATIELE WARD 5 

WATER SUPPLY 

PROJECT: EXTENSION 

OF SCOPE 

18 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

GULE WPCP FOBANE SUB 

REGIONAL WATER 

SUPPLY 

60 

WEEKS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI SIVUYASONKE (PTY) 

LTD 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

50 VIP TOILETS IN 

NTABANKULU WARD 6 

3 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI GAMADZE TRADING AND 

PROJECTS 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

50 VIP TOILETS IN 

NTABANKULU WARD 6 

3 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI ATS CIVILS AND 

TRADING 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

50 VIP TOILETS IN 

NTABANKULU WARD 6 

3 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI SLATSHA TRADING AND 

PROJECTS 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

50 VIP TOILETS IN 

NTABANKULU WARD 6 

3 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

MSEBI NOMABANDLA 

INVESTMENTS 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

50 VIP TOILETS IN 

NTABANKULU WARD 6 

3 

MONTHS 

Slow 

Progress 

Deceased 

(Owner of 

the 

company) 

Re- 

advertise 

MSEBI NKAMANGANA 

CONSTRUCTION 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

50 VIP TOILETS IN 

NTABANKULU WARD 5 

3 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI NKWALI AM TRADING 

(PTY) LTD 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

50 VIP TOILETS IN 

NTABANKULU WARD 5 

3 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI CHIC-CHAC BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISE 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

50 VIP TOILETS IN 

NTABANKULU WARD 5 

3 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI ALUNGA 

CONSTRUCTION CC 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

50 VIP TOILETS IN 

NTABANKULU WARD 5 

3 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI NKWALIZ GROUP (PTY) 

LTD 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

50 VIP TOILETS IN 

NTABANKULU WARD 5 

3 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

MSEBI PUMP GURU (PTY) LTD REFURBISHMENT OF 

WATER & SANITATION 

SCHEME MATATIELE 

6 months Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI BZENG GROUP UPGRADING & 

REHABILITATION OF 

THE MUNICIPAL 

UNITERUPTED 

POWER SYSTEM 

1 Month Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI LUPHAWU TRADING 

(PTY) LTD 

Matatiele ward 15 water 

supply :contract1-

completion of 

outstanding works 

2 Months Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI QHOLLO CIVILS CONSTRUCTION OF 

MOUNT FRERE 

STORES 

8 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI PZL PROJECTS CC JV 

REDDY BIO-CLEAN CC 

MAINTENANCE OF 

WATER AND 

SANITATION 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

SCHEMES: 

NTABANKULU 

3 years Doing very 

well 

None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

MSEBI PK VALVES CC MAINTENANCE OF 

WATER AND 

SANITATION 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

SCHEMES: MBIZANA 

3 years Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI PK VALVES CC MAINTENANCE OF 

WATER AND 

SANITATION 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

SCHEMES: 

UMZIMVUBU 

3 years Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI Novubu Construction MAINTENANCE OF 

WATER AND 

SANITATION 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

SCHEMES: 

MATATIELE 

3 years Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI LG CONSTRUCTION GREATER MBIZANA 

WATER SUPPLY ZONE 

A&C WARD 7 

ENYANISWENI 

VILLAGE 

8 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

MSEBI ZAMAZIZI CIVIL 

CONSTRUCTION 

UPGRADE OF 

NTABANKULU 

OXIDATION POND 

6 months Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI NKAMANGANA 

CONSTRUCTION 

DROUGH RELIEF 

PROJECT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

PUMP HOUSE AT 

MVENYANE 

NTABANKULU 

6 months Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI NAGENI CIVILS GREATER MBIZANA 

WATER SUPPLY 

PROJECT WARD 27 

QOBO 

&MFUNDISWENI 

8 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI NAGENI CIVILS GREATER MBIZANA 

WATER SUPPLY 

PROJECT WARD 4&27 

CONTRACT 3B 

8 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI INTLANGULA 86 

TRADING ENTERPRISE 

GREATER MBIZANA 

WATER SUPPLY 

WARD4&27 

MKHANDLWENI 

VILLGE CONTRACT 3C 

10 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

MSEBI BITLINE SA 1060 CC GREATER MBIZANA 

WATER SUPPLY 

WARD27 

KWASLANGWE & 

ESIKHULU 

8 

MONTHS 

Doing Well None None 

MSEBI IIMBOVANE (PTY) Ltd CONSTRUCTION OF 

VIP TOILETS 

UMZIMVUBU WARD 19 

KUMNTWANA 

CONTRACT A 

4 

MONTHS 

Did well None None 

MSEBI SHEARER GROUP CONSTRUCTION OF 

VIP TOILETS 

UMZIMVUBU WARD 19 

KUMNTWANA 

CONTRACT B 

4 

MONTHS 

Did well None None 

MSEBI LP HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSULTING 

PROVISION OF 

HEALTH & SAFETY TO 

ANDM CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

3 YEARS Doing Well None None 

MSEBI NAKHANE PROJECTS & 

SAFETY CONSULTING 

PROVISION OF 

HEALTH & SAFETY TO 

ANDM CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

3 YEARS Doing Well None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

MSEBI GW HEALTH & SAFETY 

SPECIALISTS 

PROVISION OF 

HEALTH & SAFETY TO 

ANDM CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

3 YEARS Doing Well None None 

MSEBI YONWABANI 

CONSTRUCTION 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

VIP TOILETS 

UMZIMVUBU WARD 19 

KUMNTWANA 

CONTRACT C 

4 

MONTHS 

Did well None None 

MSEBI KHULABHUNGANE JV 

PINX 

NTIBANE WATER 

SUPPLY 

SCHEME:MANQILWENI 

& MGUNGUDLOVU 

12 

MONTHS 

Doing Well None None 

MSEBI HYBRID CONTROL 

CORPORATION 

MAINTENANCE OF 

WASTE WATER 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

TELEMETRY 

8 

MONTHS 

Doing Well None None 

MSEBI MBHAMLA CIVILS CONSTRUCTION OF 

VIP TOILETS 

UMZIMVUBU WARD 19 

KUMNTWANA 

CONTRACT D 

4 

MONTHS 

Doing Well None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

MSEBI NOMAFUSI PROJECTS CONSTRUCTION OF 

VIP TOILETS 

UMZIMVUBU WARD 19 

KUMNTWANA 

CONTRACT E 

4 

MONTHS 

Doing Well None None 

MSEBI FLYING COLOURS 

TRADING 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

VIP TOILETS 

UMZIMVUBU WARD 19 

KUMNTWANA 

CONTRACT F 

4 

MONTHS 

Doing Well None None 

MSEBI MASILO PROJECTS CONSTRUCTION OF 

VIP TOILETS IN 

MATATIELE WARD 5 

PART A 

3 

MONTHS 

Did well None None 

MSEBI SLATSHA TRADING AND 

PROJECTS 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

VIP TOILETS IN 

MATATIELE WARD 5 

PART B 

3 

MONTHS 

Did well None None 

MSEBI ALUNGA 

CONSTRUCTION CC 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

VIP TOILETS IN 

MATATIELE WARD 5 

PART C 

3 

MONTHS 

Did well None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

MSEBI LIYOLE CIVILS REFURBISHMENT OF 

MBIZANA OXIDATION 

PONDS 

6 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI CYCLE CIVILS MATATIELE WARD 18 

& 22 WATER SUPPLY 

SCHEME2, PHALANE & 

EPIPHANI 

12 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI MABONA CIVILS AND 

PLANT HIRE 

MATATIELE WARD 5 

WATER SUPPLY 

CONTRACT 3 

MATOLWENI 

7 

MONTHS 

Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI OLON CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS JV IPM 

PLNT HIRE 

PLANNING,DESIGN & 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

WSIG FUNDED 

PROJECTS 

3 YEARS Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI BM INFRASTRUCTURE 

JV MAGNACORP 485 

PLANNING,DESIGN & 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

WSIG FUNDED 

PROJECTS 

3 YEARS Doing very 

well 

None None 

MSEBI ZIINZAME CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS/CYCLE 

PROJECTS/UBUNTU 

BAM JV 

PLANNING,DESIGN & 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

WSIG FUNDED 

PROJECTS 

3 YEARS Doing very 

well 

None None 



END-USER Name of Service Provider Type of Service Duration Assessment 

of Service 

Challenges Corrective 

Measures 

MSEBI EMLANJENI JV PLANNING,DESIGN & 

CONSTRUCTION OF 

WSIG FUNDED 

PROJECTS 

3 YEARS Doing very 

well 

None None 
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Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval 

 

 

 
The accounting officer  is required by the Municipal Finance Management  Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain 
adequate accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity  of the financial statements and 
related financial information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that 
the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the municipality as at the end of the financial year and 
the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to 
express an independent  opinion on the financial statements and were given unrestricted access to all financial 
records and related data. 

 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines  and directives issued by the Accounting Standards 
Board. 

 
The financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. 

 
The accounting officer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control 
established by the municipality and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. 
To enable the accounting officer to meet these responsibilities, the accounting officer sets standards for internal 
control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper 
delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate 
segregation  of  duties  to  ensure  an acceptable  level of  risk. These  controls  are  monitored  throughout the 
municipality  and  all  employees   are  required  to  maintain  the  highest  ethical  standards  in  ensuring  the 
municipality's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The 
focus of risk management  in the municipality is on identifying,  assessing,  managing  and monitoring all known 
forms of risk across the municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavours 
to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and 
managed within predetermined procedures and constraints. 

 
The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations  given by management, that 
the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the 
preparation  of the  financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide  only 
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or deficit. 

 
The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality's cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2021 and, in the 
light of this review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the municipality has or has access to 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 

 
The municipality  is largely dependent  on the government  for continued  funding of  operations. The financial 
statements are prepared  on the basis that the municipality is a going concern  and that the government has 
neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the municipality. 

 
Although the accounting officer is primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the municipality, he is supported 

by the municipality's audit committee. 
 

The  Internal Auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the municipality's financial 

statements. 
 

In terms of Government  Gazette No 43582, the Finance Minister stated in terms of section 177 ( 1) (b) of the 

Local Government : Municipal Finance Management Act of 2003 (Act No.56 of 2003), exempt municipalities and 
municipalentities from the provisions of that Act, as set out in the schedule. 

 
Subject to the condition in paragraph 2 of the schedule, municipalities and municipal entities are exempted, for 

the 2019/20 financial year, from complying with the d       ·     in sections 126 (1) and (2), 127 (1) and (2), (129) 
(1) and 133 (2) of the Local Government : Municipal F nance                          ct, 2003 (Act  No 56 of2003). 

ORr. 
The condition is that, Municipalities and Municipal e  tities muCJ J!.      to paragraph 1 
of government gazette No 43582 within 2 months a    r the dea<fl &..rov1sion. 

 

o +Nov 202o 
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The financial statements set out on pages 7 to 74, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
authorised and duly signed by  the accounting officer on 12 October 2020 

 
 
 
 

Z H Sikhundla 
Municipal Manager 
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Accounting Officer's Report 

 

 

 
The accounting officer submits his report for the year ended 30 June 2020. 

 
1.     Review of activities 

 
Main business and operations 

 
Net surplus of the municipality was R 459,306,377 (2019: surplus R 533,761,902). 

 
2.     Going concern 

 
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. 

This basis presumes  that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets 

and  settlement  of  liabilities,  contingent  obligations  and  commitments  will  occur  in  the  ordinary  course  of 

business. 
 

3.     Subsequentevenm 
 

The accounting officer is not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial 
year. 

 
4.     Corporate governance 

 
General 

 
The accounting officer is committed to business integrity, transparency and professionalism in all its activities. As 

part of this commitment, the accounting officer supports the highest standards of corporate governance and the 

ongoing development of best practice. 
 

5.     Interest in controlled entities 
 

Details of the municipality's investment in controlled entities are set out in note 12. 
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Statement of Financial Position  as at 30 June 2020 
Figures in Rand  Note(s)  2020  2019 

Restated* 

 
Assets 

 

Current Assets 

Operating lease asset 

Inventories 

Receivables from exchange transactions 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 

VAT receivable 

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

 
Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets 

Heritage Assets 

Investments in controlled entities 

Investments 

 
 

Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets 
TotalAssets 

 
Llabilltles 

 

Current Liabilities 

Operating lease liability 

Unspent conditionalgrants and receipts 

Provisions 

Current Portion of Long Term Loan 

Payables from Non Exchange Transactions 

Payables from exchange transactions 

Employee Benefit Obligation 

 

 
Non-Current Liabilities 

Long Term Loan 

Employee Benefit Obligation 
 
 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
TotalLiabilities 

 
 
 
2  24,799 

4  11,229,633 12,438,841 

5  57,103,253  53,771,398 

6  4,101,231 691'100 

7  10,057,662 19,678,934 

8  578,014,620  282,497,181 

660,506,399  369,102,253 
 
 
9  4,237,396,384  3,930,885,998 

10  2,810,549 2,757,622 

11  131,100  131,100 

12  100  100 

14  8,727,587  8,022,159 

4,249,065,720 3,941,796,979 
 

4,249,065,720  3,941,796,979 

660,506,399  369,102,253 
4,909,572,119  4,310,899,232 

 
 
 
 
2  225,957  215,270 

15  76,310,388  3 

16  30,224,963  23,704,078 

17  6,926  770,706 

18  2,241,327 1,178,433 

19  166,970,084  107,619,677 

20  1,296,000  665,078 

277,275,645  134,153,245 

 
 
17  4,436,079 

20  9,603,000  8,922,810 

9,603,000 13,358,889 
 

9,603,000  13,358,889 

277,275,645  134,153,245 
286,878,645 147,512,134 

 

Assets 4,909,572,119 4,310,899,232 
liabilities (286,878,645)  (147,512,134) 
Net Assets 4,622,693,474  4,163,387,098 

Accumulated surplus 4,622,693,474 4,163,387,098 
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Statement of Financial Performance for the Period Ended 30 June 2020 
Figures in Rand  Note(s} 2020  2019 

Restated* 

 
Revenue 

 

Revenue from exchange transactions 

Service Charges 

Rental of Facilities and Equipment 

Other Income 

Interest Received 

Agency Services 

Reversal of Provision for Impairment 

Actuarial Gains 

Total revenue from exchange transactions 

 
 
 
22  24,666,692  36,021,719 

23  207,496  369,583 
24  1,174,378 2,812,165 

25  45,362,429 38,857,409 
26  328,787 221,502 

 
485,741 

72,225,523  78,282,378 
 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
 

Transfer revenue 

Government Grants & Subsidies 27  1,017,729,452 1,038,098,210 
 

72,225,523 78,282,378 

1,017,729,452  1,038,098,210 

Total Revenue  21 1,089,954,975   1'116,380,588 
 

Expenditure 

Employee Related Costs 

Remunerat!on of Councillors 

Litigation Expenditure 

Depreciation and Amortisation 

Finance Costs 

Lease Rentals on Operating Lease 

Provision for Debt Impairment 

Bulk Purchases 

Contracted Services 

Transfers and Subsidies 

Actuarial Losses 

Loss on Disposal 

GeneralExpenses 

 
28  (275,729,909} 
29  (11,565,141) 

30  (2,100,210) 

31  (80,253,612) 
32  (359,383) 

(842,155) 

33  (2,593,262) 

34  (8,624,476) 
35  (92,387,769) 

36  (17,826,087) 

 
(82,862) 

37  (138,283,732) 

 
(245,014,197) 

(10,359,387) 

(9,508,418) 

(77,301,720) 

(739,343) 

(854,492) 

(7,814,997) 

(8,910,629} 

(82,591,889) 

(17,395,425) 

(897,443) 

(1,240,265) 

(119,990,481) 

Total Expenditure  (630,648,598)   (582,618,686) 

 
Total revenue 

Total expenditure 

Operating surplus/deficit 

1,089,954,975  1'116,380,588 

(630,648,598)   (582,618,686) 

 
 

Surplus before taxation 

Taxation 
Surplus For the Year 

 
 
 

 
i 

AUDITOR  GENERAL 
1 

RECEIVED 
0 NOV 2020 

459,306,377  533,761,902 

 
459,306,377  533,761,902 

Name
'
·
······························...... 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the Period Ended 30 June 2020 

Accumulated Total net 

Figures in Rand surplus assets 
 

 

Balance at 01 July  2018 
Changes in net assets 

 

3,621,532,916 
 

3,621,532,916 

Prior period error ( Note Number 44) 6,555,193 6,555,193 
Uploading Assets 1,537,087 1,537,087 

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets 8,092,280 8,092,280 
Surplus for the year 533,761,902 533,761,902 

Total recognised income and expenses for the year 541,854,182 541,854,182 

Total changes 541,854,182 541,854,182 

Restated* Balance at 01 July 2019 4,163,387,097 4,163,387,097 
Changes in net assets   
Surplus for the year 459,306,377 459,306,377 

Totalchanges 459,306,377 459,306,377 

Balance  at 30 June 2020 4,622,693,474 4,622,693,474 

Note(s)   
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Signature: ....... 

 

Cash Flow Statement for Period  Ended 30 June 2020 
Figures in Rand  Note(s)  2020 2019 

Restated* 
 
 

Cash flows from operating activities 
 

Receipts 

Service Charges 

Other Receipts 

Interest income 

Government Grants and Subsidies 

 
32,126,529 37,134,123 

1,710,661 3,403,250 

31,965,478 26,036,852 

1,094,039,840  1,038,098,209 
 

1,159,842,508  1,104,672,434 

 
Payments 

Employee costs 

Suppliers 

Finance costs 

Remuneration of Councillors 
 
 

Total receipts 

Total payments 

Net cash flows from  operating activities 

 
(275,729,909)  (245,014,194) 

(213,816,539)  (229,951,340) 

(504,321) (807,020) 

(11,565,144) (10,359,389) 

(501,615,913)   (486,131,943) 
 

1,159,842,508 1,104,672,434 

(501,615,913)  (486,131,943) 

39  658,226,595 618,540,491 

 
Cash flows from investing activities 

 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 9  (357,844,499)  (428,946,223) 

Purchase of other intangibel 

Purchase of financial assets 

assets 10   (301,890) 

(705,428) (703,500) 

Proceeds from sale of other asset 3 895,693 

Net cash flows from investing activities  (357,654,234)  (429,951,613) 

 
Cash flows  from  financing activities 

 
Movement in long term loan (5, 054,921) (2,347,256) 

 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

295,517,440 

282,497,181 

186,241,622 

96,255,559 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  8  578,014,621 282,497,181 
 

 
 
 

AUDITOR GENERAL 

RECEIVED 
 

0 NOV 2020 
Name

········································ 
1 ······································· 
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Budget on Accrual Basis 
 

 
Approved  Adjustments 

budget 
 

Figures in Rand 
 
 

Statement of FinancialPerformance 
 

Revenue 
 

Revenue  from  exchange 

transactions 

Service charges 57,142,277 (7,355,073) 49,787,204 24,666,692 (25,120,512) a) 

Rental of facilities and equipment 535,309 (338,591) 196,718 207,496 10,778 b) 

Agency services 

Reserves 
 

90,000,000 
  

90,000,000 
328,787 328,787 

(90,000'000) 

c) 

d) 

Other income 2,251,312 i ,021,312 3,272,624 1'174,378 (2,098,246) e) 

Interest received - investment 29,700,110  29,700,110 45,362,429 15,662,319 f) 

Totalrevenue from exchange 
transactions 

179,629,008 (6,672,352) 172,956,656 71,739,782 (101,216,874)  

 

Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions 

 

Transfer revenue 

Government grants & subsidies    1'139,593,000      (10,122,000) 1,129,471,000  1,017,729,452    (111,741,648)           g) 

'Total revenue from exchange          179,629,008       (6,672,352)   172,956,656       71,739,782   (101,216,874) 
transactions' 

'Total revenue from non-               1'139,593,000      (10, 122,000) 1,129,471,000  1,017,729,452     (111,741,548) 
exchange transactions' 
Totalrevenue                            1,319,222,008      (16,794,352) 1,302,427,656  1,089,469,234    (212,958,422) 

 
Expenditure 

Employee Related Cost                 (275,730,163)          (420,576)  (276,150,739)   (275,729,909)           420,830            h) 

Remuneration  of councillors             (12,064,000)           324,382     (11'739,618)    (11,565,141)           174,477            i) 

Litigation Expenditure                                                   (2,100,210)       (2,100,210)       (2,100,210) 

Depreciation and amortisation  (90,000,000)   (90,000,000) (80,253,612)  9,746,388  j) 

Finance costs   (500,000)  100,000   (400,000)   (359,383)   40,617  k) 

Lease rentals on operating lease                                    (798,525)         (798,525)          (842,155)            (43,630) 

Debt Impairment                               (30,000,000)        3,000,000     (27,000,000)       (2,593,262)       4,4u6,7:Sfl             I) 

Bulk purchases                                    (6,000,000)       (2,700,000)      (8,700,000)       (8,624,476)             75,524           m) 

Contracted Services                          (54,610,312)     (85,152,186)  (139,762,498)    (92,387'769)     47,374,729            n) 

Transfers and Subsidies                   (20,000,000)          (500,000)    (20,500,000)     (17,826,087)        2,673,913           o) 

General Expenses  (242,515,504)  85,424,267   (157,091,237)   (138,283,732)  18,807,505 p) 

Totalexpenditure  (731,419,979)   (2,822,848)  (734,242,827)  (630,565,736)    103,677,091 

1,319,222,008  (16,794,352) 1,302,427,656  1,089,469,234   (212,958,422) 

(731,419,979)   (2,822,848)  (734,242,827)   (630,565,736)    103,677,091 

Operating surplus                       587,802,029      (19,617,200)   568,184,829     458,903,498    (109,281,331) 

Actuarial gains/losses                                                                                                          485,741            485,741            q) 

Loss on non-current assets held                                       {82,862)           (82,862)           (82,862)                                     r) 

for sale or disposal groups 

(82,862)  (82,862)  402,879  485,741 

587,802,029  (19,617,200)   568,184,829  458,903,498    (109,281,331) 

 
Surplus 587,802,029  (19,617,200)   568,184,829  458,903,498    (109,281,331) 

Capex  579,459,350 (18,464,950)    560,994,400   387,213,258    (173,781,142)  (s) 

Surplus  587,802,029  (19,617,200)   568,184,829  458,903,498    (109,281,331) 
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 

 

 

Budget on AccrualBasis 
 
 

 
Figures in Rand 

 
 
Approved Adjustments FinalBudget Actual amounts Difference Reference 

budget   on comparable between final 
basis budget and 

actual 
 

Capex 579,459,350 (18,464,950)  560,994,400 387.213,258  (173,781,142) 

Actual Amount on Comparable 
Basis as Presented In the 
Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement 

8,342,679 (1,152,250) 7,190,429 71,690,240 64,499,811 

 

Reconciliation 
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13 

 

 

ven 
NOVe!lO 

························ 

Budget on Accrual Basis 
 
 

 
Figures in Rand 

 

 
Approved 

budget 

 

 
Adjustments Final Budget  Actualamounts  Difference 

on comparable  between final 
basis  budget and 

actual 

 

 
Reference 

 

 
a) Service charges are under- collected due to the reduction in the number of billed customers as a result of the 
implementation of the indigent's policy. The scarcity or non- availability of water also contributed to less revenue. Furthermore 
towards the end of the financialyear, from April 2020, most of the government departments. businesses and schools were 
closed and had not been using water and therefore were billed less than usual resulting in the reduction in  revenue for the 
period. 

 
b) Rentalof facilities and equipment- A tenant that had given a notice to move out of one of the Municipal properties 
extended its period of stay resulting in more rental revenue than anticipated. 

 
c) Agency services is commission charged by the municipality on garnishee orders and other employee deductions done on 
behalf of third parties. This was budgeted under other income but later separated from the other income to comply with GRAP. 

 
d) Reserves are a non - cash item that covers the budgeted depreciation for the year and as such it has a nil effect as it is 
balanced out by another non cash item, depreciation. 

 
e) Other income. This includes, a major contributor, the sale of tender documents, fees charged for property clearances, hiring 
out of facilities and other sundry charges. During the financial year less tender documents were sold. Most of the activity is 
usually in the last months of the financial year where procurement plan for the next financial year is being implemented, due to 
the lockdown there were less tenders sold. 

 
f) Interest  earned is more than what was budgeted for due to the improved cash balance achieved by the municipality and the 

implementation of the investment policy. 

 
g) Government grants- and subsidies - Were underspent, this is due to the lockdown where activities in most contracts or 
projects had to be halted. The municipality has applied for roll over for all the unspent funds. 

 
h) Employee Related Costs- Expenditure is less due to less travel as a result of COVID-19 lockdown. 

 
i) Remuneration of councilors- The over budget is due to less travel as a result of COVID-191ockdown. 

j) Depreciation - Fewer projects were capitalised than anticipated hence the lower depreciation expense. 

k) Finance  cost - This is slightly over budget due to early settlement that was done on loan. 

I) Debt lmpainnent- Consumers paid more than what the municipality had anticipated hence lower actual provision. This is a 
result of implementing the municipality's credit control and debt collection policy. 

 
m) Bulk  purchases - The under expenditure is due to DWA bulk water meters that were not working. 

n) Contracted services are budgeted for under repairs and maintenance, security services and other contracted service under 
general expenses. 

 
o)Transfers and subsidies- The over budget is attributable to Value Added Tax which is excluded on the actualexpense 

vote. 
 

p) GeneralExpenses - under spending is due    the ca1   ith circular 82 of the MFMA on cost containment 

measures. The other underspending is due to t e facrtl\   lt.l not be done due to the lock down. 
q) ActuarialGain -This is a valuation done by  e ActuaTft  Ao IS a'n'1il · ate   f the long service award based on 

historical stafftumover.  &;\iCI 
r) Loss  on disposal of assets- This is duet   assets that were derecogmse uring  the  ear. 

s) Capex- due to COVID 19 pandemic, not all  he projects flelf implement  d during the year. 
 

Name· 
Notes 
In terms of the budget the litigation costs, le 
groups are included under the general expe 
disclosure requirements 

·l WtW···..· ·   ;tt g·l ase:io ·C11'1'nM urrent assets held for sale or disposal 

taWR in terms of AFS f    compliance with GRAP standards 

The municipality implemented the virement policy. 
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Accounting Policies 

 

 

 
 

1.     Basis of Preparation and Presentation of FinancialStatements 
 

The Annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting  Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance  with Section 122(3) of 
the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), including any interpretation, guidelines  and directives 
issued by the Accounting Standards Board. 

 
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting  and are in accordance with 
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented In South 
African Rand. 

 
A summary  of the significant accounting policies,  which have been  consistently applied  in the preparation of 
these financial statements, are disclosed below. 

 
1.1   Presentation currency 

 
These  financial statements are presented  in  South African Rand, which  is  the  functional  currency  of the 
municipality. 

 
1.2   Going concern assumption 

 
These financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the municipailty will continue 
to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. 

 
1.3   Materiality 

 
Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually  or collectively, influence the 
decisions  or assessments of users made on the basis of the financial statements.  Materiality  depends  on the 
nature or size of the omission or misstatement judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of 
the information item, or a combination of both, could be the determining factor. 

 
Assessing whether an omission or misstatement could influence decisions of users, and so be material, requires 
consideration  of the characteristics of those  users. The Framework for the Preparation  and Presentation of 
Financial Statements  states that  users  are  assumed  to  have a reasonable  knowledge  of  government, its 
activities, accounting  and a  willingness  to  study  the  information with  reasonable  diligence. Therefore, the 
assessment takes into account how users with such attributes could reasonably be expected to be influenced in 
making and evaluating decisions. 

 
1.4   Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 

 
In preparing the financial statements, management  is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and 
the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from 
these estimates which may be material to the financial statements. Significant judgements include: 

 
1.5   Property,plant and equipment 

 
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for 
use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are 
expected to be used during more than one period. 

 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 

• it is probable that Mure economic benefits or service potentialassociated with the item will flow to 
the municipality; and 

• the cost of the item can be measured r.    ·   I . 
 

 
 

The cost of an item of property, plant and eq 
the asset to the location and condition nece 
management. Trade discounts and rebates ar 

 
Where an asset is acquired through a non-e 

s attributable to bring 
manner intended by 
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1.5   Property,plant and equipment (continued) 

 
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary 
assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair 
value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of 
the asset(s) given up. 

 
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

 
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs 
incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised In the carrying 
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

 
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located 
is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity  is obligated to incur such 
expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than 
the production of inventories. 

 
Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is 
in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 
Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment. 

 
Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and 
which meet the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement  in the cost of the item of property, plant 
and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised. 

 
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 
Assets under construction are carried at cost. Depreciation commences when  asset is ready and available for 
use as intended by management. 

 
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their 
estimated residual value. 

 
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

 

 
Item 

 
Depreciation 
method 

 
Average 
usefulllfe 

Buildings 
Plant and machinery 

Straight line 
Straight line 

10-40 
2-20 

Furniture and fixtures Straight line 2-20 
Motor vehicles Straight line 4-10 
Office equipment 
Infrastructure- Sanitation 

Straight line 
Straight line 

2-20 
2-85 

Infrastructure -Water Straight line 2-100 
lnfastructure- Roads Straight line 5-15 
Bins and Containers 
Computer Equipment 

Straight line 
Straight line 

5-10 
2-10 

Emergency Equiment Straightline 2-15 
Park Homes Straight line 20-40 

Land AUDITO Unlimited 

 
Each part of an item of property, ant and eRI!" o  cant in relation to the total cost of 
the item is depreciated separately '-'CI 
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1.5   Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

 
The depreciation method used reflects  the pattern in which the asset's  future economic benefits or service 
potential are expected to be consumed  by the municipality. The depreciation  method applied to an asset is 
reviewed at least at each reporting date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset, the method is changed 
to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate. 

 
The  municipality  assesses  at  each  reporting  date  whether  there  is  any  indication  that  the  municipality 
expectations about the residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting 
date. If  any  such  indication exists, the  municipality  revises  the expected  useful life  and/or  residual value 
accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate. 

 
The depreciation charge for each period Is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying 
amount of another asset. 

 
Items  of property, plant and equipment  are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no 
further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 

 
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus 
or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying 
amount of the item. 

 
Assets which the municipality holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary 
course of activities,  are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-sale. 
Proceeds from sales of these assets are recognised as revenue. All cash flows on these assets are included in 
cash flows from operating acti vities in the cash flow statement. 

 
The municipality separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the 
notes to the financial statements (see note 35). 

 
The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes 
to the financial statements (see note 9 ). 

 
1.6   Intangible assets 

 
An asset is identifiable if it either: 

• is separable, i.e. is capable  ot being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, 
licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable 
assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or 
arises  from binding arrangements  (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those 

rights are transferable or separable from the municipality or from other rights and obligations. 
 

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as 
if it were in the form of a contract. 

 
An intangible asset is recognised when: 

• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to 
the asset will flow to the municipality; and 

• the cost or f 1r v  n be measured reliably. 
 

The  municipality  ass sses  the ITqptl_ lfuture economic  benefits  or service  potential using 
reasonable  and supp rtable as                               Aent mana ement's  best estimate of the set of economic 
conditions that will ex· t over the useful life o t e     ttt. 

 
Where  an  intangibl    asset is  aJ!uirJIQVonon-exch      ge  transaction,  its  initial  cost  at the  date of 
acquisition is measu             
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1.6   Intangible assets (continued) 

 
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no 
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. 
Amortisation  is  not provided  for  these  intangible  assets,  but  they  are  tested  for impairment  annually  and 
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is 
provided on a straight line basis over their useful life. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified  as indefinite is an 
indicator that the asset may be  impaired. As a result the asset is tested  for impairment  and the remaining 

carrying amount is amortised over its useful life. 
 

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an intangible assel 
 

Amortisation  is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as 

follows: 

 
Item  Depreciation 

method 
Average 

usefullife 

Computer software                                                                                  Straight line                     2-5 

 
The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes 
to the financial statements (see note 10). 

 
1.7   Heritage assets 

 
Assets are resources controlled by an municipality as a result of past events and from which future economic 
benefits or service potential are expected to flow to the municipality. 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised after deducting accumulated impairment losses. 

Class of heritage assets means a grouping of heritage assets of a similar nature or function in an municipality's 

operations that is shown as a single item for the purpose of disclosure in the financial statements. 
 

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire 

an asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset 
when initially recognised in accordance with the specific requirements of other Standards of GRAP. 

 
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its usefullife. 

 
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, 
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. 

 
Heritage assets are assets that have  a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or 
artistic significance and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and Mure generations. 

 
An impairment  loss of a non-cash-generating asset is the amount by which the carrying  amount of an asset 

exceeds its recoverable service amount. 
 

An inalienable item is an asset that an municipality is required by law or otherwise to retain indefinitely 
and cannot be disposed of without consent. 

 
Recoverable service amount is the higher of a   on-ca Md LTaOfe les  costs to sell and its 
value in use.  RECEIVED 

 

Value in use of a non-cash-generating asset is th   present value of the asset's remaining SErvice 
potential. 

0%  NOV 2020 
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1.7   Heritage assets (continued) 

Recognition 

The municipality recognises a heritage asset as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the asset will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the asset can be 
measured reliably. 

 
Initialmeasurement 

 
Heritage assets are measured at cost. 

 
Where a heritage asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is measured at its fair value as 

at the date of acquisition. 
 

1.8   Investments in controlled entit  es 

 
In the municipality's separate financial statements, investments in controlled entities are carried at cost. 

The municipality applies the same accounting for each category of investment. 

The municipality recognises a dividend or similar distribution in surplus or deficit in its separate financial 
statements when its right to receive the dividend or similar distribution is established. 

 
Investments in controlled entities that are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy on Financial 
instruments in the consolidated financial statements, are accounted for in the same way in the controlling entity's 

separate financial statements. 
 

1.9   Financialinstruments 

 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a 
residual interest of another entity. 

 
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial 
liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus  the cumulative amortisation 
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and 
minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility. 

 
A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related. 

 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by 
failing to discharge an obligation. 

 
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in foreign exchange rates. 
 

Derecognition is  the  removal of  a previously  recognised financial asset  or financial liability  from an entity's 

statement of financial position. 
 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial 
liability  (or  group  of financial assets  or  financial liabilities) and          !locating  the interest income or interest 
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is th    rate                       ·     s estimated future 
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financ· I inst                         GE                    er 
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial   ability. 
rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual erms of t lflliWI:I1     _ ..         : _(for exam le, 
prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future   redit losses. The calculation·  .·tudes all    es 

and points paid or received between parties to the contract that    e an integr !WrtfAHOe mfective  interest  ate 

(see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transact  ns), transactfo  Ya.rciMother prem· ms 
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and          ted life of a groupof similar fin   cial 
instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare      es-wrl rr'it-1&oRat,r;l.Q  jRI,e to reliably est'   ate 
the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or gr            · ancial instruments ·frr ·emt-,..6 .      use 
the  contractual  cash  flows  over  the  full  contractual term of                       '·il:le.trJJIIlnt  (or  group of fin ncial 
instruments).                                                                                                    ,        ............."••,········    . 
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1.9   Financial instruments (continued) 

 
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable 
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. 

 
A financial asset is: 

cash; 
• a residual interest of another entity; or 

a contractual right to: 

receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or 

exchange  financial assets  or  financial liabilities  with another  entity  under conditions that  are 
potentially favourable to the entity. 

 
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the 
holder for a loss it incurs because  a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the 
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. 

 
A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to: 

deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or 
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions  that are potentially unfavourable to 

the entity. 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rates. 

 
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

 
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 

Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms. 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial  instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes  in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other 
price risk. 

 
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes  in  market  prices  (other than  those  arising  from interest  rate  risk  or currency  risk), whether those 
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument  or its issuer, or factors affecting all 
similar financial instruments traded in the market. 

 
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. 

 
A residual interest is any contract that manifests  an interest in the assets  of an entity after deducting all of its 

liabilities. A residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as: 
• equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital; 
• a formal designation of a transfer  of resources (or a class  of such transfers) by the parties to the 

transaction as forming part of an entity's net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time 
of the contribution; or 

• a formal agreement,  in  relation to the contribution, establishing  or increasing  an existing financial 
interest in the net assets of an entity. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Financial instruments at cost are investments in re 
active market, and whose fair value cannot be relia 
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1.9   Financial instruments (continued) 

Classification 

The entity  has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the 
statement of financial position or in the notes thereto: 

 
 

Class 
Unlisted Investments 
Investments in Fixed Deposits 

Long Term Receivables 
Receivables from exchange Transactions 

Cash and Cash Equivalents- Call Deposits 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Category 
Financial asset measured at amortised cost 
Financialasset measured at fair value 
Financial asset measured at amortised cost 
Financial asset measured at amortised cost 
Financial asset measured at armotised cost 
Financial asset measured at armotised cost 

 

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the 
statement of financial position or in the notes thereto: 

 
 

Class 
Long Term Liabilities 

Payables 

Category 
Financial Liability measured at armotised cost 

Financial liability measured at amortised cost 

 
Initial recognition 

 
The entity recognises a t1nanc1al asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

 
The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting. 

Initialmeasurement of financialassets and financialliabilities 

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. 

 
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value [if subsequently measured at 
fair value). 

 
The entity first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, 
the entity analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each component separately. 
The entity accounts for that part of a concessionary loan that is: 

• a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements, where it is the issuer of the loan; or 

• non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange 

Transactions (Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan. 
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1.9   Financial instruments (continued) 
 

Subsequent measurement of financialassets  and financialliabilities 
 

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following 

categories: 
• Financial instruments at fair value. 
• Financial instruments at amortised cost. 
• Financial instruments at cost. 

 
All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review. 

 
Fair value measurement considerations 

 
The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not 
active, the  entity  establishes fair value  by using  a valuation technique. The objective of  using  a valuation 
technique is to establish what the transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm's length 
exchange motivated by normal operating considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm's length 
market transactions between knowledgeable,  willing parties, if available,  reference to the current fair value of 
another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. If 
there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the instrument and that technique 
has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market transactions, the entity 
uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies as little as 
possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a 
price and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, an 
municipality calibrates the valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current 
market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available 
observable market data. 

 
The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount 

payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid. 
 

Reclassification 
 

The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is: 
• combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or 

an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification. 

 
Where the entity cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has been separated from 
a  host  contract  that is  a  financial  instrument  at  a subsequent  reporting  date,  it  measures  the  combined 
instrument at fair value. This requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair value. 

 
If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value, 
the entity reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value is no 
longer available becomes the cost. 

 
If  a reliable  measure  becomes  available  for an investment in a residual interest for which  a measure  was 
previously not available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the entity 
reclassifies the instrument from cost to fair value. 

 
Gains and losses 

 
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair 
value is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

 
For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in 
surplus  or deficit  when the financial asset  or  financia                                    ·        ·    ·        through the 
amortisation process. 

 
Impairment and uncollectibility of financialassets 

The entity assesses at the end of each reporting perio   whether the&  If fft)yt'j2ft'IM! evidence t  at a financial 

asset or group of financial assets is impaired.                                                               !U 
 

·························· ··················· 
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1.9   Financial instruments (continued) 
 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amort1sea cost has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the 
present  value of  estimated future  cash  flows (excluding  future  credit  losses  that have not  been  incurred) 
discounted at the  financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced 
directly OR through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

 
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss 
is reversed directly OR by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of 
the  financial  asset  that exceeds  what the  amortised cost  would  have been  had the impairment  not been 
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

 
Financial assets measured at cost 

 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an mvestment 1n a residual interest 
that  is not  measured  at fair value  because  its  fair value cannot be measured  reliably, the amount  of the 
impairment  loss  is measured as the difference between the carrying amount  of the financial asset and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial 
asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed. 
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1.9   Financial instruments (continued) 

Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting. 

The entity derecognises a financial asset only when: 

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived; 
• the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks  and rewards of ownership of the 

financial asset; or 
• the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 

asset, has transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability 
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally 
and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity : 

derecognise the asset; and 
recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer. 

 
The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those 
transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are 
measured  at their fair values at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts 
recognised and derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer. 

 
If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the 
right to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that 
servicing contract. If the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing 
the servicing,  a servicing liability  for the servicing obligation is recognised  at its fair value. If the fee to be 
received is expected to be more than adequate compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised 
for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger 
financial asset. 

 
If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity 
obtaining a new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise 
the new financial asset, financial liability or servicing liability at fair value. 

 
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of 
the consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

 
If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its 
entirety, the previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to 
be recognised and the part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of 
the transfer. For this purpose, a retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The 
difference between the carrying amount  allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration 
received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

 
If  a transfer  does not result in derecognition  because the entity  has retained substantially all the risks and 
rewards  of  ownership of the transferred  asset, the entity continues to recognise  the transferred asset in its 
entirety  and  recognise  a financial liability  for the consideration  received. In  subsequent  periods,  the entity 
recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither the 
asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses are offset. 

 
Financialliabilities 

 

The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial lia ility)  AldliNliCJRn&EfQhlill!!  pos1 on 

whn it is extinguished-i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract  i   l)al c ncelled-:' expire!  or 

wa1ved.                                                                                                                 ru:'-'t:IVEO 
 

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt in truments WiifilJU Wlil9l 1!lC,.cU.fferent term is 
accounted  for as having extinguished the original financial liabili t{  and a neviJfi11a Jiii'fUis recogni d. 
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing tim cialliability or a part of it is accounted fo  as 

having extinguished the original financial liability and having recogr  Namet W.M5\ if J.Ua JI\;•.,,....,.,,....... 
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1.9   Financialinstruments (continued) 

 
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or 
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred  or liabilities 
assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity 
by way of a non-exchange transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue 
from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers). 

 
Presentation 

 
Interest  relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised  as revenue or 
expense in surplus or deficit. 

 
Dividends  or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is 
recognised as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit. 

 
Losses  and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as 

revenue or expense in surplus or deficit. 

 
Distributions to holders of residual interests are recognised by the entity directly in net assets. Transaction costs 

incurred on residual interests are accounted  for as a deduction from net assets. Income tax [where applicable] 
relating to distributions to holders of residual interests and to transaction costs incurred on residual interests are 
accounted for in accordance with the International Accounting Standard on Income Taxes. 

 
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial 
position when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends 

either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset 

the transferred asset and the associated liability. 
 

1.10 Leases 

 
A lease  is  classified  as a  finance  lease  if it  transfers  substantially  all the  risks  and  rewards  incidental to 
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership. 

 
When  a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element 
separately. 

 
Operating leases -lessor 

 
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue. 

 
The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight 
line basis. 

 
The aggregate  benefit  of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the  lease term on a 

straight-line basis. 
 

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance. 

r 
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1.11 Inventories 
 

Inventories  are initially measured  at  cost  except  where  inventories  are  acquired  through  a  non-exchange 

transaction, then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
 

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for; 

• distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or 
• consumption in the production  process  of goods to be distributed  at no charge  or  for a nominal 

charge. 
 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of 

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution. 
 

Current replacement cost is the cost the municipality incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date. 

 
The cost of inventories  comprises  of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 

 
The cost of inventories is assigned using the  formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories having a 

similar nature and use to the municipality. 
 

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period 
in which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the 
goods are distributed, or related  services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net 
realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the 
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from 
an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of 
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. 

 
1.12 Impairment of non-cash-generating 
assets 

 
Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial retum. Commercial return 

means that positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset. 
 

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. 

All municipal assets are classfied as non cash generting assets. 

Impairment  is  a loss in the future economic  benefits or service  potential of an  asset,  over  and above the 

systematic   recognition  of  the  loss  of  the  asset's  future  economic   benefits  or  service  potential through 
depreciation (amortisation). 

 
Carrying  amount is the amount  at which  an asset is  recognised  in the statement of financial position  after 
deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 

 
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a 
commercial return that generates cash inflows  from continuing use that are largely independent  of the cash 

inflows from other assets or groups of assets. 
 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs 

and income tax expense. 
 

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 
 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asse ..;,   g"ItTII rG!!N£RAL 
between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.  ,.,. UII n. 

 

Recoverable  service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset's fair 
value in use. 

Useful life is either: 

alue lesst\(;  YnJ=:P 
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1.12  Impairment of non-cash-generating assets  (continued) 

• the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or 
• the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality. 

 
Designation 

 
At  initial recognition,  the  municipality  designates  an  asset  as  non-cash-generating, or  an  asset  or  cash 
generating unit as cash-generating. The designation is made on the basis of a municipality's objective of using 
the asset. 

 
The  municipality  designates an asset as  non-cash-generating when  its objective is  not  to use the asset to 
generate a commercial return but to deliver services. 

 
Identification 

 
When  the  carrying  amount  of  a non-cash-generating  asset  exceeds  its  recoverable  service  amount,  it is 
impaired. 

 
The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there  is any indication that a non-cash-generating 

asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount 
of the asset. 

 
Irrespective  of  whether there  is  any indication  of  impairment,  the  entity  also  tests  a  non-cash-generating 
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use 

for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment 

test is performed at the same time every year. If an intangibel asset was initially recognised during the current 
reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment before the end of the current reporting period. 

 
Recognition and measurement 

 
If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. 

 
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

 
Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 

 
When  the  amount estimated for an  impairment  loss  is greater  than  the  carrying amount  of  the non-cash 
generating asset to which it relates, the municipality recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement 
in the Standards of GRAP. 

 
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the  non-cash-generating 
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its 

residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
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1.12 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued) 

Reversalof an Impairment loss 

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any 
such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset. 

 
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed  if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable service amount since the last impairment 
loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The 
increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The Increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a 
reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net  of 
depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods. 

 
A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase. 

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge  for the non-cash 
generating asset is  adjusted in  future  periods  to  allocate the non-cash-generating asset's  revised carrying 
amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

 
Redesignation 

 
The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash 
generating asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation is 

appropriate. 
 

1.13 Employee benefits 
 

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange  for service rendered by 

employees. 
 

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in 
the Standard of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be 
used only to pay or fund employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not available  to the reporting 
entity's own creditors (even in liquidation) and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless either: 

• the proceeds represent surplus  assets that are not needed  for the policy to  meet  all the related 
employee benefit obligations; or 

• the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid. 

 
Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either: 

• an entity's decision to terminate an employee's employment before the normal retirement date; or 
• an employee's decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits. 

 
Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination 
benefits)  that are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees 

render the related service. 
 

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment. 
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1.13 Employee benefits (continued) 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled 
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. 

 
Short-term employee benefits include items such as: 

wages, salaries and social security contributions; 
• short-term compensated  absences   (such  as paid annual leave  and  paid sick  leave)  where  the 

compensation for the absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting 
period in which the employees render the related employee service; 

bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the 
reporting period in which the employees render the related service; and 

• non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as 
housing, cars and cellphones) for current employees. 

 
When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the 
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service: 

• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid 
exceeds  the undiscounted  amount of the benefits, the  entity recognise  that excess  as an  asset 
(prepaid expense)  to the extent  that the prepayment  will lead to, for example, a reduction in future 
payments or a cash refund; and 

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of 

an asset. 
 

The  expected cost of compensated  absences is recognised as an expense  as the employees render services 
that  increase their entitlement  or, in the case of non-accumulating absences. when  the absence occurs. The 
entity measures the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the 
entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 

 
The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance  related payments when the entity 
has a present  legal or constructive obligation to make such payments  as a result of past events  and a reliable 
estimate of the obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but 
to make the payments. 

 
Post-employment benefits 

 
Post-employment benefits  are employee  benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after the 
completion of employment. 

 
Post-employment  benefit  plans  are  formal or  informal arrangements  under  which  an entity  provides  post 

employment benefits for one or more employees. 
 

Multi-employer plans are defined contribution plans (other than state plans and composite social security 
programmes) or defined benefit plans (other than state plans) that pool the assets contributed by various entities 
that are not under common control and use those assets to provide  benefits to employees of more than  one 
entity, on the basis that contribution and benefrt levels are determined without regard to the identity of the entity 
that employs the employees concerned. 

 
Participating entitles under common control 
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1.13 Employee benefits  (continued) 

 
Multi-employer plans and/or State plana and/or Composite socialsecurity programmes 

 
The entity classifies a multi-employer plan and/or state plans andlor composite social security programmes as a 
defined  contribution plan  or a defined  benefit plan under the terms  of the plan (including  any constructive 

obligation that goes beyond the formal terms). 
 

Where  a plan is a defined contribution plan, the entity accounts for in the same way as for any other defined 

contribution plan. 
 

Where  a plan is a defined benefit  plan,  the entity account for its proportionate share of the defined benefit 

obligation, plan assets and cost associated with the plan in the same way as for any other defined benefit plan. 
 

When sufficient information is not available to use defined benefit accounting for a plan, that is a defined benefit 

plan, the entity account for the plan as if it was a defined contribution plan. 
 

Insured benefits 

 
Where the entity pays insurance premiums to fund a post-employment benefrt plan, the entity treats such a plan 
as a defined contribution plan unless the entity will have (either directly or indirectly through the plan) a legal or 
constructive obligation to either: 

• pay the employee benefits directly when they fall due; or 

• pay further amounts if the  insurer does not pay all future employee benefits relating to employee 
service in the current and prior reporting periods. 

 
If the entity retains such a legal or constructive obligation, the entity treats the plan as a defined benefit plan. 

Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans 

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into 
a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund 
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior 
periods. 

 
When  an  employee has  rendered  service  to  the entity during  a  reporting  period, the  entity recognise  the 
contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service: 

• as a liability  (accrued  expense), after deducting  any contribution  already paid. If  the contribution 
already paid exceeds the contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity recognise 
that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, 
a reduction In future payments or a cash refund; and 
as an expense, unless  another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the 

cost of an asset. 
 

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the 
reporting  period in which the employees  render the related service, they are discounted. The rate used  to 
discount reflects the time value of money.  The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect 
the time value of money is consistent with the currency and estimated term of the obligation. 
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1.13 Employee benefits (continued) 

 
Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans 

 
Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans. 

 
Actuarial gains and losses comprise  experience adjustments (the effects  of ctlfferences between  the previous 
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. In 
measuring  its defined benefit liability the entity recognise actuarial gains and losses in surplus or deficit in the 
reporting period in which they occur. 

 
Assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund are assets (other than non-transferable financial instruments 
issued by the reporting entity) that are held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separate from the reporting entity 
and exists solely to pay or fund employee benefits and are available to be used only to pay or fund employee 
benefits, are not available to the reporting entity's own creditors (even in liquidation), and cannot be returned to 
the reporting entity, unless either: 

• the remaining assets of the fund are sufficient to meet all the related employee benefit obligations of 
the plan or the reporting entity; or 
the assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid. 

 
Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee 
service in the current period. 

 
Interest cost is the increase during  a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which arises 

because the benefits are one period closer to settlement. 
 

Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior 
periods, resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or changes to, post-employment benefits or other 
long-term employee benefits. Past service cost may be either positive (when benefits are introduced or changed 
so that the present value of the defined  benefit obligation increases)  or negative (when existing benefits are 
changed so that the present value of the defined benefit obligation decreases). In measuring its defined benefit 
liability the entity recognise past service cost as an expense in the reporting period in which the plan is amended. 

 
Plan assets comprise assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund and qualifying insurance policies. 

 
The present  value of a defined benefit  obligation is the present  value, without deducting any plan assets, of 

expected future payments required  to settle the obligation resulting from employee service in the current and 
prior periods. 

 
The return on plan assets is interest, dividends or similar distributions and other revenue derived from the plan 
assets. together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any costs of administering 
the plan (other than those included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the defined benefit obligation) 
and less any tax payable by the plan itself. 

 
The entity account not only for its legal obligation under the formal terms of a defined benefit plan, but also for 
any constructive obligation that arises from the entity's informal practices. Informal practices  give rise to a 

constructive obligation where the entity has no realistic alternative but to pay employee benefits. An example of a 
constructive obligation is where a change in the entity's informal practices would cause unacceptable damage to 
its relationship with employees. 

 

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of the following amounts:  , 

• the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date;  :::- N , \.. 
• minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of w · ns to be 

settled directly; .r.,\JO\ '"1  \J 
plus any liability that may arise as a result of a minimum fundin   requilfmief,le.CE:'lI 

 
The  amount  determined  as a defined  benefit liability  may be  negative  n  asset). The en\i.m_'te\-s  the 

resulting asset at the lower of:   \\ " t\U  ,,...... 
• the amount determined above; and  •••••'''' '''' 

the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of  efunds from the plilt\M  uctions ••••• 

in future contributions to the plan. The present value of these econ  ic b {ila•ie'b'etermined usjtJ&oa••''''' 
discount rate which reflects the time value of money. lla!t'•" ,,,,......... 
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1.13 Employee benefits (continued) 

 
Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

 
The entity determines the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value of any plan assets with 
sufficient regularity such that the amounts recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from the 
amounts that would be determined at the reporting date. 

 
The entity recognises the net total of the following amounts in surplus or deficit, except to the extent that another 
Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset: 

current service cost; 
• interest cost; 

• the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement rights; 
actuarial gains and losses; 
past service cost; 

• the effect of any curtailments or settlements; and 

• the effect of applying the limit on a defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit liability). 
 

The entity uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present value of its defined benefit obligations 
and the related current service cost and, where applicable, past service cost. The Projected Unit Credit Method 
(sometimes known as the accrued benefit method pro-rated on service or as the benefit/years of service method) 
sees each period of service as giving  rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit 
separately to build up the final obligation. 

 
In determining the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and, where 
applicable,  past service cost,  an entity  shall attribute benefit  to periods  of service under the plan's  benefit 
formula. However, if an employee's  service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than in 
earlier years, an entity shall attribute benefit on a straight-line basis from: 

the date when service  by the employee first leads to benefits under the plan (whether or not the 
benefits are conditional on further service); until 

the date when further service by the employee will lead to no material amount of further benefits under 
the plan, other than from further salary increases. 

 
Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan. The 
results of the valuation are updated for any material transactions and other material changes in circumstances 
(including changes in market prices and interest rates) up to the reporting date. 

 
The entity recognises  gains  or  losses  on the curtailment or settlement  of  a defined benefit  plan when the 

curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on a curtailment or settlement comprises: 
• any resulting change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation; and 
• any resulting change in the fair value of the plan assets. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The entity offsets an asset relating to one plan against a liability re   tin 

legally enforceable right to use a surplus in one plan to settle obligatJ 
to settle the obligations on a net basis, or to realise the surplus in 
other plan simultaneously. 
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1.13 Employee benefits  (continued) 

Actuarialassumptions 

Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible. 

 
Financial assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the period over which the 
obligations are to be settled. 

 
The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations (both funded and unfunded) reflect the time value 
of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected  to reflect the time value of money is 
consistent with the currency and estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations. 

 
Post-employment benefit obligations are measured on a basis that reflects: 

• estimated future salary increases; 

• the benefits set out in the terms of the plan (or resulting from any constructive obligation that goes 
beyond those terms) at the reporting date: and 

• estimated future changes in the level of any state benefits that affect the benefits payable under a 
defined benefit plan, if, and only if, either: 
those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or 

• past  history, or  other  reliable evidence,  indicates  that  those  state  benefits will change in some 

predictable manner, for example, in line with future changes in general price levels or general salary 
levels. 

 
Assumptions about medical costs take account of estimated future  changes in the cost of medical services, 
resulting from both inflation and specific changes in medical costs. 

 
Other post retirement obligations 

 
The municipality provides post-retirement health care benefits, housing subsidies and gratuities upon retirement 
to some retirees. 

 
The entitlement to post-retirement health  care benefits is based on the employee remaining in service up to 
retirement age and the completion  of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are 
accrued over the period of employment. Independent qualified actuaries carry out valuations of these obligations. 
The municipality also provides a gratuity and housing subsidy on retirement  to certain employees. An annual 
charge to income is made to cover both these liabilities. 

 
The  amount  recognised  as a liability  for other long-term employee  benefits is the net total of the following 
amounts: 

• 
• 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

• 
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The  entity  recognises  termination  benefits  as  a liability and  an  expense  when the  entity  is  demonstrably 
committed to either: 

• terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date; 
or 

• provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy. 
 

The  entity  is demonstrably  committed  to  a  termination when  the  entity  has  a detailed formal plan for  the 
termination and is without realistic possibility of withdrawal. The detailed plan includes [as a minimum]: 

• the location, function, and approximate number of employees whose services are to be terminated; 
the termination benefits for each job classification or function; and 
the time at which the plan will be implemented. 

 
Implementation begins as soon  as possible  and the period of time to complete implementation is such that 
material changes to the plan are not likely. 

 
Where termination benefrts fall due more than 12 months after the reporting date, they are discounted using an 
appropriate discount rate. The rate used to discount the benefit reflects the time value of money. The currency 
and term of the financial instrument  selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency 
and estimated term of the benefit. 

 
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the measurement of termination benefits shall 
be based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. 

 
1.14 Provisions and contingencies 

 
Provisions are recognised when: 

the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be 
required to settle the obligation; and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

 
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present 
obligation at the reporting date. 

 
Where  the effect of time value of money is material, the amount  of a provision is the present value of the 
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. 

 
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability. 

 
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another 
party, the reimbursement is recognised  when, and only when, It is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 
received if the municipality settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount 
recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision. 

 
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are 
reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential 
will be required, to settle the obligation. 

 
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of 
time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense. 

 
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus (deficit). 

If  an entity has  a contract  that is  onerous,  the present obligation  (net  of recoveries) under the contract is 
recognised and measured as a provision. 
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1.14 Provisions and contingencies (continued) 

 
A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity: 

• has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least: 
the activity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concerned; 

the principal locations affected; 

the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated  for 
services being terminated; 

the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 
when the plan will be implemented; and 

• has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring  by starting to 
implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. 

 
A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those 

that are both: 
• necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and 

not associated with the ongoing activities of the municipality 

 
No obligation  arises as a consequence  of the sale or  transfer  of  an  operation until the municipality  is 
committed to the sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement. 

 
After  their  initial recognition  contingent  liabilities  recognised  in  entity  combinations  that  are  recognised 

separately are subsequently measured at the higher of: 
• the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and 

the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation. 
 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 42. 
 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the 

holder for a loss it incurs because  a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the 
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. 

 
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 

 
The municipality recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that 
an  outflow of  resources  embodying  economic  benefits  and  service  potential will be  required  to settle  the 
obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. 

 
Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to t1nanc1a1 guarantees requires judgement. 

Indications that an outflow of resources may be probable are: 

financial difficulty of the debtor; 
defaults or delinquencies  in interest and capital repayments by the debtor: 

• breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term 
and the ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and 
a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) 
that impact on the ability of entities to repay their obligations. 

 
Where a fee is received by the municipality for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on 
loan  commitments,  it  is considered in  determining the  best  estimate  of  the amount required  to settle  the 
obligation at reporting date. Where  a fee is charged and the municipality  considers that an outflow of economic 
resources is probable, an municipality recognises the obligation at the higher of: 

• the amount  determined  using  in the Standard of  GRAP  on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities  and 

Contingent Assets; and 

• the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised 
in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions..- 
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1.14 Provisions and contingencies (continued) 

 
Name:....•....•..•.•...•.........•................. 

 

Decommissioning,restoration and similar liability  Signature:....................................... 
 

Changes in the measurement of an existing decommissioning, restoration and similar liability that result from 
changes in the estimated timing or amount of the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service 
potential required to settle the obligation, or a change in the discount rate, is accounted for as follows: 

 
If the related asset is measured using the cost model: 

• changes in the liability is  added to, or deducted from,  the cost of the related asset in the current 

period. 
• the amount deducted from the cost of the asset does not exceed its carrying amount. If a decrease in 

the liability exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is recognised immediately in 
surplus or deficit. 

• if the adjustment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, the entity consider whether this is an 
indication that the new carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable. If there is such an 
indication, the entity test the asset for impairment by estimating its recoverable amount or recoverable 
service  amount, and account for any impairment loss, in accordance with the accounting policy  

on impairment of assets as described in accounting policy  and 1.12. 
 

If the related asset is measured using the revaluation 
model: 

changes in the liability alter the revaluation surplus or deficit previously recognised on that asset, so 

that: 
a decrease in the liability is credited directly to revaluation surplus in net assets, except that it is 

recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit on the asset that was 

previously recognised in surplus or deficit; and 
an increase in the liability is recognised in surplus or deficit, except that it is debited directly 

to 

revaluation surplus in net assets to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation 
surplus in respect of that asset; 
in the  event  that a decrease  in  the  liability exceeds  the carrying amount that would  have been 
recognised had the asset been carried under the cost model, the excess is recognised immediately in 

surplus or deficit; 
a change in the liability is an indication that the asset may have to be revalued in order to ensure that 
the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at 
the reporting date. Any such revaluation is taken into account in determining the amounts to be taken 

to surplus or deficit and net assets. If a revaluation is necessary, all assets of that class is revalued; 
and 
the Standard of GRAP on Presentation of Financial Statements requires disclosure on the face of the 
statement of changes in net assets of each item of revenue or expense that is recognised directly in 
net assets. in complying with this requirement, the  change in the revaluation surplus arising from a 
change in the liability is separately identified and disclosed as such. 

 
The adjusted depreciable amount  of the asset is depreciated over its useful life. Therefore, once the related 
asset has reached the end of its useful life, all subsequent  changes in the liability is recognised in surplus or 
deficit as they occur. This applies under both the cost model and the revaluation model. 

 
The periodic unwinding of the discount is recognised in surplus or deficit as a finance cost as it 
occurs. 

 
1.15 Commitments 

 
Items are classified as commitments when the municipality   has committed itself to future transactions that will 
normally result in the outflow of cash. 

 
Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments. 

 
Commitments for the municipality   for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be 
disclosed in a note to the financialstatements, if both the following criteria are met: 

Contracts should be non--cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for 
computer or building maintenance services); and 

• Contracts  should relate to something  other than the routine,  steady, state business of the entity - 

therefore salary commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments 
are excluded. 
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1.16 Revenue from exchange transactions 

 
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those 
inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

 
An  exchange  transaction  is  one  in  which  the  municipality  receives  assets  or  services,  or  has  liabilities 
extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of 
assets) to the other party in exchange. 

 
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, 
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. 

 
Measurement 

 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and 

volume rebates. 
 

Sale of goods 
 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied: 
the municipality  has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 

the goods; 
the  municipality   retains   neither  continuing  managerial   involvement  to  the  degree   usually 

associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; 
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will 
flow to the municipality; and 
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 

Rendering of services 

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue 
associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the 
reporting date. The outcome  of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are 
satisfied: 

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will 
flow to the municipality; 

• the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and 
the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured 

reliably. 
 

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is 
recognised on  a straight line  basis  over the specified time  frame  unless there is evidence  that some other 
method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other 
acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed. 

 
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is 
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. 

 
Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. 
Stage  of completion  is  determined  by services performed  to  date  as a percentage of total services  to be 
performed. 
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1.16 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued) 

 
Name: 

'20 

Interest, royalties and dividends                                                         Slgnat :· ···..................................... 

Revenue  arising  from the use  by otners of ent1ty  assets  yielding  in:t:e:re=st....r o ;:  ;:i: ; · ·  -   r' " ; iri" ·· ·· "jE';:,"-'1'     im!J 
distributions is recognised when: 

•  It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to 
the municipality, and 

•  The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 
 

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 

Royalties are recognised as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements. 

Dividends  or similar distributions are recognised, in surplus  or deficit, when the municipality's  right to receive 
payment has been established. 

 
Service fees included in the price  of the product are recognised as  revenue over the period during which the 
service is performed. 

 
1.17 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

 
Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by a 

municipality,  which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to  contributions from 
owners. 

 
Conditions  on transferred  assets  are  stipulations that  specify  that  the  future economic  benefits  or service 

potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed  by the recipient as specified or future economic 

benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 

Control of an asset arise when the municipality can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its 

objectives and can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit. 

 
Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities 
extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use 
of assets) to another entity in exchange. 

 
Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneficiaries regardless of whether or 

not they pay taxes. 

 
Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as determined by a court or 
other law enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws or regulations. 

 
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction. 
a municipality either receives value from another municipality without directly giving approximately equal value in 
exchange,  or  gives  value  to  another  municipality  without  directly  receiving  approximately  equal  value   in 
exchange. 

 
Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset 
may be used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to 
the transferor if not deployed as specified. 

 
Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the 
use of a transferred asset by entities external to the reporting municipality. 

 
Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that provide certain taxpayers with concessions that 
are not available to others. 

 
The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be subject 

to taxation. 
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1.17 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recognition 
 

An inflow of resources from  a non-exchange transaction recognised  as an asset is recognised  as revenue, 
except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. 

 
As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from 

a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised 
and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction. 

 
Measurement 

 
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised 
by the municipality. 

 
When,  as a result  of a non-exchange  transaction, the  municipality  recognises  an asset, it also  recognises 
revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is 
also required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best 
estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in 
net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event 
occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue. 

 
1.18 Borrowing costs 

 
Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.19 Unauthorised expenditure 
 

Unauthorised expenditure means: 
• overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and 

• expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in 
accordance with the purpose of the main division. 

 
All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised  as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the 
nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of 
financial performance. 

 
1.20 Fruitless and wastefulexpenditure 

 
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable 

care been exercised. 
 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of 
financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance 
with the  nature of the expense,  and where  recovered, it  is subsequently accounted for  as revenue in the 
statement of financialperformance. 
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Irregular expenditure is defined in section 1 of the MFMA as follows: .·····························  
.... ......... 

Irregular expenditure", in relation to a municipality or municipalentity, means                                                  - 
a) expenditure incurred by a municpality or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, 
a requirement of this Act, and which has not been condoned in terms of section 170; 
b) expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, 
a requirement of the Municipal Systems Act, and which has not been condoned in terms of that Act; 

c) expenditure incurred by a municipality in contravention of,  or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of 
the Plublic Office-Beares Act, 1988 (Act No.20 of 1998);or 
d) expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipal entity incontravention contravention of, or that is not in 
accordance with, a requirement of the supply chain management policy of the municipalityor entity or any of the 

muncipality'sby-laws giving effect to such policy, and which has not been condoned in terms of such policy or bu 
law, 
but excludes ependiture by a municipality which falls within the definition of "unautorised expenditure" 

 
In  this  context 'expenditure' refers  to  any use of  municipal  funds  that is in contravention  of  the following 
legislation: 

 
>MunicipalFinance Management Act, Act 56 of 2003, and its regulations 
>Municipal Systems Act, Act 32 of 2000, and its regulations 

>Public Office Bearers Act, Act 20 of 1998, and its regulations; and 
>The municipality's supply chain management policy, and any by-laws giving effect to that policy. 

 
National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the 
PFMA requires the following (effective from 1 April2008): 

 
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before 
year end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular 

expenditure register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the 
note to the financial statements. 

 
Irregular  expenditure  that  was  incurred  and  identified  during  the  current  financial  year  and  for  which 

condonement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further 
action is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements. 

 
Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following 

financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount 
condoned. 

 
Irregular  expenditure that  was  incurred  and identified  during  the  current  financial year  and  which was  not 
condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant  authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular 

expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be 

created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from 
the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the 
amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular 
expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and 
no  person  is  liable  in  law,  the  expenditure  related  thereto  must  remain  against  the  relevant 
programme/expenditure  item,  be  disclosed  as  such  in  the  note  to  the  financial statements  and updated 
accordingly in the irregular expenditure register. 

 
Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 

2003), the Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or 
is in contravention of the economic  entity's supply chain management  policy. Irregular expenditure excludes 
unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial 
Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial 
Performance. 
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Figures in Rand 2020 2019 

 
2. Operating lease asset (accrual) 

  

 

Current assets  
 

24,799 
Current liabilities (225,957) (215,270) 

 (225,957) (190,471) 

 

3.      Employee benefit obligations 
 

Information on post retirements benefits 
 

Employees belong to a variety of approved Pension and Provident Funds as described below. These funds are 
governed by Pension Funds Act and include both defined and defined  contribution schemes. All these afore 
mentioned schemes are multi employer plans and are subject to tri annual or annual valuation 

 
Defined Contribution Schemes 

 
Currently the municipality  is making contributions to 3 defined contribution pension schemes  namely  Samwu 
National Provident Fund (SANPF), Municipal Councillors  Pension Fund (MCPF), Cape  Joint  Pension Fund 
(CJPF). 

 
GRAP 25 requires the disclosure of the amount recognised as an expense in the current financial year, reflecting 
the municipality's contribution to these contribution schemes for the year. 

 
Defined  Benefit Schemes 

 
The municipality currently participates in Municipal Employees Pension Fund (MEPF), Government Employees 
Pension  Fund (GEPF) Natal  Joint  Municipal Fund (NJMPF),  South African  Local Authorities  Pension Fund 
(SALA). 

 
All these are multi employer schemes  and sufficient information is not available for the  municipality to fully 
comply with the requirements of GRAP 25 with regards to defined benefits scheme. Plan assets are presented 
as one portfolio and not notionally allocated to each participating  employer, the plan financial assets are not 
constructed separately for each participating employer but rather in respect of the whole plan including all 
participating employees. Contribution rates do not vary by participating employers. 

 
The  standard requires  disclosures  of  the  amount  recognised  as  an expense in the  current  financial year, 
reflecting the municipality's contribution paid to these defined schemes in respect of this period. 

 

Pension Contributions 2020. 2019 
Cape Joint Pension Fund 1,620,274 1,628,345 

South African Municipal Provident Fund 4,911,660 4,500,798 
Natal Joint Municipal Fund 913,203 866,133 
MunicipalEmployees Pension Fund 10,616,757 8,738,031 
South African LocalAuthorities Pension Fund 59,412 68,038 

Gvt Employees Pension Fund 676,591 746,270 

 18,797,897 16,547,615 
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Figures in Rand 2020 2019 

 
4. Inventories 

  

 

Consumables Stores 4,941,541 5,065,761 

Water 6,288,092 7,373,080 

 11,229,633 12,438,841 

 
4.1    Water Losses 

  

Water Stock Opening Balance (Volumes) 214,264 207,190 
Produced (Volumes) 2,509,908 2,210,463 

Less Water Sales (Volumes) (1,809,971) (1,535,294) 
Less Water Stock Closing Balances (Volumes) (209,042) (214,264) 

 705,159 668,095 

 
Cost of producing one cubic meter 

 
30.08 

 
34.41 

Water loss in rands 21,211,183 22,989,149 

Water loss as a % of produced 28 30 

The water losses are a result of leakages on the distribution system as well as illegal connections.   

5.  Receivables from exchange transactions   

 

Consumer debtors -Water 51,976,035 49,414,675 

Consumer debtors - Sewerage 2,668,355 2,341,796 

Consumer debtors - Other 2,458,863 2,014,927 

 57,103,253 53,771,398 

 

Gross Amount 
 

 

Water 128,787,974 123,770,997 

Sanitation 19,326,352 18,577,961 
Other 3,433,634 3,261,888 

 151,547,960 145,610,846 

 
Less Allowance for DoubtfulDebts 
Water 

 
 

{76,811,940) 

 
 

(74,356,322) 
Sanitation (16,657,999) (16,236,166) 

Other (974,772) (1,246,961) 

 (94,444,711) (91,839,449) 

 
Net Balances 
Water 

  
 

49,414,675 
Sanitation  2,341,795 

Other  2,014,927 

  53,771,397 
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388,428 358,068 

330,003 348,221 
323,441 342,174 
326,049 338,310 

17,958,432 17,191,189 

19,326,353 18,577,962 

 

- 

-  ............. ........ 

Figures in Rand  2020 2019 
 

 
5. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued) 

Water 

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by 

reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates: 
 
 

Current (0 30 days) 
3160 days 

 
91-120 days 
>120 days 

1
 

 
 
 
 

 
AUDITOR a..

 

3,417,466 
3,026,602 

 
2,872,428 

116,279,614 

3,723,200 
3,617,254 

 
3,061,476 

109,232,110 

 

 
Sewerage 

 
 

Current (0-30 days) 
31-60 days 
61 -90 days 

91-120 days 
>120 days 

 
'"""- 1. 

RECEIVED 
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128,787,974  123,770,996 

 

 
Other 
Current (0-30 days) 
31-60  days 
61-90 days 
91- 120 days 
> 120 days 

 
9  38,046 

50,265  33,017 
35,364  32,384 
35,364 

3,312,633 3,158,441 

3,433,635  3,261,888 
 

 
Summary of debtors by customer classification 
 
Consumers 

 

Current (0·30 days) 752,531 909,481 
31 60 days 719,208 882,897 
61-90 days 721,877 1'197,894 
91-120 days 709,660 1,066,433 
>120 days 79,675,396 81,078,881 

Subtotal 82,578,672 85,135,586 
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts (71,354,622) (71,631,265) 

 11,224,050 13,504,321 

 
Industrial/ Commercial 

  

Current (Q-30 days) 437,211 436,666 
31-60 days 357,204 273,598 
61-90 days 356,649 395,448 
91-120 days 363,007 454,995 
>120 days 35,180,040 25,720,165 

Subtotal 36,694,111 27,280,872 
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts (9,667,842) (7,134,460) 

 27,026,269 20,146,412 
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Figures in Rand 
 

5.  Receivables from exchange transactions (continued) 

Churches 

Current (0-30 days) 
31-60 days 

61-90 days 
91-120 days 
>120 days 

Subtotal 
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts 

 

2020  2019 
 
 
 
 
 

22,470  32,685 
21,645  29,254 

23,345  51'193 
22,514  46,825 

2,193,127 1,869,612 

2,283,101 2,029,569 
(2,084,077)    (1,797,958) 

199,024  231,611 

 
The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies: 

 
National and Provincial Government 

Current (0-30 days) 
31-60 days 

61-90 days 
91-120 days 
>120 days 

Subtotal 

Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts 

 
2,593,692  2,702,435 
2,308,814 2,779,727 

2,448,798  2,834,594 
2,138,660  1,831,533 

18,037,738 18,344,086 

27,527,702 28,492,375 

(10,549,256) (10,040, 737) 

16,978,446 18,451,638 

 
Other Sundry 

Current (0-30 days) 

31 -60 days 
61-90 days 
>120 days 

Less allowance for impairment 

 
 
 
 
2,464,378 
(788,914) 

 
38,046 
33,017 
32,384 

2,568,996 
(1,235,030) 

1,675,464 1,437,413 

 
Total 

Current (0-30 days) 
31-60 days 
61-90 days 
91-120 days 

>120 days 

 
3,805,903 
3,406,870 
3,550,668 

3,233,840 

137,550,680 

 
4,119,314 
3,998,493 
4,511,513 

3,399,786 

129,581,740 

Subtotal 
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts 

151,547,961   145,610,846 

(94,444.711)  (91,839,449) 

57,103,250  53,771,397 

 
Reconciliation of Allowance for Doubtful Debts 

 

Opening balance 
Provision for impairment 

(91,839,449)  (84,024,452) 

(2,605,254)  {7,814,997) 

{94,444,703) (91,839,449) 

 
Consumer debtors  pledged as security 

 
 

No consumer debtors were pledged as security during the year. 
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5.  Receivables from exchange transactions (continued) 

Credit quality of consumer receivables 

The credit quality of consumer receivables from exchange transactions that are neither past due nor impaired 
can be assesed for indications of impairment. The municipality considers that the above financial assets that are 
not impaired at each of the reporting dates under review are of good credit quality. The municipality continously 
monitors consumers and identified groups by reference to average payment history and incoporates this 
information into its credit risk control. No externalcredit rating is performed. 

 
Consumers receivables are billed monthly. No interest is charged on consumer receivables. An imputed interest 
has  been  calculated  to  comply  with  the provisions  of  GRAP  9 paragraph  15  of  revenue  recognition. The 
municipality enforces its approved credit control policy to ensure the recovery of consumer receivables .None of 
the financial assets that are fully performing have been renegotiated in the last year. 

 
 

6.      Receivables  from non-exchange transactions 
 

Staff Debtors 505,508 464,263 
Other Debtors 3,595,723 226,837 

 4,101,231 691,100 

 

7.  VAT receivable 

 
VAT 10,254,136 19,678,934 

 
VAT is payable on a cash basis once payment has been received from debtors then VAT is paid over to SARS 
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8. Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents consist ot 
 

Cash on hand 
Bank balances 

571,249,917 279,667,745 
6,764,704 2,829,436 

578,014,621  282,497,181 

 
Short term deposits are investments with a maturity of less than 3 months and earn interests rates varying from 
0% to 7.5% per annum. 

 
Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand 

 
The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor 
impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or historical information about 
counterparty default rates: 

 
The municipality had the following bank accounts 

 
Account number I                               Bank statement balances                                      Cash book balances 
description 

30 June 2020   30 June 2019   30 June 2018   30June  2020   30 June 2019   30 June 2018 

Main Account- Current Account  6,699,898 21,280,286  28,448,579 6,764,704 2,829,436 25,332,037 
#62024932974 
ANDM Main Call Account#  280,047,781 176,228,187  25,643,010  280,047,781 176,228,188  25,643,011 

62474364553 
DBSA -Loan Account 58,962,420 90,301,067  42,352,676  58,962,420  90,301,069  42,352,676 
#62425228732 
RuralRoad Asset Management  49,695 3,956  403,129 49,695 3,956 403,129 

#62454657720 
Regional Bulk Account  5,915,464 16,276 75,967  5,915,464  16,276 75,967 
#62027459371 
EPWP Account# 62058637110  99,237 9,833  64,819  99,237  9,833  329,624 
FMG Account # 62033034597  437,883 3,715  65,326  437,883  3,715  65,326 
WSIG Grant Account#  15,059,475 56,600  115,244  15,059,475  56,600 115,244 
62033034448 

Energy & Efficency Account  2,604,111 31,184  11,490 2,604,111  31,184  11,490 
#62027455808 

Salaries & Alowances #  48,737,597  12,670,980 123,110  48,737,597 12,670,980 123,110 

620255448855 
ISDG Account# 62093560136  1,972,564 12,427  1,437,430  1,972,564  12,427 1,437,430 
MIG Account# 62065368328  92,991,417 333,509  366,512 92,991,417 333,509  366,512 

NEDBANK 64,372,274 64,372,274 

 Petty Cash   7 

Total  577,  49,81{"J 9 2 E . 2- 

- CEIYED  - 
 

0 4 NOV  2020 

Name:.....................•......................... 
Signature:....................................... 

78,014,622  282,497,180 96,255,556 
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9.     Property,plant and equipment 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Land 
Buildings 
Infrastructure 

Other property,plant and equipment 
Assets Under Construction- Water 

Assets Under Construction- Sanitation 
Assets Under Construction- Speciafosed Vehicle Conversion 

 
Cost/ 

Valuation 

 

 
465,000 

55,888,471 
2,300,883,484 

95,618,931 
2,193,904,308 

190,232,239 

2020 

Accumulated   Carrying value  Cost I 
depreciation Valuation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment 

4165,000  465,000 

(25,671,683) 30,216,788 55,539,544 
(532,755,396)1,758,128,088  2,259,629,679 

(46,278,239)      49,340,692 81,180,436 

- 2,193,904,308  1,865,130,800 
190,232,239     191,315.838 

2,086,796 

2019 

Accumulated   Carrying value 
depreciation 

and 

acemutated 
impairment 

465,000 
(23,785,6241)      31,753,920 

(464,280,295)1,795,349,38
4 (38,150,702)     

43,029,734 

- 1,865,130,800 
191,315,838 

2,086,796 

Assets Under Construction- Buildings 

Total 

5,109,269  5,109,269 1,754,526 

4,842,101'702    (604,705,318) 4,237,396,384  4,457'102,619 

1,754,526 

(526,216,621) 3,930,885,998 

 

Reconciliation of property,pal nt • nd equipment - 2020 

 
 

Land 

 
Opening 

balance 
465,000 

 
ADOmons uerecognmon rransters Depreciation  Total 

 
465,000 

Buildings 
Infrastructure 

Other property,plant and equipment 
Assets Under Construct on - Water 

Assets Under Construct on- Sanitation 
Assets Under Construction- SpeciailsedVehicle Conversion 

Assets under Construction- Buildings 

31,753,920 

1,795,349,384 
43,029,734 

1,873,856,718 
182,589,920 

2,086,796 

1,754,526 

348,927 

136,500 

10,947,082 
361,907.409 

7,642,320 

2,086,796 

3,354,742 

 
(129,956) 
(266,374) 

 
41,859,817 

4,173,592 
(41,859,819) 

 
(4,173,592) 

(1,886,059)      30,216,788 

(69,087,657) 

1,768,128,088 

(8,543,342)     49,340,692 

- 2,193,904,308 
190,232,240 

 
5,109,258 

3,930,885,998    386,423,776 (396,330) 
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9,     Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

ReconcHiation of property,plllnt and   ulpment- 2019 

 
 

Land 
Buildings 

 
Opening  Addlons Derecognition  Transfers     Other changes,  Depreciation  Total 
balance     movements 

465,000  465,000 
35,377,303  (1,754,526)  (1,868.857)  31,753,920 

Infrastructure 1,806,579,021   56,176,640  (67,406,277) 1,795,349,384 

Other property,plant and equipment 47,165,205 6,316,949 (1,240,265)   (9,212,155)     43,029,734 

Assets Under Construction • Water 1,479,312,915 445,682,501  (45,157,781) (5,980,917) - 1,873,856,718 

Assets Under Construction • Sanitation 187,994,659 5,504,985  (10,909,724)  182,589,920 

Asset Under ConstructionRoads  2,086,796    2,086,796 

Assets Under Construction• Buildings I ,754,526     1,754,526 

 3,558,648,629 459,591,231 (1,240,265) (1,645,391) (5,980,917) (78,487,289) 3,930,885,998 

 
The following water and infrastructure projects have been on hold for more than 2 yeaJS due to budget constraints 

 
1) Tholameta Water 
2) Ramohlakoana Sewer reticulation 
3) FeasibHity Studies 

 
Expenditure incumtd to repair  and maintain property,plant and  ulpm•nt 

 
Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property,plant and equipment 
Included In Statament of FinancialPerfonnance 

Contracted services  40,100,925 41,196,035 

 
A register containing  the information  required by  section 63  of  the Municipal  Finance  Management Act  Is 

available for inspection allhe registered office of the munidpality. 
No assets were held as colatera.l 
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10.   Intangible assets 
 

 
2020  2019 

Cost/  Accumulated   Carrying value  Cost/  Accumulated   Carrying value 
Valuation amortisation  Valuation amortisation 

and    and 
accumulated  accumulated 
impairment   impairment 

Computer software. internally 6,531,869 (4,350,802)  2,181,067  6,426,569  (3,668,947)  2,757,622 
generated 
Computer software, other  629,482  629,482 

Total  7,161,351  (4,350,802) 2,810,549  6,426,569  (3,668,947)  2,757,622 

 
Reconciliation of Intangible assets - 2020 

 
Opening Additions Amortisation Total 
balance 

Computer software, internally generated  2,757,622  160,000  (736,555)  2,181,067 
Website Development  629,482  629,482 

2,757,622  789,482  (736,555)  2,810,549 

 
Reconciliation of intangible assets- 2019 

 
Opening  Additions  Amortisation  Total 

balance 
Computer software, internally generated  2,841,544  301,890  (385,812) 2,757,622 

 
11.   Heritage Assets 

 

 
2020  2019 

Cost/  Accumulated   Carrying value  Cost/  Accumulated   Carrying value 
Valuation impairment  Valuation  impairment 

losses    losses 
 

Art Collections, antiquities and  131,100 131,100  131'100  131,100 
exhibits 

 
12.   Investments In controlled entities 

 

Name of company 

 
Alfred Nzo Development Agency 

 
The carrying amounts of controlled entities are 

 
13.   Staff Loans 

Carrying  Carrying 

amount 2020    amount 2019 
100  100 

 

Long Term Receivables 

 
Allowance for Doubtful Debts 

1,076,862  1,088,862 

1,076,862   1,088,862 

(1,076,862)  (1,088,862} 
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13.   Staff Loans  (continued) 
 

The municipality assisted some employees to buy motor vehicles through provision of car loans. However, some 

of them have long left the municipality and some have passed on. This makes the recoverability of the amounts 
in question doubtful hence the muncipality decided to fully provide for  the loan balances. 

 
These loans were granted in 2002. The municipality does not offer loans to staff anymore. 

 
14.   Investments 

 

Designated at fair value 
Nedbank Long tenn Investment 

 
 

 
Non-current assets 

Current assets 
 

 
Account 

 
 

Nedbank Account 

 
8,727,587 8,022,159 

8,727,587 8,022,159 
 
 

8,727,587 8,022,159 
 

 
 
Cashbook  Cashbook  Bank Bank 

2020  2019  Statement Statement 

2020  2019 

8,727,587  8,022,159 8,727,587 8,022,159 

 
15.  Unspent conditional grants  and receipts 

 
Unspent  conditional grants and receipts comprises of: 

 

Unspent  conditionalgrants and receipts 
Municipal Infrastructure Grant 
MunicipalSystems Implementation Grant 
Water Services Infrastructure Grant 
Infrastructure Skills Development Grant 
Regional Bulk Infrastructure Grant 

 
70,880,119 

(1)  (1) 
5,430,266 

3  3 

1  1 

76,310,388 3 

 
The nature and extent  of government grants recognised in the financial statements and an indication of other 
forms of government assistance from which the municipality has directly benefited; 

 
Unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government assistance that has been recognised. 

See note 27 for reconciliation of grants from National/Provincial    overnment. 

These amounts are invested in ring-fenced investments until u 
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16.   Provisions 

 
Reconciliation of provisions - 2020 

 
Opening Utilised during  Total 

Balance  the year 
Litigation Provision  1,200,000  1,200,000 
Leave Provision  22,504,078 6,520,885  29,024,963 

23,704,078 6,520,885 30,224,963 

 
Reconciliation of provisions- 2019 

 
Opening  Additions  Total 
Balance 

Legal proceedings  1,200,000  1,200,000 
Leave Provision 20,127,818 2,376,260 22,504,078 
Non Current Long Service 

20,127,818  3,576,260  23,704,078 

 
Leave Provision 

 
Staff leave accrue to the staff of the municipality on an annual basis, subject to certain conditions. The provision 
is an estimate of the amount due at the reporting date. 

 
Litigation Provision 

 
On the  26th  of  June  2019,  the  High  Court of  South  Africa, Mthatha,  delivered  a  judgement  against  the 

municipality on an old case between the municipality and Ms Z Mgwebi. The two parties are to meet to discuss 
the quantum of the compensation. 

 
17.   Long Term Loan 

 
Annuity loan is with the Development Bank of South Africa   over  a period of 25 years and at an interest rate of 
11.47% per annum. 

 
The municipality did not default on any payment of its Long Term   Liabilities. No terms for payment were re 

negotiated by the municipality. 

An Investment with Nedbank  (Account Number 7881111046/0002) has been ceded as security for the loan. 

The loan was settled in the current financial year. 
 
 

Development Bank of South  Africa 
Non Current at Amortised Cost 
Current at Amortised cost  6,926 

 
4,436,079 

770,706 

6,926 5,206,785 

 
18.   Payables From Non  Exchange Transactions 

 
These are payments made by customers in advance for consumption. 

 
 

Advance payments by customers  2,241,327  1'178,433 
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19.   Payables from exchange transactions 

  

 

Trade payables 
 

7,250,636 
 

4,871,300 

Accruals 86,266,544 47,622,545 
Accrued bonus 5,341,001 4,622,743 

Retentions 58,951,140 50,493,865 
Third party payments 9,042,723 6,449 

Other Creditors 118,040 2,775 

 166,970,084 107,619,677 
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20.  Employee Benefit Obligation 

2019 

 

Long Service Awards 
Current Portion 

Non Current Portion 

 
1,296,000 

9,603,000 

 
665,078 

8,922,810 

10,899,000 9,587,888 

 
Long Service Awards 
The municipality operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its employees. Under the plan, a long- service 
award is payable  after five years  of continuous service  and every  five years thereafter to  employees. The 
provision is an estimate of the long service based on historical staff turnover. No other long service benefits are 

provided to employees. These provisions are made to enable the municipality to be in a position to fulfil its known 
legal obligations when they become due and payable. 

 
The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were 
carried out at 30 June 2020 by Mr C Weiss Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa. The present value of 
the defined benefit obligation, and the related  current service cost and past service cost, were measured using 
the Projected Unit Credit Method. 

 
At year end of the year 488, (2019: 448) employees were eligible for Long Service Awards. 

 

 
 

The principalassumptions used for the purpose of the acturial valuations were  
Discount rate % 7 8 
Cost Inflation rate % 4 6 

Net Effective Discount Rate 3 2 
Expected Retirement Age - Females 62 60 
Expected Retirement Age - Males 62 65 

 
 
Movements in the present value of the Defined Obligation were as follows: 
Balance at the beginning of the year 

 
 

9,587,888 

 
 

7,557,467 
Current Service Cost 1,346,722 944,015 

Interest cost 755,769 607,176 

Benefit Paid (305,638) (897,048) 
Actuarial ( gains) losses (485,741) 1,376,278 

Present Value of Fund at the end of the Year 10,899,000 9,587,888 

 

The amounts recognised in the Statement of FinancialPerformance are as 
follows 
Current Service Cost 
Interest Cost 
Actuarial (gain) /loss 

 
 
 

The history of the adjustments is as toll 
Defined Value of Defined Value Obligatio 

 
 
1,346,722 944,015 

755,769 607,176 

(485,741)   897,443 

1,616,750 2,448,634 
 

 
2018  2017 
7,557,467  7,184,252 
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21.   Revenue 

 
Service charges 

 

Name.·......................... 
 
 
24,666,692  36,021,719 

Rental of facilities and equipment
 Slsnature·

 
•·•··•••·............

 
207,496 369,583

 
 

Agency services 
Other income 
Interest received investment 

Government grants & subsidies 

.········................................. 
 

328,787  221,502 
1,174,378 2,812,165 

45,362,429  38,857,409 
1,017.729,452 1,038,098,210 

1,089,469,234 1,116,380,588 

 
The amount Included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services 
are as follows: 
Service charges 
Rental of facilities and equipment 
Agency services 

Other income 

Interest received- investment 

 
 
24,666,692 

207,496 

328,787 
1,174,378 

45,362,429 

 
 
36,021,719 

369,583 
221,502 

2,812,165 
38,857,409 

71,739,782 78,282,378 
 

 
The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as 
follows: 
Taxation revenue 
Transfer revenue 
Government grants & subsidies  1,017,729,452  1,038,098,210 

 
22.   Service charges 

 

Sale of water 

Sewerage and sanitation charges 

22,179,697 
2,486,995 

32,549,994 
3,471,725 

24,666,692 36,021,719 

 
23.  Rental of facilities and equipment 

 
Premises 
Premises  207,496  369,583 

 
24.   Other income 

 

Clearance fees 
Fire Levy 

Sundry Income 
Insurance Refund 

64,926  1,894,421 

23,729 18,270 
503,500 899,474 

582,223 

1,174,378 2,812,165 

 
25.   Investment revenue 

 

Interest revenue 
Call Deposits 
SARS Interest 
Debtors Fair Value Adjustment 

 
31,906,871 26,036,852 

58,607 
13,396,951  12,820,557 

45,362,429 38,857,409 
 
45,362,429 38,857,409 



54 

Alfred Nzo District Municipality 
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

 

 

 

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 

 
26.  Agency Services 

 
Commission received 

 

 
 
 

328,787 

 

 
 
 

221,502 

 

The municipality earns commission from garnishee orders done  on the employees salaries and paid to the third 

parties. 
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27.   Government grants  and subsidies 

  

Operating grants   
Equitable share 556,720,000 510,344,000 

Finance Management Grant 1,865,000 1,865,000 

Local Government SETA 403,071 373,796 

Energy Efficiency and Demand Management 6,000,000 6,000,000 

Climate Change Grant 163,240  
Expanded Public Works Programme 9,174,000 10,844,000 

Water Services Infrastructure Grant 84,569,734 110,000,000 

Municipal Infrastructure Grant 305,128,881 347,914,000 

Regional Bulk lnfastructure Grant 44,002,526 43,067,414 

Department of Transport 2,426,000 2,290,000 

Municipal Disaster Grant 1,877,000  
Infrastructure Skills Development Grant 5,400,000 5,400,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

During the year, the municipality received its draw downs as per NationalTreasury indicatives. 
 

Expanded Public  Works Programme 
 

Current-year receipts 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue 
9,174,000 

(9,174,000) 
10,844,000 

(10,844,000) 
 

 
 

EPWP grant is used to incentivise municipalities  to expand work creation efforts through  the use of labour 
intensive delivery methods in the following identified focus a·reas, in compliance with the EPWP guidelines: road 
maintenance  and   maintenance  of  buildings,  low  traffic  volume  roads  and  rural   roads,   basic  services, 
infrastructure, including water and sewer reticulation, sanitation, pipelines ( excluding bulk infrastructure) other 
economic and social infrastructure, tourism and cultural industries, waste management. parks and beautification, 
sustainable land based livelihoods, social services programmes and community safety programmes. 

 
During the year, the municipality received its draw downs as per National Treasury indicatives 

 
Finance Management Grant (FMG) 

 

Current-year receipts 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue 
1,865,000 

(1,865,000) 
1,865,000 

(1,865,000) 
 

 
 

The Finance Management Grant is allocated to municipalities to assist in building in house capacity to perform 
their functions and to improve and stabilise municipal systems. No funds have been withheld. 

 
During the year, the municipality received its draw downs as per National Treasury indicatives. 

 
MunicipalInfrastructure Grant (MIG) 

 

Current-year receipts 
Conditions met - transferred to revenue 
Other 

376,009,000 367,914,000 
(305,128,881)  (347,914,000) 

(20,000,000) 

70,880,119 
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27.  Government grants and subsidies (continued) 

 
The grant is meant to eradicate basic municipal infrastructure backlogs for poor households,  micro enterprises 
and social institutions servicing poor communities. 
The municipality has applied to National Treasury for roll over of the unspent amount of the grant. 

 
Department of  Transport 

 

Current-year receipts 
Conditions met - transferred to revenue 

2,426,000 
(2,426,000) 

2,290,000 
(2,290,000) 

 

 
 

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities The grant is used to supplement projects for the repair of roads and 
bridges damaged by unforeseen incidents including natural di asters 

 

During the year, the municipality received its draw downs a 
 
 

Water Services Infrastructure Grant (WSIG) 
 

Current-year receipts 
Conditions met - transferred to revenue 

90,000,000 110,000,000 
4,569,734)  (110,000,000) 

5,430,266 
 
 
 

 

......... 
During the year, the municipality received its draw downs as per National Treasury 1 

 
The municipality has applied to National Treasury for roll over of the unspent grant. 

 
Infrastructure Skills Development Grant (ISDG) 

 
Current-year receipts 
Conditions met- transferred to revenue 

5,400,000 
(5,400,000) 

5,400,000 
(5,400,000) 

 

 
 

To recruit unemployed graduates into municipalities to be trained as the requirements of the relevant statutory 
councilts within the built environment. 

 
During the year, the municipality received its draw downs as per NationalTreasury indicatives. 

 
RegionalBulk Infrastructure Grant (RBIG) 

 

Current-year receipts 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue 
44,002,526  43,067,414 

(44,002,526)  (43,067,414) 
 

 
 

The grant was used for construction of bulk infrastructure which will provide sustainable water supply to the 
communities of Umzimvubu ana Matatilele local areas. The grant is transfered from DWA. 

 
During the year, the municipality received its draw downs as per National Treasury indicatives. 

 
Energy Efficiency 
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27.  Government grants and subsidies (continued) 
Current-year receipts 
Conditions met - transferred to revenue 

 
6,000,000 

{6,000,000) 

 
6,000,000 

{6,000,000) 
 

 
 

To provide subsidies to municipalities to implement energy efficiency and demand side management initiatives 
within municipal infrastructure in order to reduce electricity consumption and improve energy efficiency. 

 
During the year, the municipality received its draw downs as per National Treasury indicativesy 

 
MunicipalDisaster Relief 

 

Current-year receipts 
Conditions met - transferred to revenue 

1,877,000 
(1,877,000) 

 

 
 

Conditions still to be met- remain liabilities (see note 15). 

 
To provide funding for responding to and providing relief for unforseable and unavoidable disasters. 
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28.   Employee related costs 

  

 

Basic 
 

177,202,450 
 

161,038,916 

Bonus 11,149,674 9,836,386 
Medical aid - company contributions 9,804,410 8,638,303 
UIF 1,297,190 902,584 
SDL 1,669,902 1,836,000 
Leave pay provision charge 9,218,957 4,755,226 
Defined contribution plans 18,797,896 16,547,617 
Overtime payments 3,548,881 1,241,211 
Long-service awards 2,102,491 1,551'190 
Transport allowance 16,850,001 15,909,450 
Housing benefits and allowances 7,100,026 7,268,372 

Standby allowances 1,854,670 890,869 
Shift Allowances 15,072,586 14,546,744 

Bargaining Council 60,775 51,329 

 275,729,909 245,014,197 

 
Remuneration of MunicipalManager 

 

 
 

 

 

Annual Remuneration 
 

1,074,635 
 

1,022,414 

Car Allowance 125,374 118,277 

Bonus 88,286 83,459 
Contributions to UIF, SOL and Levy 15,079 16,704 
Other 501,495 473,109 

 1,804,869 1,713,963 

 
Remuneration of Chief Finance Officer 

  

 

Annual Remuneration 
 

1,138,109 
 

1,066,921 

Car Allowance 282,080 266,113 
Bonus 73,528 46,200 
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Levy 12,280 13,972 

 1,505,997 1,393,206 

 

 
Remuneration of Senior Manager- Community Services 

 
Annual Remuneration 

 

 
 

770,153 

 

 
 

968,746 

Car Allowance 128,359 10,091 
Bonus 20,182  
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Levy 12,289 11,737 
Other 320,897 25,228 

 1,251,880 1,015,802 

 
Remuneration of  Senior Manager- Corporate Services 

  

 

AnnualRemuneration 
 

770,153 
 

726,559 

Car Allowance 320,897 302,733 
Bonus 63,271 59,812 
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Levy 12,401 13,591 
Other 128,359 121,093 

 1,295,081 1,223,788 
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28.   Employee related costs (continued) 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
AnnualRemuneration 

 

 
385,907 

 
688,444 

Car Allowance 96,476 223,704 
Bonus 32,159 73,860 
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Levy 5,340 13,983 
Other 128,637 177,816 

Acting Allowance 48,437  

 696,956 1,177,807 

 
Remuneration of Senior Manager -Planning and Economic Development 

 

 
 

 

 

Annual Remuneration 
 

238,895 606,450 

Car Allowance 15,000 105,261 
Bonus  47,571 
Contributions to UIF, SDL 1,216 11,548 
Other 17,159 248,467 

Acting allowance 86,945  

 359,215 1,019,297 

 
Remuneration of staff is within the upper limits of the SALGA bargaining council determinations. 

  

29.  Remuneration of councillors   

 

Councillors 
 

11,565,141 
 

10,359,387 

 
Remuneration of Councillors 

  

Executive Mayor 893,850 859,471 

Deputy Executive Mayor 442,648 393,890 

Speaker 715,078 687,575 
Chief Whip 670,387 679,242 
Mayoral Committee 5,452,032 5,321,369 
Councillors 3,391,145 2,417,840 

 11,565,140 10,359,387 

 

The allowances and benefits of councillors as disclosed  above are within the   upper limits of the framework 
envisaged in Section 219 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration of Public Office Bearers Act and the 
Minister of Provincial and Local Government's determination in accordance with this act. 

 
30.   Litigation Expenditure 

 
LegalFees                                                                                                                                                 2,100,210         9,508,418 

 
31.  Depreciation and amortisation 

 
Property, plant and equipment                                                                                                               80,253,612      77,301,720 

 
32.  Finance costs 

 

Interest on Overdue Accounts 
DBSA Loan 

364 
359,019 

359,383 

13,428 
725,915 

739,343 
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33.   Debt Impairment 

  

 

Provision for Debt Impairment 
 

2,593,262 7,814,997 

 
34.   Bulk purchases 

  

 

Water 8,624,476 8,910,629 

 
35.   Contracted services 

  

 

Security Services 26,053,628 19,322,891 

Repairs and Maintanence 41,831,924 41,196,034 

Other Contractors 24,502,217 22,072,964 

 92,387,769 82,591,889 

 
36.   Transfers and subsidies paid 

  

 

Other subsidies 

Other Grants 

 
17,826,087 

 
17,395,425 

 
37.   General expenses 

 

 
 

 

 

Advertising 1,709,148 4,378,462 

Auditors remuneration 6,788,280 6,031,096 

Bank charges 766,064 754,501 
Cleaning 1,435,259 473,538 

Consulting and professional fees 27,722,431 6,551,264 

Consumables 8,072,178 8,778,594 

Insurance 1,783,241 1,789,127 

Conferences and seminars 600,144 1,781,476 
IT expenses 1,279,000  
Magazines, books and periodicals 631,695  
Fuel and oil 4,058,974 3,588,677 

Printing and stationery 1,364,519 828,889 
Protective clothing 725,078 3,658,170 

Software expenses  141,710 
Subscriptions and membership fees 2,748,532 2,719,150 

Telephone and fax 7,533,848 7,629,411 

Travel-local 20,753,512 21,000,720 
Electricity 14,413,786 13,110,267 

Accomodation 4,521,339 4,057,167 

Audit Committee 599,536 641,378 

Catering and Venue Hire 1,741,230 3,191,655 

Licence Fees 8,236,850 10,191,870 
Other expenses 20,799,088 18,693,359 

 138,283,732 119,990,481 

 
Cost containment measures 

  

 

The municipality has developed and implemented the cost containment policy as per Government  Gazette No 
42514. 

 
38.   Auditors' remuneration 

 
Fees  6,788,280  6,031,096 
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39.  Cash generated from operations 

  

 

Surplus 
 

459,306,377 
 

533,761,902 
Adjustments for:   
Depreciation and amortisation 80,253,612 77,301,720 
Loss on Disposals 82,862 1,240,265 
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss (485,741) 897,443 
Finance costs (144,939) (67,676) 

Debt impairment 2,593,262 7,814,997 
Movements in operating lease assets and ac 35,486 19,018 
Movements in provisions 6,520,885 5,838,651 
Movement in short term provisions 
Changes In working capital: 

1,311,112  

Inventories 1,209,208 (1,691,242) 
Receivables from exchange transactions (5,937,114) (11,708,153) 
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions (3,410,131) 582,035 
Payables from exchange transactions 29,897,165 (3,216,275) 
VAT 9,621,272 6,967,747 
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 76,310,385 1 

Payables from Non Exchange Transactions 1,062,894 800,058 

 658,226,595 618,540,491 

 

40.  Financial Instruments disclosure 
 

Categories of financialinstruments 
 

2020 
 

Financialassets 
 

At fair value  At amortised 

cost 

At cost  Total 

Unlisted Investments   100 100 
Long Term Investments 8,727,587   8,727,587 
Trade and other receivables  57,103,253  57,103,253 
Other recivables from Non Exchange Transactions  4,101,231  4,101,231 
Cash and cash equivalents  578,014,620  578,014,620 
VAT Receivable  10,057,662  10,057,662 

 8,727,587 649,276,766 100 658,004,453 

 

Financialliabilities 
 
 
 

DBSA Loan 

Trade and other payables from exchange transaction 
Trade and other payables from non exchange transactions 
Operating lease liability 

Unspent grants 

At amortised  Total 
cost 

6,926  6,926 
166,970,089  166,970,089 

2,241,327  2,241,327 
225,957 225,957 

76,310,388 76,310,388 

245,754,687  245,754,687 

 
2019 

 
Financialassets 

 
 
 

Unlisted Investments 

At fair value  At amortised 

cost 

At cost  Total 

 
100  100 
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40.   Financial Instruments disclosure (continued) 
Long Term Investments 

 

 
8,022,159 

   

 
8,022,159 

Trade and Other Receivables from Exchange  53,771,397  53,771,397 

transactions     
Other Receivables from non - exchange transactions  691,100  691'100 
Cash and cash equivalents  282,497,180  282,497'180 
VAT Receivable  19,678,934  19,678,934 
Operating lease Asset  24,799  24,799 

 8,022,159 356,663,410 100 364,685,669 

 

Financial liabilities 
 
 
 

Long Term Loan 
Trade and other payables from exchange tran 
Operating lease liability 

Payables from Non Exchange Transactions 

At amortised 

cost 
5,206,785 

107,619,679 

215,269 

1'178,433 

Total 
 

5,206,785 

107,619,679 
215,269 

1,178,433 

114,220,166 114,220,166 

 
41,   Commitments 

 
Authorised capital expenditure 

 

Already contracted for but not provided for 
Property, plant and equipment 

 
749,610,800  969,758,009 

 
Totalcapitalcommitments 

Already contracted for but not provided for 749,610,800  969,758,009 

 
This committed expenditure relates to property and will be financed by grants and internally generated funds.. 

 
Operating leases - Buildings  Expenses 

 

Minimum lease payments due 
- within one year 
- in second to fifth year inclusive 

- later than five years 

 
387,679 

1,095,013 
101,067 

 
356,071 

1,388,832 
394,908 

1,583,759 2,139,811 

 
Operating lease payments  represent rentals payable  by the municipality for certain of its office properties. No 
contingent rent is payable. 

 
Rental expenses relating to operating leases 
Minimum lease payments  43,521  435,215 

 
Operating leases- as lessor (income) 

 

Minimum lease payments due 
-within one year 
- in second to fifth year inclusive 

 
373,327 
329,044 

702,371 

 
Certain of  the  municipality's  excess  office  space  at  the  main  offices  is rented  out to third  parties.  Lease 
agreements are non-cancellable and have terms from 3 to 6 years. There are no contingent rents receivable. 



Alfred Nzo District Municipality 
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Figures in Rand 2020 2019 

63 

 

 

 
 

42.   Contingencies 
4t;y  <> 

•. <h.. 
Contingent Liabilities                                                            •••     ••••••        "' 
Makaziwe vs ANDM In this matter summons were issued against t ·· unici jty for 
payment of the sum R115 000 for services rendered it being alleged     • -the seN_ce 
provider was appointed to render certain services. The matter is being d         ed. ••••• 

During 2010 J and G Enterprises issued summons for financial damages it   'malle sJ 
that the municipality stopped them from performing their contract. The matter 1 ejng 
defended by the municipality . The matter is In pleading stage  ••• 
In 2010 Zolani Gulwa issued summons against the municipality for breach of contract of 
employment in that the municipality failed to pay him in terms of the contract. The 
municipality is defending the matter and it is pending in the high court. The matter is in 
pleading stage. 

Sinezipho Urban and Rural Development claims against the municipality for alleged 
termination of contract. The municipality is defending the matter 
In  2008 M J Phirimane issued summons against the municipality for services rendered. 
The municipality is defending the matter. A trial date is awaited. 

Rob Potow irrigation issued summons against the municipality for failure to pay for for 
material supplied in term of a verbal agreement. The municipality is defending the matter. 
The outcome is not certain at this stage. 
Letter of demand received in lieu of specialist consultancy services rendered ANDM vs 
Moko Corporate 
Supa Brick Tile vs ANDM: Payment for oustanding material for building material supplied 

as per cession. 
ANDM vs PDNA: Debt collection in respect to outstanding amounts. 
ANDM vs Don Boti: Eviction matter 
Natal Joint Municipal Pension Fund vs ANDM: Pyment of outstanding fund contribution 
Eugene Nel and Anand Jayraj v ANDM: Outstanding payment in respect of construction of 

municipalitys infrastructure 
Sikhokele Maphukutha VS ANDM: Repudiation of employment contract 
Uvikela Security vs ANDM: Outstanding payment in respect of supply, instalation and 

delivery of security equipment. 

ANDM vs Arule Security: Payment outstanding for services rendered. 
ECDC vs ADNM: Outstanding payment in respect of cession agreement. 
lkamva lolutsha vs ANDM: Alleged breach of contract in lie of supply of branded material. 
ANDM vs RoyalHasking: Outstanding amount in respect of Umzimvubu ward 6 water 

project. 
Madikizela vs ANDM: Alleged termination of contract of employment 
ANDM vs Sutu : Motor vehide accident 
Standard Bank Vs ANDM- Damages for motor vehicle. 

Umso Construction VS ANDM- Claim for services rendered. 
ANDM Vs Affinity solutions- non payment for professional services rendered 

ANDM vs MP Civils - Alleged  failure to supply and deliver a crawler sprinkler 
ANDM vs Hlumie Security Forces- Termination of contract 

ANDM vs Yongama Gxumisa- Repudiation of employment agreement. 

2020 
115,000 

 
 
1,541,600 
 
 

566,189 
 
 
 
1,544,713 
 
 
 
 
 
 

375,927 
 

127,782 

 
68,400 

 
147,937 

2,990,117 

 
6,600,000 
 
 
1,392,679 

114,240 

40,072 
1,259,500 
 
3,000,000 

50,000 
100,000 

5,390,148 

313,505 
30,700 

577,500 

5,000,000 

2019 
115,000 

 
 
1,541,600 
 
 

566,189 
 
 
 
1,544,713 
 

28,200 

 
24,522 

 
 

375,927 
 

127,782 

 
68,400 
25,187 

147,937 
2,990,117 

 
6,600,000 

333,192 

 
1,392,679 

114,240 

40,072 
1,259,500 

 
3,000,000 

50,000 
 
 

313,505 

30,700 

31,346,009 20,689,462 

 
Contingent assets 

 
 

ANDM vs Nontuthuzelo: Claim arising from motor vehicle accident 
ANDM vs Bulelani: Claim arising from motor vehicle accident 

2020  2019 
6,907 
1,079 

7,986 
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43.    Related  parties 

 
 
 

Grant to ANDA 

Grant Issued 
2020 

17,826,087 

Grant Issued 
2019 

17,395,425 

 
With regards to remuneration of Section 56 managers, please refer to note 30 which details the remuneration to 
Senior Managers 

During the year the municipality offered service in kind to ANDA in relation to Internal Audit. The total cost was 
R287 897. 

 
44.   Prior period errors 

 
Prior period has been amended to account for prior period errors 

 
Below is a summary  of the total effect that the prior period   errors, changes in accounting policies  and 
reclassification of comparatives   had on the amounts previously disclosed in the annual financial statements, 
followed by a description of each individual error with the amounts involved 

 
The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows: 
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44.   Prior period errors (continued) 

 

Statement of Financial Performance for the 
2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Revenue Total 
Employee Related Costs 
Remuneration of Councillors 
General Expenses 
Litigation Expenditure 
Debt Impairment 
Depreciation and amortisation 

Finance Costs Bulk 
purchases Contracted 
services Transfers and 
subsidies Gain or loss 
on disposal Actuarial 
gains or loss Operating 
leases 

Balance as  Prior period 
previously   error 
reported 

36,021,719 
369,583 

221,502 
2,812,165 

857,409 

8,210 
 
 

 
(2,020,412) 

(29,244) 
 

(3,157,124) 

(58,466) 

Reclassfied  Restated 
Balance 

 
36,021,719 

369,583 

221, 502 
2,812,165 

38,857,409 

-  1,038,098,210 

• 1'116,380,588 
-    (245,014,197) 

(10,359,387) 
-    (119,990,481) 

(9,508,418) 
(7,814,997) 
(77,301,720) 

(739,343) 
(8,910,629) 

(82,591,889) 
(17,395,425) 

(1,240,265) 
(897,443) 
(854,492) 

Surplus for the year  539,027,148  (5,266,246) 633,761,902 

 
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2019 

 
 

Inventories 

Receivables from exchange transactions 

Balances as 
previously 
reported 

12,438,841 
53,771,398 

Prior period  Reclassified Restated Balance 
errors 

 
12,438,841 

53,771,398 

Receivables from non- exchange transactions 
VAT Receivable 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Property Plant and Equipment 
Intangible Assets 
Heritage Assets 
Investments in Controlled Entities 

Investments 
Operating lease asset 

Subtotal 
Operating lease 

Payables from exchange transactions 
Unspent Conditional Grants 
Provisions 
Current Portion of Long Term Loan 
Payables from non exchange from transactions 

Provisions 
Long Term Loan 
Employee benefits obligations 

Opening Accumulated surplus 

1,065,753 
21,264,303 

282,497,181 
3,937,572,360 

2,757,622 
131,100 

100 
8,022,159 

24,799 

4, 319,545,616 
(215,270) 

(117,556,008) 
(3) 

(23,704,078) 
(770,706) 

(1,178,433) 
(8,922,810) 
(4,436,079) 

(665,078) 
(3,621,532,917) 

(374,653) 
(1,585,369) 
 
(6,686,362) 
 
 
 
 

 
(8,646,384) 

 
9,936,329 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(6,555,175) 

691,100 
19,678,934 

282,497,181 

3,930,885,998 

2,757,622 
131,100 

100 
8,022,159 

24,799 

4,310,899,232 
(215,270) 

(107,619,679) 
(3) 

(23,704,078) 
(770,706) 

(1'178,433) 
(8,922,810) 
(4,436,079) 

(665,078) 

(3,628,088,092) 

540,564,234  (5,265,230)  535,299,004 
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44.   Prior period errors (continued) 

 
Statement of financialposition 

 
 

Accumulated Surplus 
Fixed assets  adjustment 

Payables  adjustment 

Correction of Receivables from Non Exchange  Transactions 

 
1,848,187 

4,837,269 

(130,282) 

6,555,174 
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44.   Prior period errors (continued) 

General expenses 

 
 
 
 

Depreciation 

 
The municipality  reviewed   the  useful lives for some of its assets that had  carrying values of zero. This resulted 
in  the  downward  revision  of  the  depreciation  charge  of the  previous  year  by  R991  358.  In  addition the 
municipality also capitalised projects that had been finished in the previous period but had not been capitalised. 
This  resulted  in  addition  depreciation  charge  of  R4  148  366.52.  Overally  depreciation  was  adjusted  by 
R 3 157 123.93 

 
 

Payables from  exchange transactions 

 
A review  of the retentions register revealed that certain of the amounts had actually been released earlier on but 
had not been derecognised thus overstating the municipality's payables. The removal of the said amounts from 
the retentions  register resulted in a downward  movement  of the retentions by R6 574 601.  A review of the 
creditors accrual also revealed that 3 suppliers  had not yet provided the services that they had been credited for. 
These were duly reversed resulting in a downward movement of R6 904 056. On the other hand, the search for 
unrecorded  liabilities  resulted  in fresh  accruals  of R3  542 329 being  raised.  The  net  effect  of this was  a 
downward movement of payables by R9 936 329. 

 
Vat Receivable 

 
The reversal  of invalid retentions from the retentions  register resulted in the removal of the associated vat on 
retentions resulting in VAT going down by R1 585 369 

 
Receivables from non exchange transactions 

 
Two balances due from  overpaid contrators had beed recovered in prior periods but the recovery had not been 
credited to the  debtors  which continued to be  reflected as outstanding. This has now been  corrected which 
resulted in a downward revison of the figure by R374 653 

 
Property plant and equipment 

 
A review of the accruals listing for last year revealed that two transactions that been accrued for despite the fact 
that the invoices that had been received were latter on cancelled. The items were for work in progress. The items 
were  reversed  resulting  in  a downward  revison  of  PPE  by  R6 686  362. In  addition,  the  municipality  also 
capitalised projects  totalling R56 067 574 which had remained under assets under construction despite  them 

being completed. I 
 

Accumulated surplus 

 
The correction   of the  error on the retentions balance was credited to the accumulated surplus and the amount 
involved was RS 706 000. Some previously unaccrued liabilities were identified and duly charged to accumulated 
surplus totalling R869 000. The backdated revision of depreciation of certain assets resulted in a gain of R1 571 

381.16 000 which was  credited to accumulated surplus.ln addition, the capitalisation  of previously  completed 
assets which had remained uncapitalised resulted in backdated depreciation charge of R3 186 656.54 which was 
charged to the accumulated surplus vote.  The net effect of all these transactions was  R6 555 175 adjustment 
on accumulated surplus. 
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45.   Risk management 

 
Financial risk management 

 
The municipality's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value 
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 

 
The municipality's  overall risk management program  focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and 
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the municipality's financial performance. 

 
Liquidity risk 

 
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset . 

 
Liquidity risk is mitigated by approving cash funded budgets at all times to ensure commitments  can be settled 

once due over the long term. The municipality also monitors its cash balances on a daily basis to ensure cash 
resources are available to settle short term obligations. 

 
The following balances are exposed to liquidity 
risk: 

 

30 June  2020  Payable within Payable in 2 to Payable after 5 

1 year  5 years  years 
Total 

Annuity loans 

Payables from exchange transactions 
6,761 

168,266,089 9,603, 000 
6,761 

177,869,089 

168,272,850 9,603,000  177,875,850 

 
30 June  2019  Payable within Payable in 2 to Payable after 5 

1 year  5 years  years 
Total 

Annuity loans 
Payables from exchange transactions 

770,706  3,004,590  1,431,489 

108,284,757  8,922'810 
5,206,785 

117,207,567 

109,055,463 11,927,400 1,431,489  122,414,352 
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45.   Risk management (continued) 

Credit risk 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. 
The municipality only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any 
one counter-party. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Financialinstrument 2020 2019 
Long Term Investment 8,727,587 8,022,159 
Receivables from exchange transactions 57,103,253 53,771,397 
Receivables from Non Exchange Transaction 4,101,231 691,100 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 578,014,620 282,497,181 

VAT Receivable 10,057,662 19,678,934 

Cash and Cash equivalents and Non Current Investments 
Deposits of the  municiapality   only held  at reputable  banks that are listed on the JSE. The credit quality is 
regularly monitored through required SENS releases by various banks. The risk pertaining to these deposits are 
considered to be very low. 

 
There are no restrictions on the cash deposits held and no cash were pledged as security. No collateral is held 
for any cash and cash equivalents. 

 
Receivables 

 
Receivables  comprise of a large number of users. dispersed across different sectors and geaographical areas. 
On-going credit evaluations are performed on the financial condition of these receivables. Credit risk pertaining 
to recievables are .considered to be moderate due to the diversified nature of receiavbles and immaterial nature 
of individual balances. In the case of consumer  debtors the municipality effectively has the right to terminate 
services to customers but in practice this is difficult to apply. In the case of debtors whose accounts become in 
arrears,  council endeavours to collect    such  accounts  by "levying of penalty charge", applicable  in terms of 
Council's Credit Controland Debt Collection Policy. 

 
Receiavbles  disclosed  after taking into  account  the  provision  for impairment  raised  against  each class  of 
receivable. 

 
Receivables are payable within 30 days. All receivables  are outstanding for than 30 days are considered to be 
past due. Refer to note 6 for more information regarding the provision for impairment raised against each service 
type as well as receivables considered to be past due. 

 
No receivables were pledged as security for liabilities and no collateral is held from any consumers ( other than 

consumer deposits) 
 

The following service receivables are considered past due (more than 30 days outstanding) 
 

 
 

Water 125,680,953 120,047,796 
Sewerage 19,020,091 18,219,894 
Other 2,131,557 3,223,842 

 146,832,601 141,491,532 
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45.   Risk management (continued) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Market risk 
 

Interest rate risk 
 
 
 
 

Financial Assets and liabilities that are sensitive to interest rate risk are cash equ 
payables. The  municipality is not exposed to interest  rate risk    on these  financi 
applicable are fixed interest rates. 

 
Potential concentrations of interest risk consist mainly  of fixed deposits investments. long term debtors, other 
debtors,short term investments deposits and bank and cash balances. 

 
The municipality limits its counterpart exposures from its money market investments operations by only dealing 
with well-established financial institutions of high credit standing. The credit exposure to any single counterpart is 

managed by setting percentage exposure limits  , which are included in the municipality's  investments policy. 
These limits are reviewed periodically by the Chief Financial Officer and authorised by the council. 

 
 

The following balances are exposed to interest rate fluctuations: 
 
 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Non Current Investments 

578,014,620 

8,727,587 
282,497,181 

8,022,159 

Net Balance Exposed  586,742,207 290,519,340 

 
Potential effect of changes in interest rates on surplus and deficit fo the 
year/period 
1% increase in interest rates 
1% decrease in interest rates 

 

 
5,867,422 

(5,867,422) 

 

 
2,905,193 

(2,905,193) 
 

 
 

Sensitivity analysis 
Financial assets. 
At 30 June 2020, If the weighted average interest rate had been 100 points basis higher, with all other variables 
held constant, the fair- value impact on the financial performance would have been R5.8 million with the opposite 
effect if the interest rate had been 100 points basis lower. 
The sensitivity analysis would be performed by dividing the total investment interest earned for the year by the 
average interest rate  earned to give the effect of a one percent movement in interest rates. 

 
FinancialLiabilities 
Changes in the  interest rates as at 30 June  2020 would have had no impact  on the statement of financial 
performance, as all borrowings are at fixed interest rate. 

 
Foreign exchange risk 

 
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes  in foreign exchange rates. 

 
The financial instruments of the municipality is not directly exposed to any currency risk.. 
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45.   Risk management (continued) 

Price risk (Market Risk) 

 

 
 
 
 

The municipality is not exposed to any other price risk. 
 
46.   Unauthorised expenditure 

 
 
 
 

Opening balance as previously reported 
 

 346,948,870 

Less approved by council - (238,700,568) 

Closing balance  108,248,302 

 
47.   Fruitless and wastefulexpenditure 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 17,840,108 17,826,708 
Current year 364 13,400 

 17,840,472 17,840,108 

 
Incident 
Interest Paid to Eskom 

 
 

364 

 
 

5,220 
Interest paid MCPF  328 
Late Payment  57 

MWRF  2,150 

Interest paid to Natal Joint Super  277 
Interest paid to Salaries Pension  2,450 
Interest paid to Mbizana Local Municipality  21 

Interest paid to National Health Laboratory Service  910 
Interest paid to SARS  1,987 

 364 13,400 

 
 
 

48.   Irregular expenditure 
 
 

Opening Balance as previously reported 
Correction of prior period error 

Subtotal 
Irregular Expenditure- Current Year 
Irregular Expenditure incurred in the current year as a result of prior's year irregular 
contracts. 

1,322, 935,787  1,099,563,249 
80,845,960 

1,322,935,787  1'180,409,209 
2,931,598  1,510,447 

85,666,375  141,016,131 

 
1,411,533,760  1,322,935,787 
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48.   Irregular expenditure (continued) 

Details of irregular expenditure 

SCM processes not followed 

Section 32 Regulations not followed 

Declaration of interest not followed 

BEG minutes signed by two members  instead of 

three 

BAG composition not correct 

Tender not advertised 

 

2020  2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38,584,405 

4,356,935 

32,930,615 

1,772,761 

 
9,374,754 

1,578,503 

88,597,973 

 
49.    Additional disclosure  fn terms of MunicipalFinance Management Act 

 
Contributions to organised localgovernment (SALGA fees) 

 
Opening  balance 

Current year subscription I fee 

Amount paid - current  year 

 
2,694,394 

(2,694,394) 

8,786 

2,705,500 

(2,714,286) 
 

 
 

Audit fees 
 

Opening balance 

Current year subscription I fee 

Amount paid - current  year 

84,326 

6,788,280 

(6,788,280) 

84,326 

6,521,719 

(6,521.719) 

84,326  84,326 

 
PAYE and UIF 

 

Current year subscription I fee 

Amount paid - current year 

43,626,011 38,997,938 

(43,626,011)    (38,997,938) 
 

 
 

Pension and Medical Aid Deductions 
 

Current year subscription I fee 

Amount  paid - current  year 

29,379,331   25,464,111 

(29,379,331) (25,464,111) 
 

 
 

VAT 

 
VAT receivable 10,057,662  19,678,934 

 
VAT output payables and VAT input receivables are shown in note 7. 

 
All VAT returns  have been submitted by the due date throughout the financial year. 
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49.   Additionaldisclosure in tenns of MunicipalFinance Management Act (continued) 

 
Deviations Authorised 

 

In terms of section 36 of the Municipal Supply Chain Manage nt Regulations  any deviation from the Supply 
Chain Management Policy needs to be approved/condoned by t e  · · ality  Manager and noted by Council. 

 

Incident  A.lJDrro 
Phiko Security - Impossible to advertise due to security threa 1:::!-C'I:::!-Gf:Nf:/:);, 
Lok Consulting- Emergency due to Covid outbreak   j     /11:::!-0•ut£. 
Ronauna- Emergency due to Covid outbreak    I"t;;J 
Ntuts Enterprise- Emergency due to Covid outbreak  0 4 JJ. 

Anforcept Trading Enterprise- Emergency due to Covid o  • tt'OV , 
Ntuts Enterprise- Emergency due to Covid outbreak  •••••••• <rl2{) 
Anforcept Trading Enterprise- Emergency due to Covid  ••••••••••• 

Ntuts Enterprise- Emergency due to Covid outbreak  lire:  ••••·••••· 
Anforcept Trading Enterprise- Emergency due to Covid outbreak •••••••••• •••••••••• 

Middleman- Emergency due to Covid outbreak  ••••••••••••• •••••••• 
Middleman- Emergency due to Covid oubreak   •••••••••• 
Alfred Nzo Community Radio- Emergency due to Covid outbreak •••••• 
Alfred Nzo Community Radio- Emergency due to Covid outbreak 
Teo Pushing Forward- Emergency due to Covid outbreak Molathile 

Trading and Projects- Emergency due to Covid outbreak Mpoetsi 
Tsuputsi- Emergency due to Covid outbreak 

Amathusi Investment- Emergency due to Covid outbreak 
Doc Lia Trading- Emergency due to Covid outbreak 
Alpha and Omega- Emergency due to Covid outbreak 
Nice Things Decor- Emergency due to Covid outbreak 

SABC Umhlobo Wenene- Emergency due to Covid outbreak 
Winsko Projetcs- Emergency due to Covid outbreak 

Teo Pushing Forward- Emergency due to Covid outbreak 
ICT Choice- Emergency 
Tumwine Construction- Emergency due to Covid outbreak 

Zinzame Consulting- Emergency due to COVID outbreak 
JNT Consulting JV Nageni Civils- Emergency due to COVID outbreak 

Masilakhe/ Olen JV- Emergency due to COVID outbreak 
Gilgal Consulting- Emergency due to COVID outbreak 

Kude Investment Holding- Emergency due to security threats 
NMI Durbam South Motors - Impractical to advertise due to stripping 
NMI Durban- Impractical to advertise due to stripping 

Thopmson Commercial Vehicle 
Travel Start- Only one service provider 

NMI Durban South Motors- Impractical to sdvertise due to stripping 
Bates and Johnstone Motors 
Roallnvestment Holding- Impracticalto advetise due to stripping 
Roallnvestment Holding-Impracticalto advertise due to strippping 

NMI Durban South- Impractical to advertise due to stripping 
Thompson Commercial Vehicles- Impractical to advertise due to stripping 
Sekumhlaba Health Promotion- Impractical to get three quotes 

Optron- Only service provider 
Roallnvestment Holdings- Impractical to get three quotations 

Roallnvestments Holdings-Impractical to advertise due to stripping 
NMI Mercedes Benz- Impracticalto advertise due to stripping 
NMI Mercedes Benz- Impracticalto advertise due to stripping 
SABC - State owned company 
NMI Mercedes Benz Durban- Impractical to advertise due to stripping 
Kokstad Locksmith- Emergency 
Kokstad Locksmith- Emergency 
Avis Car Hire- Emergency 
Dop Dop Security threat- Emergency due to security threat 
Opinianated Trading enterprises- Emergency due to theft at satelite offices 

71,404 
6,960 

1  5,140 
2,000 

82,800 
63,000 
74,250 

36,000 
41,400 

216,000 

36,000 
165,000 

110,000 
1,545,600 

37,950 

40,000 
884,000 
886,940 

50,000 
82,934 
81,144 

861,351 
1,270,145 

949,534 

94,900 
5,000,000 
8,400,000 

8,300,000 
6,500,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
125,000 
67,829 
30,178 
40,108 

4,586 
21,286 

206,087 
34,055 

30,046 
111,890 

113,514 
19,200 
7,475 

11,306 
62,200 

130,258 
68,304 

287,500 
69,083 

8,062 
2,674 

26,674 

137,222 
156,050 
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49.   Additionaldisclosure in terms of MunicipalFinance Management Act (continued)  

36,244,452 1,770,587 

 
In addition to the above, the municipality could also not follow its SCM procedures  for the below listed service 
providers.  Initially,  the  municipality  invited  bids  for the  repairs and  maintenance  from interested  suppliers. 

However, nobody qualified hence the municipality resorted to sect" 
 

1) lveco- Port Shepstone 

2) Tryes and More - Kokstad 
3) Dericks Engineering- Kokstad 
4) CapitalPanel Beaters- Kokstad 

5) Johnson Delta- Kokstad 
6) lsuzu Trucks- Port Shepstone 

7) TFM - Durban 
8) lan Dicke & Co (Pty) ltd- Pine Town 
9) Thompson Motors - Shelly Beach 

 
60.   Covld • 19 Disclosure 

 

 
 
 

.,8..·.. 
s1· 

911atlll'e: 

················· 
·········· 



On 15 March 2020, President Cyril Ramaphosa  announced the declaration  of a state of disaster 

following  the  World  Health  Organisation  declaration  of the  Covid-19  outbreak  as  a pandemic as  
well  as measures  that must be implemented in South Africa 

 

On 18 March  2020,  regulations  under  the  Disaster Management  Act,  2002,  regarding  steps  to 
prevent  an escalation of the disaster or to alleviate, contain and minimize the effects of the Disaster 
were gazetted in Government  Notice No.318  of 18 March 2020, as amended and substituted  from 
time to time    ( the DMA regulations). 

 
Regulation 9 of the DMA Regulations provides that emergency procurement for institutions is 
subject to- 
a) The public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), and the applicable emergency 
provisions in the 

Regulations or Instructions made under section 76 of that 
Act; and 

b) The Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No, 56 of 2003), and the applicable emergency 
provisions in the Regulations made under the Act. 

 
Accounting officers of the municipalities and municipal entities may deviate from inviting competitive bids 

in cases of emergency in terms of regulation 36 of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations 
read with the Municipal Supply Chain Management policies. This does not require National Treasury 

approval. The Covid 19 pandemic is a situation that justifies the use of emergency procurement 
provisions 

 
The emergency procurement provisions provide for accounting officers to procure the required goods or 
services by other means, such as price quotations or negotiations. The reasons should be recorded and 
approved by the accounting officer or his/her delegate. 
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12. The Audit Committee Chairpersons’ Report 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 

 

12.1.  Audit Committee Members and Attendance 

 

In terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) and the Alfred Nzo District 

Municipality’s Audit and Performance Charter, the Audit and Performance Committee 

must consist of at least three members, all of whom must be external independent 

members.  None of the members may be councilors.  

 

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed hereunder and meets at least four 

times per year as per its approved Charter.  During the year under review the 

mandatory quarterly meetings and one special meeting were held. 

 

Member Qualifications 
Date of 

Appointment 

Number of 

meetings 

attended 

Adv. Mgidlana (Committee- LLB, B. Proc 01 August 5/5 
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chairperson ) 2018 

Ms Mba- CA (SA) 

(Committee-member) 

CTA, BCompt 01 August 

2018  
5/5 

Mr Zwili Zulu (Committee-

member) 

MBA,PGD-

BM,Bach Degree 

BT & Diploma 

Labour Economics 

01 August 

2018 
4/5 

 

 

12.2. AUDIT COMMITTEE’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The Audit Committee’s responsibilities are outlined in Section 166(2)(b) of the Municipal 

Finance Management Act (No 56 of 2003). The Audit and Performance Committee has 

adopted appropriate formal Terms of Reference as its Audit and Performance 

Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this Charter and has 

discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.  

 

A summary of the Audit Committee’s responsibilities in terms of the foregoing Act and 

its Charter is that it is responsible for, amongst other things, the following: 

 

AUDITORS AND EXTERNAL AUDIT 

 

Discuss and review with external auditors, inter alia, 

 

 the  nature and scope of the audit function;  

 agreeing to the timing and nature of reports from the external auditors; 

  considering any problems identified in the municipality as a going concern; 

 review the Auditor-General’s management letter and management response; and 

 meeting the Auditor-General at least annually to ensure that there are no 

unresolved issues of concern. 

 

 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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 review and discuss the unaudited annual financial statements with the 

Accounting Officer prior to presentation of the foregoing financial statements for 

audit together with recommendations, if any, regarding amendments to the said 

statements; 

 review and discuss with the Auditor-General and the Accounting Officer, the 

audited annual financial statements to be included in the Annual Report; 

 review significant adjustments resulting from the audit; 

 review effectiveness of the internal audit; 

 review risk areas of the operations to be covered in the scope of the internal and 

external audits; and 

 Review the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of the financial information 

provided to management and other users of such information.  

 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

The monitoring and supervising of the effective function of the internal audit including; 

 

 evaluating performance, independence and effectiveness of internal audit and 

external service providers through internal audit; 

 review the effectiveness of the internal controls and to consider the most 

appropriate system for the effective operation of its business; 

 initiating investigations within its scope e.g. employee fraud, misconduct or conflict 

of interest. 

  

ETHICS 

  

Reviewing the effectiveness of mechanisms for the identification and reporting of:  

 

 any material violations of ethical conduct of councillors and municipal staff; 

 compliance with laws and regulations; and 

 environmental and social issues. 

 

COMPLIANCE  
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 carrying out investigations into financial affairs as Council may request; 

 reviewing the effectiveness  of mechanisms  for the identification and reporting of: 

 compliance with laws and regulations; and 

 the findings of regulatory bodies or audit observations. 

 

 

3 THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS 

 

The system of controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are 

safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. In line with 

the MFMA and the King VI Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal 

Audit provides the Audit Committee and management with assurance that the internal 

controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk 

management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested 

enhancements to the controls and processes. 

 

 

12.3. INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION 

 

During the year under review, an audit plan was prepared based on the Annual Risk 

Assessment. The following is a list of projects undertaken by Internal Audit, arising from 

the risk assessment: 
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Date of meeting Major item discussed  

 

19 August 2019 

1. Draft Annual Report  2018-19  

2. Annual Financial Statements (AFS) 2018-19 

3. Internal Audit Comments: AFS 2018-19 

4. Annual Performance Report: 2018-19 

5. Internal Audit Comments: Annual Performance 

Report  2018-19 

6. Update: Risk Assessment 2018-19 

7. Risk- Based Internal Audit Plan 2019-2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18 November 2019 

1. Performance Management Report (Q1 2019-20) 

2. Internal Audit Report Performance Management 

(Q1 2019-20) 

3. Internal Audit Report: Year-End Stock 2018-19 

4. MFMA s52 (d) Financial Report for the Quarter 

ending 30 September 2019 

5. Grants Reports as at 30 September 2019 

6. Management Accounts – 30 September 2019 

7. Withdrawal Report – 30 September 2019 

8. Payroll Report – Section 66 of MFMA – 30 

September 2019 

9. Project Expenditure Report – 30 September 

2019 

10. Revenue Management Report – 30 September 

2019 

11. Grant & Subsidies, Cash and Investment 

Management  30 September 2019 

12. Report on Implementation of Procurement Plan 

– 30 June 2019  

13. Report on Orders Awarded for the Procurement 

of Goods and Service Range from 0 and above 

14. Risk Management Report Q4 2018-19 

15. Internal Audit Risk Based Coverage Plan 2019-

20 
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16. Internal Audit Report SCM & Expenditure 

Management  

17. Internal Audit Report: Asset and Liability 

Management  

 

 

 

 

06 December 2019 

1. Performance Management Report (1st Q 2019-

20) 

2. MFMA s52 (d) Financial Report for the Quarter 

ending 30 September 2019 

3. Audit Committee Charter 2019/20 

4. Internal Audit Charter 2019/20 

5. Audit Committee work Plan 2019/20Strategic & 

Operational Risk Assessment 2019/20 

6. Internal Audit Risk Based Coverage Plan for the 

period from 01 July 2019 – 30 June 2020 

7. Audit Committee work Plan 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24 January 2020 

1. Tabling of Annual Report 2018/2019 FY Report 

2. MFMA S72 Report 2019/2020 FY. 

3. MFMA S52(d) 2019/2020 FY 

4. Internal Audit Comments on S52(d) Report 

2019/2020 FY 

5. Audit Report 2018/2019 FY 

6. Internal Audit Comments on Annual Report 

2018/2019 FY 

7. Audit Action Plan 2018/2019 FY 

8. Internal Audit Comments on Audit Action Plan 

9. Report : Litigation Register 

10. Contracts Register ( Item for In committee) 

11. Unauthorized, Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful 

Expenditure Register as at December 2019 

12. Report on Performance of Service Providers-  

 ( Item for In committee) 

13. Report on Compliance Monitoring Checklist ( 

Item for In committee) 

14. Progress on implementation of action plans :  
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 Strategic risks 

 Fraud risks 

15. MPAC  (as at 31 December 2019) 

16. Risk Management Committee (Item for In 

committee) 

 

 

 

 

26 May 2020 

1. IDP 2020-21 

2. Draft Budget 2020-21 

3. Litigation Register 

4. Internal Audit Reports: Recruitment, Selection, 

Appointment and Termination 

 5. Internal Audit Report: SCM and Expenditure 

Management processes 

 6. Internal Audit Report: Revenue Collection, Cash 

Management and Illegal 

 7. Risk Management Report: ANDM COVID-19 

Back to Work Register 

 8. Covid-19 back to work Risk Register 

 

 

All reports and assignments are followed up by Internal Audit and the Audit Committee 

to ensure that management actions have been implemented. This action was 

necessary to ensure that management does not temporize Audit Committee and 

Council. 

 

12.4. EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The Audit Committee has: 

 

 reviewed and discussed with the Auditor-General and the Accounting Officer the 

audited annual financial statements to be included in the Annual Report;  

 reviewed the Auditor-General's management letter and management responses; 

 reviewed the accounting policies and practices;  

 reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit;  
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 evaluated the audited annual financial statements to be included in the Annual 

Report and, based on the information provided to the Audit Committee, considered 

that the said statements comply in all material respects with the requirements of the 

MFMA and Treasury Regulations as well as South African Statements of Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) and certain statements of Generally 

Recognized Accounting Practice (GRAP) 

 

12.5. APPRECIATION 

 

I would like to thank my colleagues for making themselves available to serve on this 

Committee and for the significant contributions that they have made. 

  

As an Audit Committee, we rely to a great extent on the Alfred Nzo District 

Municipality’s Chief Audit Executive (CAE) and his staff in the Internal Audit Department 

for their support and assistance and, in particular, for the role they continue to play in 

improving the accounting and internal auditing systems and controls at District 

Municipality. We are indebted to them for their cooperation and assistance.  

 

We are also grateful to the Chief Financial Officer, the Auditor-General, and all other 

invitees to our meetings, including our counterparts departments, COGTA and 

Provincial Treasury Department, all of whom provided invaluable information to the 

Committee. 

 

 

Adv. Mgidlana 

Chairperson: ANDM Audit and Performance Committee 

31 March 2021 
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13. IMPLICATIONS 

 

The report has been developed internally. If the information is not properly scrutinized 

before submission to AG because of non-submission, there is a risk of material findings 

which may cause a qualification.  

 

13.1. Financial Implications 

The AG charges may be high if information is not promptly presented to AG upon 

receipt of Request for Information (RFIs). 

 

13.2. HR Implications 

Report compiled internally. 

 

13.3. Legal Implications 

Section 46 of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act 2000 (Act 32 of 2000) 

(MSA)  

Section 121 of the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) 

2003 (Act 56 of 2003)  

 

13.4. Communication Implications 

As instructed by Section 16 (1) (a) (i) of the Municipal Systems Act of 2000, the 

community of ANDM will be notified of the approval of the Final Annual Report 

2018/2019 through the media, in a form of an advert which will be placed on the local 

newspaper.  

 

13.5. Community Implications 

Stakeholder and community participation is very critical in the Annual Report processes, 

therefore ANDM community will be consulted and requested to submit their comments 

and inputs on the Draft and Final Annual Report 2018/2019. 
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13.6. Service Delivery Implications 

The Annual Report is a yard stick wherein the municipality is able to reflect on whether 

it achieving on the indicators and targets as set in the IDP and SDBIP. If the information 

is incorrectly stated, there is a risk of losing public trust in the institution.   

 

 

 

 

 

14. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

1. The Annual Report 2019-2020 of Alfred Nzo District Municipality as referred to in 

S127 of the MFMA be and is hereby tabled for NOTING and APPROVAL. 

2. That it be noted that the Municipality has once again received an Unqualified 

Audit Opinion from Office of the Auditor General for 2019-2020 FY for both 

ANDM and ANDA. 

3. That the MPAC develops its oversight report after consideration of the annual 

report for 2019-2020 FY. 


